Capt. Potter. My Lord, I cannot be certain
of that.

Attorn, Gen. That is receded from, But what
do you know of Mafii's coming over here

Capt. Potter. | know nothing of Mafon: 1law
him but once 3 and at that time there paft nothing
between us of publick Concernment, as I remem-
ber.

Attorn. Gen, What was the Anfwer that wasre-
turned to that which Mafen did bring ¢

Captain Potter. That I can fpeak nothing to of
my own Knowledge : I heard he was come hi-
ther; and was here to fee the Tempers of Men,

and to fee how Things were like to go.
Atorsr. Gen, My Lord, ask him from whom

he came. |

Capt. Potter. Tt was faid he came from my
Lord Picrey. But thefe Things are fo remote
from me, that I can fay nothing to them of my

own Knowledge.

Anern, Gen, My Lord, let him {peak what he
knows about reconciling the Presbyterian Par-
t1es.

Capt. Potter. 1 think others can fpeak more
clofe to that ; I can fay nothing buc by hear-fay :
I heard that Mafern did endeavour here to find
how the A Seétions of the People ftood 5 and whe-
ther there was a Necefhty that the King fhould

47. The Trial of Chriftopher Love

3 Car. II.

Ld Prefident, Did not Titus offer to go 2

Capt. Potter. 1 cannot well tell: But at that
time, or fome other, heeither was fpoken to go,
or offered to go.

Ld Prefident. How long ago?

Capt. Potter. My Lord, 1 cannot {peak this
of my own knowledge; but I have heard fay, I
think, a month after the time.

Ld Prefident. Had he any money to bear his
Charges ¢

Capt. Petter. 1 know of nore.

Antorn, Gen. Well, what Meetings afterwards |
was there 1n Mr. Lsve’s Study ?

Capt. Potter. 1 have been at Mr, Love's feve.
ral times.

Attoran, Gen. My Lord, ask him whether he
was not prefent 1 Mr. Love’s Study, when a
Letter was there read from Tifrss and who was
prefent there @ and what were the Debates upon
it 3 and what was the Contents of the Letter
and whether 1t was not for fome to come to Calais
to him.

Capt. Potter. The Letter 1 well remember: 1
cannot fay it was Mr. Love’s Study 3 nor can [
fay it was n hus Houle : 1 do not know Mr, Lsve
was prefent, The Letter, I have {feen it, or
heard of it ¢ Tt did defire fome to come to Casais
about the Treaty : And [ remember well that Ma-

comply with the Seots, or with the Cavaliering  jor 4ford told me he did go to him.

Party 5 and that he found a Neceflity of comply-
ing, with the Jcofs.

Ld Prefident. What Affiftance fhould he have
from hence?

Capt. Potfer. 1 know no more of Mafon than
this.

Attorn. Gen. My Lord, ask him if there were
not fome Letters recurned by Mafen, 1n anlwer to
what he brought:

Capt. Potier. Not that I know of.

Ld Prefident. Did you hearof 1t? -

Capt, Poiter. I think 1 did hear of 1t : But I

Ld Prefident. What was the Contents of che
Letter?

Capt. Pester. 1 cannot well remember that ¥
have feen 1t ; But | have either feen it or heard of
ir; I cannot tell which,

Ld Prefident. You muft be true to the State,
and fpeak the Truth.

Capt, Porter. My Lord, T would be true to
the State, and to the Gentleman at the Bar teo.
And, my Lord, I can fay no more toir: I ci-
ther faw it, or heard of 1r, I cannot tell which, I
am upon my Oath, my Lord: The Letter did de-

cannot tell by whom 3 I think by #lliam fire fomebody to come to Calais to him.

Draze.

Altorn. Gen. My Lord, ask him whether he
knows of any Petition fent to the King of Seots.

Capt. Peter, 1 donot know of any; but have
heard fo.

Ld Piefident. By whom did you hear {o ?

Capt. Potter. By [Miliiam Drake.

Ld Prefident. Who did Drake fay did carry the
Petition ?

Capt. Petter, 1 cannot tell.

Attorite Gen, Do you know of any Anfwer re-
turned from Piercy and Fermin ¢

Cuapt. Polter. 1 know nothing at all of thefe
Things.

Ld Prefident, Were not you Invited to the
Mecting ?

Capt. Potter. Yes, 1 was.

Attorit. Gen. What did he tell you?

Capt. Potter, Nothing ar all : We had no-
thing but common Difcourfe there,

Altorar, Geit. Who was there ?
~ Capt. Potter. There was Filliam Drake, Ma-
jor dlferd 5 and I think AMafon and Titus were
there,

Ld Prefideat, Do you remember any more?

Capt. Pateer. 1 do not remember ; nor can I
ceitinly fay chey were there. +

Ld Prefidens. Were not you prefled or moved
to 20.10 Feifey 2

Capt. Potter, Not that. 1 know of,

Attorn, Gen. Was not this Meeting in Mr, Love's
Study ?

Capt. Potter. I cannot fay it was in his Houfe::
I rather think 1t was not.

Ld Prefident. \Was he prefent ?

Capt. Potter, 1 cannot fay he was prefent 3 I
think he was not prefent: I chink Mr. Alford was
fent to the Tavern.

[ The Papers of Captain Pot/ei’s Examinations
were here produced by the Attorney-General, and
by the Clerk read to him, ]

Atorin. Gen, My Lord, thefe were his Exami-
NAIons,

Capt. Potter. 1 intreat this may be remember’d,
(which I premifed at firft) 1 had a Latitude then,
that I have not now : I am now upon my Oath,
and defire to be true to my own Conlciencz, and
to the State, and to this Gentleman. [ have
made (it is true) fuch a Confeffion as this 1s;
and I believe the greateft Part of it to be true,
according to the Latitude I {pake it in: Buc
now I am upon my Oath,and now [ am to {peak
knowingly. The Subftance of the Thing s
true 3 1 believe that he was fent, and fent upon
fuch Things. So much I do verily believe to be
true.i{ upon my Oath ; but of the Places 1 cannot
{peak.

g Attorn, Gen. Alford did go to Calais, and re-
turn: And how many Days was it between his
.going
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returning? And where did he give an

going and £ what he did receive from Tisus at

Account ©

Calais ?
Capt. Potter, It 1s 2 hard Matter for me to

fprak to the Time: Ithink about 2 Week. And
for the Relation he made when he came back,
as [ take it, I methim at the King’s- Head 0 WWal-
broke upon his Landing whether he made Ehc
Relation to me there, or aftcrw;}rds at Mr. Love's
whether I heard of the Meeting, or whether I
was at the Meeting, I cannot fay. 1 am fure
he himfelf made me the Relation s but whe-
ther there, or any other where, 1 cannot make
Out;ﬁmm. Gen. Upon your Oath, did not Major
Alford make return of the Anfwer 1n Mafter
Lave’s Study ? _ o

Capt. Potter. I cannot fay 1t; but I think 1t
was there,

Mtorn. Gen, Was Mafter Love prefent?

Capt. Poiter, 1 think he was prefent; and I
hink it was in his Houfe: I am fure Major ,?f[.
ford made me a pardcular Relation between him

and 1.
Aitorn. Geir. Was Sterks, the Scotch Agent there,

or no’

Capt. Poticr. I cannot fay he was.

Ld Prefident, Was it read in Malter Love's
Study ?

Capt. Potter, 1 cannot fay I was there.

[ His Examination was again read to him, ]
Attorn, Gen. What was the Subftance of the

King’s Letter ?

Capt. Petter. It 1s fo much out of my Memo-
ry, that I fcarce remember there was a Letter; 1t
is fo much out of my Mind.

[More of his Examination was read to him.]

Ld Prefideriz. What do you remember of this
now? s chis true?

Capt. Poiter, I remember I have heard as much;
and ] believe 1t 1s true.

Ld Prefident. Have you not heard the Letter
read?

Capt. Potter. 1 do not know there was a
Letter fent; nor do I know there was a Letter
read. I defire to fpeak the Truth: | had a La-
titude then, that I have not nows I had then
fuch an Information fhewed me, and I fpake to
it fo far as I thought it was true. Thefe Papers
you thew me, as my Examination, were not of
my framing,

The Clerk. Look upon them: Is not this your
Hand?

Capt. Potter. T know it is my Hand ?

torn, Gen. My Lord, 1 did go to the Toer
to him, and was with him, and did examine
him. My Lord, here be thofe that will prove
1t, that himfelf did confefs, and faid it was true::
And he took time himfelf to inform himiclf, and
bad (as he faid) other Mens Examinations and
Informations by; and he did add and amend,
and gave it under his Hand, This is the Truth,
after feveral Examinations. And he had Papers
by him, and did corre®t them himfelf, and
brought them under his own Hand written by
himfelf, thefevery Things. Anrd, my Lord, ask
him whether he did not write thefe Things frft
with his own Hand, and bring them to the Com-
mittee of Kxaminations.

Ld Prefident, Whether did you not bring in
Vor.ll,

your own Examinations, and what you could
inform, written by your own Hand?

Capt. Potter. My Lord, thatis my Hand; and
what s there 1 muft own as mine, But I hope
you will Jet me diftinguith between what [ deli-
vered then as I heard it and thought, and what
I deliver poliive'y. 1do fay itis truc now, as
I have heard.

Ld Prefident. Why did you not fay of Hear-
fay then, as well as now?

Artoris, Gen, Upon the Oath you have taken,
whether do you not know this of your own Know-
ledge?

Capt. Potter. Upon the QOath T have taken
(and I defire to fpeak it in God*s Prefence)’I do
not remember thar I faw the Letter from the
King, or heard the Letter read, or the Copy;
nor can | fay Alford told me fo much, though I
think he did, yet [ do not know he did.

Mr. Leve, T deflire you would take notice
whether this be fair, that Mr, Attorney fhould
help the Witnefs, by putting things into his
Mouth ?

Attorn. Gen, My Lord, I can helpthe Winefs
by asking him Queftions.

Capt, Potter. My Lord, no Man fhall fo far
tamper with me, asto make me fay an Untruth,

Attorn. Gen. My Lord, pray ask him whether
he did not write thele Papers, moft of them,
with his own Hand.

Capt. Potter. Truey but to opento the Com-
mittee  the ground of this Bufinefs: But I did
not expect to {wear to every one of thefe Par-
ticulars.

Attorn. Gen. My Lord, ask him whether after
this Return was made there was not a Meeting,
and loftructions made about the Comnaiffion to be
fent to Breda.

Capt. Potter, My Lord, to that, I have heard
fo much; but I cannot fpeak it pofitively, I
faw no Commiflion, nor Inftructions: 1 heard
there was both, I do not know by whom I have
heard it 5 [ think by /7illiam Drake.

Ld Prefident, Were you not at Mr, Love's
Houle when they were drawn up, and Mr. Love
correfted them?

Capt, Potter, I never faw the Inftru@ions.

Mr, Love. Nor I neither.

Ld Prefident. Did you not hear fo?

Capt, Petter. 1did.

Ld Prefident. To whom to be directed 2

Capt. Potter. To Captain Titu;,

Ld Prefident. And to who elfe?

Capt, Potter, The Commiffions and Inftruti-
ons were to be direCted to my Lord ##7illouphby of
Parbam, Coloncl Graves, Major-General Maffey,
Caprain Tres, and Alderman Busce,

Attoira. Gen, My Lord, ask him whether he
hath not heard Mr. Love tell him fo.

Capt, Potter. Never in my Life,

Ld Prefideut, Were you not then prefent at his
Houie ¢

Capt. Poiter, I know not that [ was; nor can
I remember,

[ His Examination was again read.]

Attorn. Gen, Whether were you not at M.
Love’s Houfe ? And was there not a Letter agreed
upon to Maffey, and Bailey, and Tifus?

Capt. Patter, 1 have been feveral Times at
Mr., Love’s Houle.

0O 2 Id
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Ld Prefident, Whether were you not at
Mr. Love’s Houfe with thefe Correfpondents? |

Capt. Poiter. 1 have been {everal Times at his
Houfe with them; and I have been oftner there
upon other Occafions.

Ld Prefident. Name them.,

Capt Potter. I mean with Mr. Love, and
Mr. Fackfon, and Mr. Robinfon, and Major Alford,
and Mr. Drake, and Mr. Gibbons,

Ld Pirefident. What was then agreed upon
about Letters when you were at Mr, Love's
Houle?

Capt. Potter. 1 have a very bad Memory, 1
cannot fpeak to Time, and Places, and Perfons;
fuch Letters I have heard of were written, I
profefs I can fpeak no more knowingly. I ne-
ver had a hand inany one Letter, but fuch Letters
I have heard of. |

Ld Prefident. Upon what Account did you
meet at Mr, Love’s Houle ?

Capt. Potler. 1 met there jometimes upon a
friendly Account, fometimes upon 2 chriftian Ac-
count, and fomctimes to hear News, and {ome-
times to tell Wews,

Ld Profident. Where did you meet with thefe
Perfons, /7illiam Diakey and thele fo olten men-
rloned

Capt. Polter. My Lord, there was a Cotre-
fpondency in pomnt of News,

Ld Picfident. Between whom?

Capt. Potter, Berween Caprain Titus there, and
IFalliain Drake here s and he would tell us many

times News there,

Ld Prefrdent. Do you know Tires was employ-
ed as an Agent hence?

Capt. Petter, 1 think he was.

Ld Prcfident, Flad ne Money colleéted ?

Capt. Pottei. T do not know of one Penny 1
lent hiny, and I never contributed to him.

Attgrar. Gen. My Lord, ask him whether him-
elt did not, upon an Qccafion, contribute ten
Pounds, and bring it into ir, Lsze’s Parlour?

Capt. Potter, 1 conicfs that.

Avtgrir. Gen, Tor a Table-book that was writ-
ten in Sack, do you kinow of any fuch thing?

Capt. Potter, Tdo, my Lord; I went to [Fil
itz Dirake in his Retirement, and he was writing
out of his Papers fome Letters in a Table-book,
which he rold me was in Sack, as [ ke it

Ld Prefideit. Why did he write them in
Sack?

Capt. Poster, 1ake it, becaufe it fhould not be
difcovered,

Ld Prefideiit. Do you not know to whom the
Leters written in Sack were font?

Capt. Poter, 1 know not; but he told meto
Bailey and Titps.

Ld Prcfidert. Where was Bailey and Tiiws then?

Capt. Poter, 1 know not where Tirus was, but
[ chink Bailey was 1 Scotlond.

Ld Prefideit.  Afeer Diale was aone, where
were your Meetings ufually ?

Capt. Poltei. Viany timesat Mr. Loze’s Houfe.

Ld Prefident. When you did meet there, what
did you meer upon? Was it not to receive Mel
inges trom Tz, and Aaffey, and Beage, and Bai-
ey, and to return Anfivers ?

Capt. Potter, We had fometimes Letters read
tiicre, but from whom they came, or to whom,
I believe few can well, I cannot tell; fomething
of Nt.‘;WS we have heard, of Affairs ; that was the
Occalion of my comng fometimes.

Attorn. Gen. Did Mr. Love never tell you the
Occafions of thofe Meetings, and prefs you to
lend Money to furntth Maffey and Titus,

Capt. Potter. 1 canfay nothing to that.

dttern, Gen, What fay you to the private
Fafls?

Capt. Potier, There were private Fafts,

Attorn. Gen. What! for a Blefling upon the
Treaty at Breda?

Capt. Potter. There were Fafls kept, but I
never underftood they were for any other End,
but for the Sins of, and Judgments upon the
Nations ; and ior the moft part there have been
hundreds of Men and Women there.

Attorin, Gen, Did Mr. Leve often officiate
there?

Capt. Potfer. Hehath preached and prayed.

Ld Prefidiit. Did any pray for a Bleffing upor
the Treaty

Capt. Potter, I cannot fay fo.

Attorn, Gen. What fay you to thofe Letters
that came hither afrer the Fight at Duabai ?

Capt. Potter. My Lord, after the Fight at
Duiibar, there came Letters from Bailey, and -
tis, and Majey.

Ld Prefideit, Ard where were thefe publifh-
ed ?

Capt. Poster. My Lord, I can fay no more;
I have heard ot thete Letters too.

Ld Piefident. Werenot you prefeat at Mr, Love's
Houfe when they were read, or made Lknown
there?

Cape. Potter, Poflibly I wass I cannot fay 1
heard the Letters read there. T did hear Letters
by a private Hand occafionally afterwards.

Aiterir, Gen. By the Qach you have taken, were
you not prefent at Mr. Leve’s Houle, when thofe
atorefud - Letters from 7Tifws, and Bailey, and
Muffey, were publifhed and read?

Capt. Patter, My Lord, I cannot fay I was
there, and I dare not fay I was not; irisa Year
ago: I behieve I was there feveral Times when
feveral Letters were read, and it may be when
thofe were read.

Ld Prefident. Whether was there not five
Pounds given to a Meflenger that brought them ?

Capt. Potter. 1 have heard there was, but I
do not know it?

Ld Prefuent. Iid you contribute any thing to-
wards 1t ¢

Capt. Potter, 1 think Idid contribute ten Shil
lings.

Ld Prefident. Who contributed befides your
felf 7

Capt. Potter, 1know not.

Attorn, Gen. Was there not at Mr. Love's a
Promife of Arms or Letters?

Capt. Potter, 1 cannot fay fo?

Attorn, Gen, What can you fay ?

Capt, Potter, 1 have heard there was.

Attorir, Gen. By whom have you heard it ?

Capt. Potter. 1 cannot fay by whom, or who
told me fo, either Mr. 4lford, or ddaws, or Far,
or fome of thofe Men that ufed to meet thercs
for it was common, when I was not there, for
fome or other to meet with me.

Attorn. Gen, Did Mr, Love contribute to the
Meflenger ?

Capt. Potter, T cannot fay he did.

Attorin. Gen, My Lord, I do not ask him ore
Quettion, but what himfelf hath confefs’d,

Capt.
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Capt. Potier.. I do remember fuch Letters I
have heard did come, but never faw thofe Let-
Eers; . do likewile remember [ heard there were
five Pounds gathered for the Meflenger, and I

lieve 1 contributed ten Shiflings towards it
do _/_I;;;T(;m_ Who elfe gave belide your felf,

A
and whoreceived 1t:
Capt. Potter. 1 profefs I know not.

Aitorn. Gen. Whether was there not a Declas
ration to the Church of Seotland then publifhed?

Capt. Poiter. The Declaration, I know no-
thing of it you remembred me of 1t at the Com-
mittee, when [ was firft examined, but I knew

ino of It.
mf/l’;;::;n. Gen. My Lord, ask him whether the
Srate and Church did not write for Arms and
Ammunition at that time after the [ighe,

Capt. Potter. My Lprd, I have heard fo muqh,
but cannot fpeak pofitively or particularly to 1t
1 have heard of fuch Letters, but cannot tell by
whom ; I faw them not. :

A Gen. To whom were they directed ?

Cape. Potler. I never heard who wrote them,
nor to whom they were dircCled.

itorn, Gen, YWas there not one Letter
L. upon if ?

Capt. Pottcr. My Lord, about the Letter L.
1 did receive thofe Letters my felf, there was an
L. vericten upon them: My Lord, thefe Letters
came from Bamfield out of Scotland. There was
in thefe Letters a farge Narrative of the Affairs
of Scotlend, from Duithar-Fight to the time of
the Date of them, which [ think was about
Chrifimas: This 1s a thing I know better than
(I am afraid I give ofience by faying, I think,
and 1 heard, and that 1 cannot fpeak pofitively
but of this I can fpeak pofitively ) Bamfield gave
an Account therein of a Narrative of two Sheets
of Paper, and I and another or two opencd
them; and I cairied thefe Letters to Mr. Lewe's s
there was one or two more with me, Mr. 7 a-
guel, and 1 think Mr. Diake, 1 cannor wel] el
Thete was a Narrauve of the Scoteh Afurs and
a Letter {from namelels Perfons, which we fup-
pofe to be from M. Bailey and from my Lords
of Argyle, and Lowdoir, and Lothian, and others,
whole Names 1 do not remember. Thefe Let-
ters wrote for ten thoufand Pounds for buying
of Arms, and hiring of Shipping. Thefe Letters
we difliked, and we diffented from them, and
agreed to give a nezative Anfwer; but we
thought fir, for our own Safety, to raife fome
Money for the Meflenger and Bamfield, to which
I contributed ten Pounds. I carried all thefe
Letters to Mr. Love’s 3 one or two were opened,
I think we opened them; the Narrative ang my
Lord of Argyles Letter I opened, Lefore I up-
derflood what they were,

Ao, Gen. Why did you carry them to
Mr, Love's?

Capt. Potter, There was a great deal of News
i them: there was a Letter /2. and | did in my
Lxamination fay, I conceived it was to Mr. Lsve s
out now upon my Outh, I do not remember very
well, and I do not think it was to Mr. Lspe. I
do contefs I carried thefe Letrers to My Love's,
I and Mr. Faguel; thefe Letters were opened,
but whether Mr. Lsve opened them, or 1, or
the other, I cannot el

Attorn, Gei, With whora dig you leave them?

Capt. Potter. I brought them away, all of
them,

nih
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Attorn. Gen. Were they not read?

Capt. Polter. They were all read,

Attorit, Gen. He confefieth further, he paid
ten Pounds: To whom were the Letters di-
refted ?

Capt. Potier, The Letters had no Dire@ion
at all upon them, I believe.

Attorin. Gen, My Lord, ask him, +whether
there was not a Sum of four or five hundred
Pounds agreed to be raifed.

Capt. Potter, The Advice that was given to
that, was, That we fhould do nothing in it, and
we did nothing in it more than I tell vou; I
carrted thofe Letters to them, and had Difcourfe
of them, and refolved to do nothing in them.

Aitorn. Gen. Why did you carry them to
Nir. Love'se

Capt. Pozfer. I went for Advice what I fhould
do with them. -

Altern, Geir, My Lord, pray ask him concern-
ing the four or five hundred Pounds, and for
what; and whether this Difrourfe was ar Mr.
Love’s Floufe,  Whether there was not 2 Propao-
fition for raifing four or five huadred Pounds, and
for whom this was to be raifed, and where to be
raifed, and by what Means.

Capt Potter. | heard there was, T do not know
the Place where; tothis I contributed ten Pounds,
I brought 1t one Lvening to Mr., Love's Houfe,
and there 1 lefc it.

Altorn. Gen. Where was this Money agreed to
be raifed?

Capt. Poiter. 1 cannot fpeak to that.

Attorn. Gen. Who took the Sublcriptions?

Cape. Polter. T cannot Ipeak to that neither.

Attorin. Gen. Did Mr. Lsve contribure ?

Capt. Poiter. 1 cannot fay he did.

Attorin, Gen, Was it in his Houle ?

Capt. Potter. 1 do not know that I {ubleribed
at all, | donotthink there were any Subferiptions
I am fure I never fubferibed my Name.

Attorn. Geir. When you came into Mr. Love's
Parlour, and left the ten Pounds, did you not
give him a twitch by the Hand

Capt. Potter. T cannor fay fo. [His Exami-
nation was again read. ]

Ld Prefident. 1s this true?

Capt. Potter. The Subllance of it is true.

Ld. Piefident. Of your own knowledge?

Capt. Potter, OF my own knowledge that I
left fo much Money.

L The Clerk reads more of his Examination,]

Capt. Potter. 'This 1s 2 Section I never worded,
or phrafed my felf; I have heard as much as
this comes to, but cannot (peak it knowingly.

ditora. Gen. Did you not write this your
felt ?

Capt. Pofter. T believe not, I cannot pofitively
fay that Mr. Love cither drew up the Letter, or
received the Letter.

Attoris. Geir, You fay he received the
from your own Hands. -

Capt. Poiter, But not the Letter from 7ius
and Bﬂf&’:{}h

Altori. Gen. Do you know of a way of Cor-
refpondency laid at Kendal, or no?

Capt. Potter, 1 heard there was fuch a Cero
re{pondency.,

Attorn. Gen, By whom?

Capt. Potter, 1 cannot fay by whom,

crler
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Atiorn. Gen. Do you know that Groves was

fent to look for Letters there?

Capt. Potter. Yes. _

Ld Prefident. Did Mr, Love know of it?

Capt. Potter. 1 cannot fay he did. |

Aitorin. Gen, What had Groves for his pains
for going?

Capt. Poster. Ten Pounds.

Attorn, Gen, From whom?

Capt. Potter. 1 pad 1. o

Attorn. Gen. Did you receive any of it again?

Capt. Potter. 1 did receive fome of i, 1 re-
cetved two 105, by leveral Perfons.

Artorn. Gen, From whom?

Capt. Potter. From Gibbons, and Alford, and
Far,

Attorir. Gen, Not from Mr, Loue?

Capt. Potter. 1 do not know 1 ever had a Far-
thing from him in my Life.

Attorn, Gen. My Lord, ask him whether there
were not Letters returned to Bamfield again, and
by whom?

- Capt. Potter, My Lord, I did receive a Letter
that ! fuppole was to Bamfield. o

Ld Prefident, From whom did you receive it?

Capt. Potter, It was left in my Shop.

Ld Prefident. By whom ¢

Capt. Potter. 1 cannot fay by whom.

Ld Prefideat, Whom do you concelve it came
from?

Capt. Potier.
Dr. Drake.

Attorn, Gein. Do you conceive fo? My Lord,
ask him whether Mr. Love or Dr, Drake was not
appointed to draw the Letter.

Capt. Potter, When we were together, there
was a negative Anfwer refolved upon; and this
Anfwer, to the beft of my Remembrance, was
agreed to be drawn up by Mr. Leveand Dr, Drake:
bur I reccived this Letter,

Attorn. Gen. And who received the thirty
Pounds?

Capt. Poiter. 1 cannot tell,

Attern Gen, But you leor the Letter ¢

Capt. Porter. 1 did.

Atterin, Gen. Ask him whether he did not fend
for Mr. Love, and what Difcourfe pafs'd between
them, fince he was in Prifon.

Capt. Potter. 1 did fend for Mr. Love, and he
did come to me; and | defired his Counfel, as a
Minifter, and I told him upon what fcore I was
queftioned 5 then I was queftioned upon Mr, Cook
only, and he gave me Encouragement only as a
Friend and Minifter of the Gofpel ought to do.

Attorn, Gen, What was that?

Capt, Potier. He willd me to makea chrifhi-
an Ufe of my Affli¢tions, and gave me fome other
Inftructions; we had an Hour’s Difcourfe, and
1t was all to this purpofe: He wifli’d me to make
a chriftian Ule of my Reftraint, and to labour to
act chriftian Wildom and Fortitude,

Ld Prefudert. \What did he fay more to you?

Capt. Potfer. My Lord, no more pafs’d between
uss and I gave himan Account of what Queftions
T was examined upon in Cook’s Bulinefs,

Ld Prefudert. Did you give him an Account?

Capt. Petfer. 1 have faid o, and he did advife
meto Prudence, and Fortitude, and Courage,

Artern. Geir, Did he never advife you to be
courageous, and that unlefs you difcover’d one
another, you were fafe enough ?

I think from Mr, Love or
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Capt, Potter. My Lord, my Keeper was with
me, and we had no fuch Difcourfe.

Attorn. Gen, Did he not with you to be filent?

Capt. Potter, Either then or fince he did tell me
there was a Letter came from Mr. Drake, that
told him, Z#us’s Man had taken fome Lectcers
from Titus; but he could not conceive how it
could concern me.

Attorn. Gen. But did he difcover nothing, and
wifh you to be prudent for yourfelf, and them?

Capt. Peotter. Hedid not then?

Attorn. Gen, When then?

Capt. Potter. I faw him once fince; and he
told me of Bamfield’s Man,

Attorn. Gen. How came 1t about Mr., Love
{pake with you?

Capt. Potter. T did prevail with my Keeper to
go with me to Dinner, and to take a Glafs of
Wine, and then I provided for Mr. Love's com-
Ing to me?

Attorn. Gen. What hath Mrs. Lsve {aid unto

ou?’
! Capt. Potter, 1 {aw her ever and anon,

Attorn. Ger. What hath fhe faid to you?

Capt. Potter. She hath withed me, wich Tears,
to have a care of her Husband, and norto diico-
ver any thing; I think fhe hath.

Altery. Gen. Did not Mr, { eve faythen, That
he bad been at a Falt, where you were remem-
bred ?

Capt. Potter. He did fo.

Attorn Gen. My Lord, T confefs I was with
this Man in the Tower, as 1 ain bound to do by
my Place, to examine him; he had made his
Axaminacion  before I came thither, and I
brought it with me. My Lord, I did ask him
Quettions, he did anfwer me upon Knowledge;
he did confels the Truch, but told them, Mr. At~
torney-General  was pleafed to help him to
Particulars, and bring them to his Remem-
brance,

Capt. Potter, I profefs, if it had been to fave
my Lite, I could not aflirm them; but you put-
ting me in mind of ir, Idid know of It

dttorn, Gen, At the Committee of Examinati-
ons, then he had more Particulars told him, and
he did confefs he did know them all; and he
may give you an Account, whether he did not
give an Account under his own Hand ? My Lord,
I am not abufed, but the Council of State, and
the i“arliament are abufed; and if this Man fhould
do this Wrong to Mr, Love, and inform the
Court and Council, and the Man be brought upon
his Life, becaufe he hath affirmed it: and that
feveral Times before feveral Comuuittees: this
Man mult not efcape unpunifhed, if for no other
Fault but this, to accufe a Man before Autho-
rity, and when he comes to his Oath, to deny
every word of it.  Captain Fifber will witnefs,
that he did bring all under his own Hand, and
upon my Credit, he did fpeak as fully as we
did open, and much more fully: and I anfwer-
ed upon hear-fay, How do you know it? And
he fud, He did know it, he did remember ir,
and he put it down pofitively ; and that when
Mr., Drake went away, all the Meetings were
at Mr. Love’s Houfe, and Mr. Love did ftill de-
clare the Occafion of the Meetings, and the Let-
ters were opened by him, and the Difcourfe upon

them; and every Word he faid upon his own
Kunowledge.

| —_—

Capt.
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Captain Potter, 1 do confefs again, that before
Captain Fifber and Mr. Attorney did prompt me-—

- . '
Aitorn. Gen. Prompt you, Sir:
Capt. Potter. Before he did remember me of

them, 1 had forgot them, as if 1 bad never heard
Jhem 3 but it is one thing to rem?mber a thing
s ] have heard, and as I conceive to be true,
and another thing to {wear to 1t politively : and
the Paper allowed me this Latftudc . {ome of it
I have heard, the reft I believe, and _fm}le I
know 3 and upon this account [ believe it is all
true. _ _
iorn. Gen, My Lord, ’tis poffible I _mlghg
with him to exprefs what he did know himlelf,
and what he did know by relation of others, and
05 did fet it down, and he did it fully and clearly 5
and after all this, brought it in again, written with
his own Hand, to the Council of State. My
Lord, if you pleafe, Captain Fifser may go for
the Original under bis own Hands.

Clerk. The Original cannot be found.
My. Lsve. Here is nothing at all that concerns

me about the Bufinefs of Tifus n Ferfey, and a-
bout the Letter from 75, and the Copy of the
Leter from the King; he tells you he doth not
know it was in my Houfe; he tells you it was but
a Copy, not the Original,

Captain Potfer withdraws.

[Major Alford called into the Court, and takes
his Oath. ]

Aitorn. Gen, My Lord, let him declare what
he knows, cither by himfelf or others, and of his
Employment at Calais : make the whole Narrative
as much as you can remember,

Major Alford. My Lord, I was one Morning
with’d to go with Zilliam Drake to the Swan
at Dozug:zfe, hearing there was a Gentleman
lately come from the Prince, where I fhould
hear all the News from beyond the Seas 3 when
I came there, 1t was one Captain 7ifys, one
whom I had never feen before; and he gave a
Relation of the good Difpolition of the Prince,
and how inclidable he was to take the Covenant,
and to caft oft the Cavaliering Party, and thole
about him, it there were an Opportunity to
make 1t known, that there was a confiderable
Party in  England that would ftick clofe to the
Ends of the Covenant,  Upon that, Sir, my flf,
and fome others that weie there, did think we
were bound in Duty, and in relation to the Co-
venant, to prefs the Ends of the Covenant, tor
the Prince to take it, and to profecute the Ends
of it, And for that Captain Zires faid, If we
would appoint another Meeting, he would draw
up fomething by way of Atteftation or Petition
to the Prince for that purpofe. My Lord, we
did mect at the Bear in Breadftreet, and there he
did draw forth fomething thac he had framed o
that purpofe, and he read it; and afterwards
(not’ at that time) it was agreed upon to be fent
over to the Prince. The Subftance of it was to
prefs the Prince to apply himielf to take the Co-
venant, and to profecute the Ends of it, and to
caft off all his Cavaliering Party about him,
which had brought fo much mifchief to his Fa-
ther, and would do the like to him. This Cap-
tain Zitus drew up, and this, I believe was fent
over, for Titus undertook to fend it over. 1 did
ask how the Prince thould be made to believe,
that this coming from an inconfiderable Party, as
we were, fhould come under the notion of the
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Presbyterian Party of England, for it went under
that notion ¢ He faid, he thould undertake that
by the means of my Lord Piercy.  And the Pe-
tition that was agreed upon, he did fend over; I
believe; for I did not carry it to the Poft-houle,
but he did undertake to do it. Afterwards he
went over himfelf, and when he was over, he had
Information that there was notice of his being
here, and of the Bufinels he was upon ; and
therefore he writ over to William Drake, (as Mr.
Drake told me) that he did defire fome of us that
knew of the Bufinefs, fhould be fent over to
him, to receive that Account {rom him which
he had in the Bufinefs. So Mr. Drake did per-
fuade me to go over to Calais 3 and having fome
Bufinefs of my own, I did go aver to Caluis, I
went from my Houfe on the Friday Night, and
I was back again on the Tuefday following ; and
he did give me an Account of thar Tranfaction :
The Subftance of 1t was this: It was aboutr his
own Troubles he had undergone there by the Ca-
valiering Party, in managing that Bufinefe. He
had likewife been imprifoned, and they rold him,
They would try himas a Spy; and that they -
urged hard agamft him, and that he was in that
Condition till my Lord Libeirton, the Sesteh Com-
niffioner, came over 5 and by this means he had
Accels to, and Favour with the Prince: And
that was the Subftance of all.  He faid, the King
was averfe to the Covenant, not of himfelf, but
by reafon of thofe Counfels that were about him,
And this was the Subftance of that Account he
gave me of his Tranfattion there at Jeifey, in re-
ference to the Buflinefs he went upon: And this
he gave me in Wriung, which [ brought over
to deliver to Mr. Drake, for it was dir=&ed to
him, which I did deliver,  Afterwards Malter
Drake carried them to Malter Loves Houfe,
where they were read.  And that isall as to that
Buflinefs.

Then afterwards there was 2 Commiflion, they
called it @ Commiffion, it was agreed upon among
us, to be fent over to my Lord 77toughby of
Parbam and Majfey, and I think Graves and 7i-
tizs, that they thould agitate and alt for us at
Breda, and 1o advile with the Seateh Commiffio-
neis that were there, in behalt of the Presbyte-
rian Party here in Eugland 3 and that 1s all in re-
lation to that, Alwerwards Mr. Drake read to me
the Copy of a Letter in Characters, which he had
written himfelf in his own Back-fhop, which he
told me fhould be fent to the Queen, which was
to perfuade her to perfuade the King, as he came
that way, to clofe with the Scats; tor that wasthe
likelieft way to make good his own Intereft; but
that was at Mr. Drake's Floufe only becween him
and I. Afterwards Mr. Drake told me he had
disburfed Money about receiving of Letters, and
receiving of News, and did with me chat I would
let him have Ten Pounds, and fuid he would
{peak to fome others of his Acquaintance to do
the fike 3 and if he could get up a confiderable
Sum, I fhould have Part back again; for he
faid the Charge was too grear for him to un-
dertake: and I do think he had Ten Pounds of
me for that, After Danbar-EFighe, there was I
and fome others at Mr. Lov2’s 1n his great lower
Room; where was a Letter read, that was faid
to be from Mujor-General Meffey, that gave an
Account of the Bufinels of Dunbar 3 and alfo
did write for Arms, I know not how many
Thoufands ; and to that purpofe, that they might



. be provided by the way of Holland, But upon
thatf all that 1¥ere there did fag——1I heard no
Man fpeak of providing Arms or any fuch thing.
He writ in his Letter, that for his own Necefli-
tics, and Captain T#us that was there, that a Mo-
tion might be made for providing fome Money to
fend over for their Supply : and 1t was then faid,
We were {o inconfiderable, and fo few, that the
Sum fpoken of could not be done ; and therefore
it was moved, that every one fhould do by himfclf
and Friends what he could. This was the Sub-
ftance of that.

Attern. Gen. 1 believe, my Lord, he hath dealt
fngenuoufly with you. This in the general: 1
pray you ask him, what he knows concerning any

Tetters that fhould have been fent at the beginning
of the Change of tlus Government, to Scotland

from any Part of Euglaud ?
Major Alford. For that I know nothing, but
heard Mr. Drake fay, That he had Correfpondency

with fome in Scotland 3 and I have heard ufe one
Mr. Bailey's Name 5 and he had a Cypher which
they writ by.
Attorin. Gen. For the Swanat Dewgate, he gave
relation of thaty but who was prefent then ?
Major Alford. Truly, my Lord, it is fo long
fince, that 1 cannot pofitively tell 5 but I'am fure

I can remember there was Mr. Huatinston, and P

JVilliam  Drake, and Lieutenant-Colonel Barus ;
and I cannot tell, my Lord, 1 think there wasone
M, Hall,

Attgrn, Genr, Was Mr. Gibbous there or not?

Major Alfoi-d. Truly, my Lord, I cannot tel]
whether he was there at that time or no.

Attorn, Gen, My Lord, he fays Tilns at that
time did give relation of the Prince and his Par-
ty : Can you remember what that Relation was?
And do you know whether this was not afterward
communicated, and to whom ?

Major Alford. 1 have given you the Subftance
of it ; but for communicating of ir, I knew it
{rom none but only from thofe there.

Attorn. Gen, Titus wook time to araw it up ?

Major Alford. He did fo; and at the next
Meeting at Breadftreet, there were the fame Men
again ; and 1 think at the fame ume there was
Col. Barioi.

Attorsn. Gen. Was there no mention then, (when
it was propounded to you to be a confiderable
Party) was it not faid the Minifters were to be
acquainted with it ?

Major Alford. Yvwas asked T1fus, how the King
fhould be poffefled that this came from the Pref-
byterian Party in England, becaufe it was agreed
upon that there thould be no Namesufed to 1t ? He
faid there needed none, but only the Engage-
ments of the Mimfters in i,

Attoin, Gen, What Minifters ?

Maujor Alford. Truly he did not fpeak a word
of any Man that I kuow of.

Attein. Gen. Was 1t not then propounded, that
- Titus (hould be fent to the Scoreh King before
Commillioners came to him, to have a Correfpon-
dency fettled between him and fome others here ?

Major Alferd. 1 cannot fay at that time, but
afterwards.  Whether at that time or any other,
I cannot tell 5 but one time Titws faid, he had
learned from my Lord Piercy, which had haftned
liim over, that this Bufinefs was of that Concern-
ment, that they did undertake 1t fhould be there
before the Seorch Commiflioners did come,  And
thercupon Tius (as Williaus Drake told me, for
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this was not at the Meeting) was perfuaded to un-
dertake to go about that Bufinefs,

Attorn. Gen. Whether was there not fome Di-
reGtions given for a Letter to be written to the
Queen, to preparc the Articles with the Seofs ¢

Major Alford. 1 cannot fay any thing bur what
William Drake told me privately between him and
I, as to that purpole, a Letter to the Queen,

Attorn. Gen. What was that?

Major Alford. 1 did tell your Lordfhip.

Attorn, Gen. My Lord, ask him whether he
was not at Supper with Tz,

Major Alferd. No, my Lord, I was not there
when he offered himfelf to go, as I know of.

Attorn. Gen, What Money had Titus to bear
his Charges ¢

Major Alford. Thirty Pounds.

Attorn. Gen, From whom ?

Major Alford. From William Drake fingly.

Ld Prefident. Did not Drake gather it up a-
gain ?

Major Alfford. My Lord, I cannot tell ; 1
]FII]{?W nothing of any Man, but what I did my
elf.

Attorn. Gen, We are now fpeaking of the
Meeting at Mr., Love's Houfe, and of Zitus's
Letter being read, and he fent. Let him give a
articular Relation of that again. 1 make bold
to ask him Queftions to help his Memory.

Major Alford. The Letter that was read of
Titus, was not at Mr, Lsve’s Houle, as I know of,
but Mr. Drake’s (for all things came to him, and
we knew nothing but only from him, for the Cor-
refpondency was fettled between 2illiam Drake
and Captain Titxs) nor at any publick Meet-
ing that 1 know of, but what Dreke told
me.

Ld Prefident, But you were at Mr., Love’s
Houfe, you faid but now.

Major Alford. | was, but not upon this ac-
count, it was after I had been over ; for I do
not know that ever I was at Mr. Love's Houfe,
or ever fpake with him, ull 1 wentover : if I
have, Ihave forgot that ever 1 fpake in my Life
to Mr. Leve about it, till after 1 came from Ca-
lais; and then I did bring over a Relation, and
cave an Account of it concerning Zitus’s Tranf-
actions.

Ld Prefident, "That Account you
Love’s Houle,

Major Alford. No, my Lord, I gave it to
Williamn Diake, for it was dircted to hims and
it was three or four Days after that we met at
P;:]{r. Leve's Houfe, where Mr, Diake read the
thing.

Ld Prefident. At what time was it !

Major Aiford. At the time when the Scorch
King was at Jerfey..

Attorn. Gen, 'Whether did you bring from 7i-
tns a Copy of a Letter from the King 2

Major Alford, That I forgot ; but Titus "did
ihew: me 2 Letter, at leaft-wife he faid fo, that he
hagl it from the King, that he fent to this Presby-
terian Party. And, my Lord, he did copy out
the Letter, and the Copy he gave me, which I
did bring over,

Ld :Prfﬁdew. To whom did you deliver it ?

Major diford. 1delivered it to William Drake
I gave it Mr. Drake himfelf, and I think at hia
own Houfe ; 1 think it was the fame, and that
it was read at Mr. Love's Houfe. The Subftance
of it was this, as he told me, That he took in

good

gave at Mr,
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- Petition ot Application that was was one Paffage in the King’s Letter, that the -
;:noa%ci t%arlgirf‘lhf -and 1if ever GEE did reftore him, King wih’d them to fend Commiflioners o -
and that he was in a Condition; then he fhould Brede?
think of It. _ Major Alford. 1 do not remember that.
1.d Prefident, What did he fpeak of a Non~-  Ahtorn. Gfﬁ. But was there not a Commiffion
compliance with the prefent Government, and by at Mr. Love’s Houfe agreed upon to be fent ?
whom 2 Major Alford, That there was.
Major Alford. 1 do not remember a Word of Altorn. Gen. "W hat was to be the Effe& of that
that. _ Commiflion?
Aitory. Gen. What fatd he concerning the Scots,  Major Alford. It was to advife thofe Men to
nd what he would do for the Minifters, 1t God  jomn with the Scorch Commiffioners, to take Ad-
reftored him? vice with them, and to accept the Presbyterian
Major Alford. 1 cannot tell any fuch Paflfage, Party with the King, in relation to the firlt Pe-
cor do I remember the Particulars of 1. tition that was fent.
Ld Prefident. The Letter was then read, you  Aftorn. Gen. Was Mafter Love there?
fay? _ Major Alford, Mr, Love was there; but I do
Major Alford. 1 {uppole it was the fame that I not know what Mr, Zove or any Man did direct
gave to Mr, Drake, but [ cannot fay it was the In it

fame, becaufe it was not in my Cuftody. Altorin, Gew, Who did corre@ thofe Inftru-
Aitorn. Gen. Did not you propofe to fend Fifty ¢ions?
Pounds to Titus ¢ Major Alford. 1 cannot tell.

Major Alford. For that, I heard fay that there  Aitorn, Gen, Who was agreed to prepare the
was Fif[y Pounds {fent to him, ‘but Wht?thﬁ'l‘ it Commifiion?
were or no, I know nothing of it, nor did con~  Major Alfsrd. T do not know, for I believe it
tribute to it, nor knew nothing of it. - was prepared when it came there; I heard that

Antorn. Gen. Did not you make a Narrative which we call a Commiffion read there, but who
yourfelf of what you received by word of mouth prepared it, or acted in it, I do not know.
from Tilus? | _ _ Attorn, Gen. Did Gibbons bring it ?

Major Alford. It is very like I did fpeak of it  Major A/ford. Who brought it, I cannot tell.
to this Purpofe I tell you of, I <o notknow par-  Atori, Gen. Who were the Commiifioners ?

ticularly what 1 faid, _ Major Alford. As I remember, my Lord 2Vil-
Aitorn. Gen. Did you not receive an Account Zgz@-bby of Parbam, and _fmf%):, and Alderman
from Titus of his Tranfaction at Ferfey € Bunce; and whether Zitys and Graves, 1 cannot
Major Alford, 1 did. ' tell.
Attorn. Gen. Did you not give an Account of  Atorn, Gen. Was this in Mr, Love’s Study, or
that you received from him? _ _ 11 another Place?
Major Alford. He gave itme In writing, and ~ Major #lford. It was in Mr. Love's Study.
I delivered it to Mr. Drage. Attorn. Gen. Was the rough Draught correfted
Atorn. Gen. But when you met at Mr. Love’s by any Body or no? -
Houfe afterwards, did you not make fome Nar-  Major 4lford. I cannot tell whether it was or
rative of what you received from him by word no, nor can I remember any more Particulars of
of mouth? it than what 1 have given you.

Major Alford. 1 had 1t not by word of mouth,  4tori. Gen. What do you know concerning
but only by the Delivery of Papers to me, which any Inftructions to give Power to the Commiffio-

he could not bring over with Safety. ners what to do?
Ld Prefident. Were thofe Papers read ar that  Major Alford. At the fame time there was
Meeting ¢ agreed upon fome Inftructions for them to walk

Major Alford. I tell you, my Lord, 1 delivered by, which was the Subftance of the Petition
them to Mr. Drake, and Drake did read fome which had been formerly fent; that is, it preft

Papers, and I believe they were the fame, but I the King to take the Covenant, and to proiccure
cannot fay they were the fame, for they were out the Ends of the Covenant.

of my Cuftody. Attorn, Gen. Who carried the Commiflion and
Attori, Gen. Who then were there prefent ? Inftruttions ?

Major Alford. There was Mr. Love, Dr. Drake, ~ Major Alford. One Mafon.
Mr. Cafe, Major Adams, Mr. Gibbous, and Cap- Attorn. Gen. Who was that Mafon ?
tain Far. Traly I cannot particularly tell. Major Alford. I did not know him, but I have
Attorn. Geir. "This was given him at Mr. Love’s  heard fay he did belong to my Lord Piercy.
Houfe, and Mr. Love prefent. My Lord, I  ttern. Gen. Was there not at that time fome
pray you ask him whether 7Zitus’s Meflage was Letters propounded to be written to the Queen,
not well approved of, and the Letter of Thanks and Fermin, and to what Purpofe?

to be returned, and the Hundred Pounds in  Major 4Jford. I cannot tell that any of thefe

Money. Things were propounded there, but Mr. Drake
Major Aiford. T do not remember any of thefe had told me, and read to me in Characters fome
Things you fpeak of now. that he had writ thither.

Attorn. Gen. What do you remember was fiid ~ Aitors. Gen. And was it fent?

concerning him there? Major dlford. 1 cannot tell, for it was privatel
Major Alferd. I do not know what was faid ; betwcé]n hin{ and 1. ’ F ’
Idio not know what any N_I:m could fay to them Atorn, Geir, When this Commiffion was thus
which wcge F_’apcrs frpn} him: I do not remem- brought mto Mr. Love’s Study, was there not a
ber any Particulars, it is fo long ago; I believe Queftion propounded, What Warrant have we
now 1t is two Years ago, to fend Commuffioners, and by what Authority,

Attorn. Gen, Do you not remember that this and -what was the Refolution upon it?

Y oL. Il. P Majgr
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Major Alford, Well, it may be, but I do not

remember 1. _
Attorn. Gen. Do you remember who went with

Mafon, when he carry’d away this?

Major Alford. None went with him but I, and
Mr. Gibbons did carry the Papers two or three
Days after that we had them from Mr. Drake,
which was this Commiffion we {peak of, to Graves-
end, to Mafon 5 for he was at Gravefend before,
and there delivered it to him.

Attorn, Gen, What was the Effet of thefe In-
ftructions?

Major Alford, The Subftance of them was, ac-
cording to the firft Commiffion, to prefs them to
ufe all their Endeavour to advife, and take Ad-
vice with the Seorch Commiffioners how to prels
the King to take the Covenant, and to jomn with
the honeft Party, the Church-Party in Scotland
that was the Subftance of it.

Attorn. Gen. Did he not write to you to fend
Money to the King?

Major Alford. 1 heard Mr. Drake once fay,
there was a Letter from my Lord Piercy to that
Purpofe, but Captain T#as himfelf wrote a-
aaint it

Attorn. Gen. What Courfe or Way was pros
pounded to raife Money ?

Major Alford. 1 know of nothing propounded
that way: it was not agreed for me at that Meeting
to go down, but Mr, Drake fuddenly went down,
and Mr, Drake alone fpake to me.

Attorn., Genr, But he told you 1t was the firft
Advice of fome others?

Muajor Alford. Truly, 1 do not remember that
he did tell me {o: there was a Commffion and
Inftruttions read at Mr. Love’s, but whether a-
greed upon there or no, I know not,

Attoru. Gen, What know you fince Dunbar
Fight?

Major Alford. For that, we met at Mr, Love's
Houfe, in his lower Room, and there was a
Letter that was faid came from Maffey, wherein
he gave an Account of that Bufinefs, how many
Men were loft; and that he did write for Armsto
be fent, and in his Letter did propofe a way, as I
remember, to be done by the way of Hofland :
I cannot tell the particular Number of Arms he
writ for, but for Arms: and alfo did fpeak fome-
thing in it concerning his own and Tins’s Ne-
ceflity, they being there Strangers,

Attorn, Gen, There was a Propofition made, of
?ﬂiﬁn;g fome Money for Supply of their Necef-
1ies ¢

Mujor Alferd. It was not to purchafe Money,
or Arms, and any fuch Thing, but only a Pro-
pofition made for fupplying thofe Gentlemen’s
Perfonal Neceffities.

Altorit. Gen. And how was that to be done?

Major Alford. It was to be done among our-
lelves, to raife fome Money; there was Five
Hundred Pounds fpoken of, but it was impofii-
ble for us to do that, for us that were inconfi-
derable Men, being Men of mean Eftates and
g‘ormnes, and o 1t was brought down to 2 lefs

um.

Attorn. Gen. What was that Sum?

Major Alford, Either Two or Three Hundred
Pounds, I cannot tell which.

Abtorn. Gen. How was that to be raifed?
“Mujnr Aiford. It was to be raifed among, our-
elves.

Attorn, Gen, And did you fubfcribe then pre-
fently ?

Major Alford. No, I did not,

Attorn. Gen, Who did?

Major Alford. 1 cannot tell that any did; for
I then faid, that 1 did not know that either my«
felf, or any there, was engaged by Promife to
do any thing for any, only for Captain Tifus;
for he alone was there upon our Intereft, and
therefore 1 faid, for that I would contribute Ten
Pounds,

Attorn. Gen, How much did Mr. Love con-
tribute ?

Major Alford. 1 do not know of any particu-
lar Sum,

Attorn, Gen, Did Mr. Love prels you to con-
tribute, or move any to do it?

Major Alferd. Truly Mr, Leve did move to
Contribution of Money, for the Purpofe we fpeak
of, for the Supply of Titus.

Attora, Gen. When was Titus there?

Major Alferd. 1 cannor tell.

Ld Prefident, Did Mr. Love move it?

Major Alford. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Love. Was [ the firft that did move it ?

Major Alford. Truly I cannot tell that.

Attorn, Gen, Was it at that Time thac the Let-
ters were read ¢

Major Alford. It was at that Time.

Ld Prefident. And was Mr. Love there then ?

Major Alford. Yes, it was at that Time.

Aitorir. Gen, Do you remember of any De-

claration of the Kirk and State read at that
Time?

Major Alford, No indeed, 1 do not,

Ld Prefident. You did fay, that the Letter did
mention for Arms?

Major Alford. But we did all, every one of us
difavow that, but only the Supply of their par-
ticular Qccafions.

Attorn. Gen, Was there no Motion then made
for a Letter to be written to the Church of Scotland,
to prefs them to Union and Moderation ?

Major Aiford. Not that I know of,

Attorn, Gen. Was there not a Motion of fend-
ing Fifty Pounds to Colonel Graves? And what
fucceeded upon it ?

Major Alford. 1 do not know of any Particu-
lar, but only of the Sum to be raifed in refpect
of Ttus,

Aitorn. Gen, How fhould your Three Hundred
Pounds be difpofed of ?

Major Aiford, That I cannot tell.

Aitorn, Gen, For whom was it to be raifed ?

Major Alford." I told the Court that it was pro-
pofed for Maffey, and for Titus,

Attorn, Gen, Did you pay your Money ?

Major A!ford. No, I did not pay it, for I
went out of Town prefently: I did promife Ten
Pounds, and Ten Pounds I paid, but I cannot
tell to whom I paid it, I believe it was paid by
my Man.

Aitorn. Gen. Did he bring it to you upon Ac-
count as paid ?

Major Alford. T believe he did.

Attorn. Gen, What do you know more?

Major Alford. Truly, nothing more.

Attorn. Gen, What do you know of any Corre-
fpondency fettled at Kendal 2

Major Alford, Nothing at all.

Attorn, Gen, This was fince Dunbar Fight. Do
you know of any Letters that came from the
Kirk, or Lowdsn, or Argyle, or any of thofe?

Major Aiford. No, 1 know nothing of that.

Mr, Love.
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Mr, Zove. You confefs you went to Calais, and Pounds 5 you may believe there hath been tamper-

broughe the Copy of a Letter from Tatus: Did |

fend vou to Tius ¢ |
enll\xlzjor Alford. No, I do not lay you did,
Mr. Love. It is alledged by this Gentleman,

that it was fent outr of my Houfe: Did 1 write
any Letter by you 1}rhen you went into Follend?
And upon your coming home, you fay the Copy
of a Letrer was read at my Houle: Will you
fwear I was in the Room at the Time whgn the
T ctter was read? 1 was in_my Houfe, but d1d not
I go often out and 1n? S:_r, I dp {peak thzs, ba-
caufe {fome at the Committee faid [ went in and
ou often: Do vou fwear that I heard the Letter
read in my [Houfe? _ |
Major Alferd. Mr. Leve, it was read in your
Study ; buc that you were there when the Letter

was reas, 1 cannot tell.
Mr. Love. He fays, he cannot tell that T heard

the L.ctter read, -
Major 4lford. I cannot tell whether you might

£0 OUL. _

Mr. Leve. How long ago was this Letter ?

Major Aiford. 1 think it was at that Time the
King wasat Jerfey, | cannotremember the Montb,
] think about two Years ago.

Mr. Love. Was the Leuer fent to me, or was
it received by me? _

Major Alford. 1did not fay it was. I gave
the Paper 1 brought over from Tutus to B illianm
Drake; and fome two or three Days after, when
we did meet at your Houfe, Mr. Drake read
thofe Papers, for he told me they were the fame,
but 1 cannot tell they were the fame.

Mr. Love, 1 defire he may be asked, whether
I did give my Confent to the fending the pretend-
ed Commiflion he {peaks of ?

Major .glford. Truly, there was not any Man’s
particular Aflent asked, that I know of,

Ld Preficient. Was it not agreed in the general,
thut 1 ihould be fent over?

Mr. Love. I pray ask him this Queftion, did
not I diffent from fending the CommuiTion ?

Major Aiford. 1 do nor remember it.

My, Lsve. Forthe Bufinefs of Money, he faith
there was T'wo or Three Hundred Pounds raifed :
Do you affirm I raifed a Penny ?

Major Alferd. 1 did not fay it was raifed, but
I fay it was there propounded to be raifed,

Ld Prefident. 'This he did (ay, there was a Pro-
pofal for the doing of it, and you did perfuade
the doing of it; and he left Ten Pounds with
his Man afterwards,

Mr. Lsve. Ask him whether there was not a
Leuer at that Time read, that Mafey was with-
drawn at that Time in Difcontent from the
Court?

Major Alford. 1 do not remember that Par-
ticular.,

Mir. Love. Ask him whether the Money was
fent to buy Arms, or raife Forees, or only to {up-
Ply his Wants, he not having a Livelihood.

Major Alford. It was not for Arms, but it
;.:.r:fs lor Mafey and Titns, to fupply their Necef-
11C5,

Mr. Love. Buthe proves not that 1 lent any,

Major Alferd. T do not fay you did.

Asturn, Gen. Obferve, Sir, there was a Letter
for Arms at Mr, Love's Houfe, read there, and
Mr. Love did propound Three Hundred Pounds
to be raifed, and prefi’d the dolng of it accor-
dlp:?}" IP}’!ajor Aiford did likewife lend Ten

oL, II.

ing with this Witnefs too. My Lord, ask Major
Alford whether there was not a Letter brought to
him by his Sifter,

Major Alford. My Lord, after T had Liber-
ty for my Wife to cometo me, fhe did give me
a Paper, which I knew was my Sifter’s Hand s
if Ifaw the Thing, I could tell, but it did mil-
carry.

Capt. Fifber. My Lord, the Meffenger is here
in the Court that did take the Letter, of which
this is the true Copy Word for Word.

[ Major #lferd withdraws, and Major Hunting-
ton 15 Called 1nto the Court, and is fworn.:j

Ld Prefidest, What do you know about
Mr. Love’s Houfe, about the Commifiion, and
Captain Titius?

Major Hentington. My Lord, 1 can fay, that
about March, 1648, 1 met with Major Jiford,
and he told me that itus was in Town, and ask-
ed me if | knew him, and I told him Ay; and
asked him where he was. He faid he was new-
ly come frem beyond Sea, {from the Fry, there
being Alderman Bunce. 1 asked him where he
was 3 he faid little to me; but he faid he was
to meet him the next Day at the Swan at Deogy-
gate; that there was to be fome Citizens in order
to thole Gentlemen beyond the Seas, to fpeak
with him there. I did meer, and the Cirizens
there, were Col. Barton, Col, Vaughan, Captain
Maffey, Licut, Col. Bains, and § think Acilis his
Man, I am not certain of ity bur Caprtain Far
was there, The Bufinefs at that Time, was only
Commendations from their Friends there; and
to tell them thar he was commended to their
Acquaintance. And afterwards, he grew into
very high Praifes of the Prince, and that he had
the Knowledge of it froma Scotch Lord, 1 kuow
not his Name, After this, He told them the
Prince was ‘running very unhandfom Courles,
and they had very great Hopes his own Inclina-
tions did not lead him to it, but it was the ma-
lignant Party abour him, that had a Prevalency
over him there, as over his Father heres bur he
did rather incline to join with the [ri» Rebels,
and did believe he would incline that Way, un-
lefs he could get fomething from hence, to di-
vert him from it: whereupon he did hope they
would all fer themfelves that Way, and that he
would get Letters from Perfons of IHunour
( whom 1 know not) that fhould perfuade him
into a good Belicf of the Seets, and to take the
Covenant. After this, there was a Meeting a-
gain, I think fourteen Days aiter, ar the #0hire-
Hart in Breadfiveet, and there I met too, In
the Time that I was there, 1 did underftand there
had been a Meeting or two before, in order to
the Bufinefs; and Captain 7itws «id declare, he
had now again Letters from Perfons of Honour,
to fend to my Lord Pieicy, and did hope they
would fet fomething a-fort amongft themfelves
of the like Confequence: for Afufev, Buuce,
and Graves could fec no Way under the Heavens
but for the King to take the Covenant, and join
with the Seots, and to engage the covenanting Mar-
ty here. And to that Purpofe, he draws iforch
a Paper that did purport that they were bound
in Honour and Juflice, and Conicience, and [
think Loyalty, to mainmin  him in his jut
Rights, if he would go and join with the co-

P2 ovenanting
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venanting Party in Scotland 3 and th_at }fe had]_no
other way under God but that: which if he did,
they took themfelves bound in Conicience
help him to his juft Rights, Upon this, I:.mu!:.
Col. Bains makes objeCtion to it, and faid, It
was a Malignant Bufinefs, and did fear theve was
no good Defign in the thing 3 and tht:reupop
they did break up. I cannot tell whether i
was {ent or no, for they were afraid he would
betray the Bufinefs.

After that, 1 was told by Major Aiferd, that
Bains told them he was very forry he [hould
meddle in that Bufinefs, and thar they would
never profper that had any thing to do with him,
for that the Sins of him and his Father were lo
arcat: whereupon they were very wary, and
afraid he would difcover the Bufinefs. And he,

I think, koew no further. After this, 1 did

uaderftand this Letter was fent to the Prince,
and I was told o by Major Alford, that it was

fent in the name of the feciuded Members, and
Minifters, and Citizens, and Soldiery, and No-
blemen; I remember it ferch’d a great compals,
Wherenpon when the Prince faw this  Leter,
and had it from my Lord Pierey, he ftormed at
i, and faid, Who are thefe Woblemen, and the
roAt? What can they do for me? Can they raife
me Ten Thoufand Men? Whereupon there was
nothing done, bur 7itxs retived himfelf to his
Mother’s Houfe, and there lived about three
quariers of a year, and came to Town alter, and
dii follicit his own Bufinefs. A htle after this,
I heard (upon the Bufinels of the Scots) that
there was ancther Letter fent, that did begin the
thing again, and now the Prince had confidered
ol the thing, and {ent over the Letter, and I
heard, that 1t was to the Minifters of Loudos.
I did not fee the Letter, but #ford and Drake
told me 1t was fo, Afwr this Z#fus was fent
away, and that with a Sum of Money, as |
heard s who lent the Money, I cannot tell, and
what Sum [ know not: but prefently after this,
I commg to Town out of the Welt in March
1046, 1n the begianing of March, the day of my
coming to Leadon, atter 1 had been here one or
two days at moft, 1 met with Holfic’s Man in
Fleet-flreet, 1 do not know his Name; he met
me, and I asked him, what News? He told me,
he wonder’d that I was a Stranger, and asked
him what News: Saith hey; If you come to
Mr. LZeve’s Floufe, you fhall hear News, What
1s your Bufinefs there, faid 17 He faid, it was
to pray together, and to hear the News., |
went about Nine of the Clock, and Prayer was
over, and the Newsa great part was over: but
after I did come there, that I did hear was this
Wiiiiam Drake pulled a Paper out of his Pocker,
that I underftood he had put into his pocker, or
withdrawn, becaule of a Stranger, and after-
wards he took it out again, The Subftance of
the Paper was to this purpofe, as 1 remember,
it was in Characters, and pulled out of his pocket,
and by him read: ¢ In the name of the Com-
¢ miffioners commiffionating the Lord 77illoushby
¢ of Purbam, Major-General Maffey, Colonel
¢ Graves, Captain Tius, and Alderman Bunce,
“ in order to the Treaty, in the behalf of the
¢ well-afleGted Party in Englandy and thefe to
¢ join with the Seetch Commifiioners, according
“ to fuch Inflruftions thae fhould be therewith
¢ inclofed? And fomebody asked him, What
power have we to give fuch a Commiflion? I
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was anfwered again by #illiam Drake, That we
have the King’s Command for jt, and we have
likewife the Authority of fome prudent Parlia-
ment-Men, whom we look upon (faith he) beyond
the power of them that now fi. Whereupon
Mr. Lowve replics, Come, come, let it go; And
after that, I knew nothing,

Attorin. Gen, Repeat that again,

Huitington. When the Queftion was asked,
What power have we to fend or give Commif-
fion? faith Drake, We have the Command of
the King to do it; befides, we have the Authority
of fecluded Members. Whereupon Mr, Leve re-
plied, Come, come, let 1t go,

Mr. Lowe. Pray ask him this one Queftion,

Vere there no Speeches between Hilliam Drake's
Wards, and thofe Words he pretends were

milne ?
Huutington. 1 remember none.

| Huntington withdraws, Licut. Col. Bains is
call*d into the Courr, and is forn, ]

Ld Prefident. Speak what you know of thia
Bufinefs,

Bains, My Lord, concerning any thing that
came from Scetland, 1 never knew any thing,
nor did I ever hear any thing, For Dewygate, I
was at two Meetings at Dotggate: At the firfk
Meeting there was a Perfon that I did not know,
which ar the fecond Meeting 1 was told was
Captain Titus 3 and he at that Meeting (where
there was nine, or ten, or more, or thercabouts)
he did propofc fomething to be done, in order to
the reftoring or preferving the Presbyterian Inte-
relt, by way of Application to the King, as he
called him, and did advife it to be by way of
Petition, and that he conceived to be the only
way to preferve the Presbyterian Intereft in Zng«
land 5 and that way would be the way to aflure
him, he had a confiderable Party in England,
And he did ufe many Arguments, as a Duty
lying upon us by our Covenant, to apply our-
felves to him, and he offered to draw up a
Draught of a Petition againft the next Mezting
to that purpofe: And he faid, it was neceffary
fomething fhould be done by fome Parliament-
Men, and fome Minifters, and {fome Citizens,
that were leading Men, Men that thercby he
might be affired that he had a Party, and that
confiderable. At the next Meeting, which was
fuddenly after, he did produce a Paper, which,
as' I remember, was in Short-hapd; a Petition,
which was to the Purpofe I have hinted. There
were feveral Debates, whether it fhould be figned
or not figned, and myllf and two more dif-
liked it5 and before he read the Paper, he began
to commend the Good-nature of the King, what
good AffeCtions he had; and likewile did fay,
there was a neceffity fomething fhould be done o
the Queen, and Fermin, and Piercys who, he
fard, were our Friends, that they fhould ftir him
up to comply with the Seozch Commuflioners,
And upon this, there was myfelf, and two more
there prefent, (1 hope it fat upon them as upon
myfclt) difliked the Bufinefs; and from that time,
for my own pare, I never heard any thing, The
Heads of the Petition 1 cannat fuddenly remem-
ber. This Paper carries the Sum and Subftance
of the Bufinefs,

[ The Clerk fhews him a Paper, which he had

formerly given in,]
Bams.
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Bains. This Paper, if it be not interlined fince,
't was of my own diftating, and writ with my
own Hand. ~ [He looks upon the Paper. ] I {ee
no alteration made at all.

7 Prefident. And this you deliver upon Oath?
ﬁnfzn. J‘{‘;ﬂs, upen my Oath, to the beft of my

cemembrance.  And as to the Prifoner, 1 can
fay pothing.

[ Bains withdraws. Major Adams is called into
the Court and {worn. |

Ld Prefident. Declare your Knowledge in this
finefs.
Bu_/f“dmm. Touching Alderman Bunce and Majfon,
1 know fomecthing by relation touching the Car-

refpondency with them, |
I.d Prefident. Tell the manner of it.

Adams. T conceive it was carripd on by
Mr. Drake, that is now abfent; and in Scotland,
by one Bailey.

yAHarn. Gen. What do you know of AMafon,
and of Letwers fent by him ¢

Adams. Mapn 1 do know, and I do know he
did receive Letters.

Ld Prefidens, From whom?

Adams. He faid, from wmy Lord Piesey,

attern. Gen, To whom were thofe Letters com-
municated here?

Adams. They were communicated to Mr, Drake,
and by Mr. Diake to mylelf, and Mr. Alford,
and Capt. Polter, and Capr. Fur.

Attorn. Gen, Was Wir. Love privy to it ?

Adams. I canvot fay that, my Lord,

Anori, Gen. Were there not Letters fent to
Scotland to them, and back again hither, about
fending moderate Propofictons to the King ?

Adams. There was fuch Letters.

Ld Prefidenit. Who writ them ?

Adams. That I cannot teil,

Ld Prefident. Fad NMr. Love a hand in them?

Adams. 1 cannot fay he had: I cannot prove a
Negative, 1cannot fay he had not.

Aitorn. Gen. What know you of the Petition
{ent to the King?

Adams. 1 know nothing of it, only, I was
told of it.

Ld Prefident. Who told you of jt?

Adamns. { cannot, my Lord, fix it upan any
particular Man, but I believe § was told of it by
Alford, or Far, or Bgius: for 1 was not there at
that time.

Ld Pyefident. What do you know about the
Meeting at the Swan at Dowgare ?

Adais. My Lord, I was not there.

Attorn. Gen, Then, my Lord, he may tell you
what he doth know,

Adams. My Lord, upon our mecting in fome
place or other, I cannot tell where, T cannot tell
the time, nor the place, but cither at the Swan
i Fififlrcet, or at the Swen at Dosygate, or in
Cateaton-fireet : 1n one of thefe three places, [ can~
not punctually remember.

Attorn, Gen, Who was at that Meeting ?

Adams. Mr. Willism Drake, Captain Titus,
Major 4lifoid, Capuain Far, Captain Patter, and
mylelf; and 1 do not know how many more,
or whether any more ar no.

Ld Prefident, What pafs'd there?

r | & *
.,c’n!am.f: It was there agreed, that Captain 73-
fus {hould 20 over o Ferfoy.

Attgrn. Gen. What was he employed about ?

for High-Treafon,

1CQ
- Adams. The End of his going was to endea-
vour to work an Agreement between the King-
and §cols, according to the Cavenant ; that was
the End that was propounded. And in order to
his gaing, we did agree to furnifh him with Mo-
ney for the prefent, and made fome kind of Pro-
mife to maintain him while he was out,

Attorn, Gen. What Money was he furnifhed
with?

Adams. I cannot be punctual in that, but about
a Hundred Pounds.

Attorn. Gen, Who fhould pay it 2

Adams. 1 paid Twenty Pounds of it, but I
cannot tell who paid the reft,

ttorn. Gen, 'Towhom did you pay it!

Adams, 'To Mr. Drake.

Attorn Gen. My Lord, ask him whether when

this was fent to Ferfey, was there ot a Return
le?
ITHGE §

Ld Prefrdent. Well,
Twenty Pounds gone?

A7 s, This is the Subflance of what I can
fay of his going.

Attorn, Gen. Was this Twenty Pounds that
you faid out of your own, or did you colleCt it
of fome of the reit, or did you gather any of it
agamn ?

Adams, 1 cannot fay that T did.

Ld Prefident. Did you not?

zdaams, My Lord, I tell you the Truth, T do
not know whether I did or no; for I remember,

it was determined that we fhould gather it ac thar
Meeting,

Attorn, Gen. Did not Mr. Love know of the
ColleCtion?

Adams, 1 cannot fay he did; it may be he
might, but I dare not fay upon my Qath, that he
knew of it

Attorn. Gen, Ask him what Return 7#¢s made,
what Anfwer, and what Account he gave.

Adams. Myjor Alford went to Calais to meet
Titus, and Titys did fend Word that the Council
of State heard of his being there, and thereupon
defired that fomebody might be fent over to him ;
for he had fomething to cammunicate, which he
could not well do by writing, and thereupon
Mr. Alford was fent. '

Attorn, Gen. My Lord, ask him where the
Letter was read,

Adams. The Letter that Tizes fent, was read by
Mr., William Dy ake.

Altorn. Gen. Where?

Adams. Athis Houfe, as I think, for T cannot
certainly remember. I did not fay upon my Exa-
mination, that it was read any where.

Attorn. Gen. Whether were not you moved to
go?

Adams. There was fome Motion to that end, I
think in Mr. Lsve’s Chamber.

Ld Pyefident, Who moved it, and where?

Adams. Who moved it, I cannot tell 5 it was
moved, I think, in Mr, Leve's Chamber.

Attoyn, Gen. Was Mr. Love there?

Adams. He was there?

Attorn, Gen, Did Mr. Love move it ?

Adams. 1 cannot fay he did.

Ld Prefidert. He will not fay ir.

Adams. T cannot fay it, upon my Oath.

Altorn. Gen. My Lord, fomuch he faith, That
it was moved in Mr. Love's Chumber: then he
may give you an Account of Mr. Alford’s Return,
and where the Account was given,

go on: Lhere was your

Adams.,
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Adams. The Return of Mr. Alford’s Account
was given at Mr, Love’s ngfe.

Id Prefident. What was 1t ?

Adams. The Return he made in general was
by a Narrative, and a Copy of a Letter from the
King: there was with the Narrative that which
was faid to be the Copy of a Letter from the King.

Ed Prefideit. What was the Subftance of that
Letter?

Adams. The Contents of the Letter, as I re-
member, was, Firft, he exprefs’d a great deal of
Afie&ion to the Miniftry of Exgland in general,
and promifed great Favour when he was in a con-
dition to do it, and defired them to continue fied-
faft in the way they weren.

Attorn. Gen, Was this Letter publifhed at
Mr. Love’s Study?

Adams. 1t was read.

Ld Prefideit, Was Mr. Lovethere?

Adams, Truly, to be pofitive that Mr. Love
was there, I darenotfay; but Mr. Leve was there
at that Meeting, either at the beginning or end-
ing 5 but whether the Letter was read at Mr.! Love’s
Houfe, I dare not {wear, The Narrative from
Fitus was a very long one, and very well drawn,
¥ cannet give an account of it now: the whole
of 1t was after this manner; To give an account
tous of all the Tranfactionsthat had happened fince
his going out of Ligland, he did give an account
of his Ufage by the Cavalier Party, that was a-
gain{t the King’s Agreement with the Seots, be-
cavfe there was fome did incline to his Agrec-
ment with them, and there was another Party was
much againft 1t; and he gave avery large account
of that. After that, he went on defcribing his
Difpofition and Condition.

Atteri. Gen, This was the Subftance of the
reft. 'Was there not fome Propofitions for giving
of Thanks to Tuus, for his {o well managing his
Afhurs chere?

Adams. There was a Motion made by fome-
body.

Ld Prefident, Who made the Motion ?

Adams. 1 cannot tell.

ditorin, Gen, Was not 2 Hundred Pounds more
to be {ent agreed upon there ?

Adams. 1 think fo.

Atorn, Gen. There was more Money contribu-
ted: Who agreed to lend any ?

Adazs. Sir, to that Queftion, I cannot fay who
propounded 1t: but that there was Money fent.

Ld Prefident. Who contributed ?

Adems. 1did my fhare.

Ld Prefident. How much was that?

Adams, As1 remember, Ten Pounds?

Attorn. Gen, To whom did you pay it, and
where did you pay it?

[ Then they thew’d him his Examination, ]

Ld Prefident. Come, look upon it, and be well
advifed.

[ Adzams looks upon his Emmination.]

Adams. 1 paid it to Mr. Drake, at his Father’s
Shop in Cheapfide.

Attorn. Gen. Nexe about the Commiffion and
Inltruttions to be fent, what do you know of
that? When this Letter was read from the King,
and publifh’d in Mr. Leve’s Study, whether was
there not a Commiflion agreed upon, to aive In-
ftruions to treat with the King at Breda ?

Adams. There was a Motion made at My Love's
I’IOUfE, that there fhould be a Commilii-
on and Inflrudtions drawn and fent. The Mo-

tion was made at Mr, Love's Houle; they were
there fpoken of,

Ld Prefident, By whom? Who did the Dia-
lozue run between? Did Mr. Love doit?

Adams, Truly, for my part, I did not then
take fuch fpecial Notice, that I dare ar this time
upon my Outh deliver any thing pofitively againft
any particular Man; but generally all fpake fome-
thing, as I remember.

Attorn. Gen. Was thereany Debateto mend the
Inftructions ?

Adams. Truly, Sir, not as I remember,

Attorn. Ger. Did not Mr, Gibbons bring the
rough Draught of the Commiffion?

Adams, Fruly, I think he did; as I remember
he did. I have fpoken of the Commiflion and
Inftructions that were debated then and there; and
that many of thefe Perfons, here mentioned, were
there: But that fome of them mentioned migit
not be there then, Is very likely.

Attorn, Gen, Was Mr, Love there?

Adains, That he was there fome part of this
time, I am very confident.

Ld Prefident. Wasitin his Study?

Adams. It was.

Attorn. Gen, Was there a Commiffion agreed
upon to be fent ?

Adams. For the Word Agreed, 1 cannot tell
what to fay to it: Agreed holds forth as if a Vote
pafied.

Ld Prefidens. Was there not a general Con-
fent?

Adams. Being upon my Qath, I defire to be
cautious; for 1 muft be tender in fpeaking the
Troch in this Cafes and I do not know what to
make of the Word soreed.

Ld Prefdent. Was it approved of 3

Ad:ms. To my Underftanding, the Thing was
thus: That at fuch Meetings as thefe we were
not ablolutely formal, as if we had been eftq-
blifhed by a Court of Juftice to a& thus; and
that there fhould be Prefaces, and fuch Things,
or fuch Methods obferved, as that any Man un-
dertook to make a Preface either ar the Begin-
ning or Conclufions but it was fpoken to by
many Perfons, and by every Perfon fpoken to:
And 1n this Senfe it was agreed.

Aitorn. Gen. Were there not Inftruétions agreed
upon ; and all this in Mr, Love’s Study?

Adams, It was fo?

Ld Prefident, Were they not read there?

Adams. I think they were.

Ld Prefident. Who read them ?

Adams. I cannor tell who read them ; but they
were read: And I think Mr. Drgke read
them.

Attern. Gen. What was the Contents of the
Commiffion?

Adams. The Contents or the Subftance of the
Commiflion was to this eflect: [This he reads out
of his Examination, |

¢ We, the Presbyterians of Euvland, do au-
‘ thorize you the Lord IWilloughby of Parbam,
* LEdward Maffey, Richard Graves, Sylas Titus,
“and Fames Bunce, to aflit our Brethren the
¢ S{afda Commiffioners in their Treaty with the
‘ King, according to the Inftructions annexed

D'dare pot fivear it in thefe Words: bur to
this purpofe it was. The Subflance of the In-
ftructions were to ufe all the Arguments they
could, to move the King to give the Scorch Sa-
tisfaction, and to rake the Covenant: Such Ar-

Suments



1651 H C. j' C for :;High-Treafon.

were mentioned as the then Condition of
ﬁlﬁq;fim bet afforded, particularly how Things
ftood in England at that time 3 which did all of
them cry out for an Agreement, and gave them
full Power as to all Things; and what fhould be
concluded by them, fhould be confirmed by
thefe here.  But I cannot fay fo; but what Words
were, were to this purpofe, faving this Conclufi-
on, That what was concluded fhould be confirm-
ed here: I do not remember that.
Attorn. Gen. Was there not fome Debate by
what Warrant they fhould at in this Commiffion

and Inftrutions?
mddm;. There were fome fuch Words at the

Meeting,

Ld Prefident. What did Mr. Love fay ¢ '
A’dms.fl cannot remember what Mr, Leve did

fay 5 or whether he faid any thing, or nothing at
t;gu: time: But that there were fuch Words faid, I

have faid; but by whom, I cannot fix it upon
articular Perfon,

an}.’dﬁam. Gen. Was it not debated by what War-

rant they fhould derive Power to themfelves to

{fend this Commiffion ?

Adams, There was fuch Language; but by
whom I cannot fay; [ chink by #illiam Drake.
It was becaufc the King had writ this Letter,
wherein he defired there fhould be {uch Inftructi-
ons. There was fomething {poken of the feclu-
ded Members; but by whom, 1 do not know,
There was a Propofition whether the Authority
fhould be taken from the fecluded Members, or
from fome other.

Attorn, Gen. Did not Mr, Love then fay, Come,
letitgoon?

Adams, 1 dare not fay fo.

Attorn. Gen. Was it not propounded at the
Meceting to write to the Queen, and to Fermin
and Piercy, for them to mediate with the King
to agree with the Scots ?

[ Adams’s Examination was hete again read.]

Adams. My Lord, fo much of this as ] think
to be true, 1 thall own.

Aitorn, Gen, Was not a Letter writ from
Piercy, that a confiderable Sum of Money was
it to be fent to the King? And what Anfiver
was given? Was it not to be done till the King
and the Scots fhould agree, and then to raife the
Money ?

Adams. That there was fuch a Letter writ, I
muft needs acknowledge,

Attornr. Gen, Where wasitread? At Mr. Love's
Houfe?

- Adams. No certainly : T only faw it in Mafoirs
own Hands; and I remember he fhewed ir me.
ttorn. Gen. Next, ask him whether there
was not a Letter written about Auguft laft to
iome here, that Maffey had Back-Friends in Scot-
faird, complaining he could not be promoted there,

Aeams. I did underftand there was fuch a Let-
ter; but by what way, I do not know.

Aitoin, Gen, Was not the Letter communica-
ted at Mr, Leve’s Houfe? And were not you
prefent when this Letter was read at Mr. Love's
Houfe, wherein Maffey complained he had Back-
£riends in Scotlgnd 8

Adams. No certainly: That Letter was not,
t6 my Remembrance, read there. 1 heard of
fuch a Letter, but faw it not.

Attorit, Gei. My Lord, ask him whether he

Was not appointed to draw up fome Letters,

L1}

Adams. There were fome I thould have had 2
hand in drawing,

Atorn, Gen. Who were appointed with you?

Adams. As I remember, Captain Potter, Cap-
tain Mafley, and Mr, Gibboss.

Altorn, Gen. But was there no Meeting upon
1! Was Mr. Love named ?

Adams, Mr. Leve was not named.

Attorn. Gen. Wasthere not one Sterks, a Scorch
Agent here, that kept Intelligence from Seot-
land ?

Adams. I know there was fuch a one, we took
to be an Agent here.

Ld Picfident. Did he meet at your Meetings ?

Adams. Yes, he did meet fometimes.

Atorn, Gen. Was he at Mr, Love's Floufe at
any time?

Adams. That he was,

Attorn. Gen. When the A& came forth for
banithing the Seats, was there not a Colle@ion for
fus Charges? And were not you at Mr, Love's
Houle when it was agreed to?

Adams. 1 was not.

Attorn. Gen. Did you contribute Money ?

Adams. I did contribute ten or rwelve Shillings ;
I cannot tell which.

Attorn, Gen. What Difcourfe upon Dusbay
Fight was there from this Perfon that is already
fpoken of ?

Adams. This is the Thing: if you pleafe to
help .my Memory; for there are {o many Parti-
culars in this Correfpondency, that I cannot tell
whereabours it is I am to fpeak to; I am very
uncertain whereabouts it is I am to fpeak to.

Ld Prefident. Speak the Certainty as it was in

your Breaft,

Adams. My Lord, if it be doubtfu! to me,
how can I be certain, and charge it upon my
Memory ¢

Ld Prefident, Speak the Truth.

Adams, 1 will fpeak the Truth.

Ld Prefident. Do fo then.

[ Here again 4dams looks upon his Exami-
nation. |

Adams. ‘There is fome of it [ did fet down, that
I dare not own upon my Qath: I then did deljver
it fo, when I fet it down,

Attorn, Gen, Did Mr, Love know that this
Scoteoman was the Scotech Agent? Did you nor
take notice that Mr. Love took notice of him ?

Adams. I do think hedid; as far as I under-
ftand, he did.

Attorn. Gen, Did not Mr. Lsve generally tell
you the Caufe of the Meetings?

Adams, No, Sir.

Attorn. Gen, Did you not hear Mir, Love fay
that this Sterks was the Scoreh Agent?

Adas. 1 never heard Mr. Love fay fo; but
I knew this, thatby our ufual Meetings Mr. Lsoe
did underftand him, as [ did, to be the Scorch
Agent.

Attorn, Gen. How often did you meet at Mr.
Love’s Houfe,

Adams. Lcannot tell: It may be feven, or eight,
or ten Times: An uncertain Time,

Attorn, Gen, He was at Mr. Lsve’s Study?

Adams. Whether fo many Times, I know not.

attorn, Gen. My Lord, ask him whether i
was not at Mr, Love's Study, when Money was
propounded to be raifed for Ada/fey and Titus.

Ld Prefident. Was that in Mr, Zove’s Study ?

Adams.
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‘ﬂd:zf}:s. Y cannot tell whether it was in his
Study, ot in the Lower Room: 1 am apt to be-
lieve it was In the Lower Room.

Attorn. Genn Was Mr. Love there?

Adams. Certainly he was there.
Ld Prefident, What was the Contents of the

Letter ?
Adams. The Contents of the Letter I cannot

remember,

Attorn, Gen. Whether did it not declare the
Poverty of his Condition? And was it not after
Dunbar Fight?

Adams. Yes, 1t was,

Attorin. Gen. Was this Letter from Ma/fey read
at Mafter Love's Houfe? Was this for Money ?

Adams, It was.

Ld Prefident. Was it agreed for Money to be
raifed ?

Adams, If you take the Word Apreed as I for-
merly propounded, it was fo, |

Attorn. Gen. How was the Money to be raifed,
and in what manner 7

Adams. It was by thofe that were privy to the
Contribution.

Attorn, Gen. Was not Mr, Leve there? And
did not he write down the Sums that were to be
contributed

Adams. This T muft needs fay, That Mafter
Love had Papers in his Hand, and he did write
fomething 3 but I did not fec what he did write
And every Man did write that was there,

Attorn, Gen, Did not you concetve fo, That
Matfter Love fummed up every Man’sSum? Did
he put the Letter of their Names before them,
when he wrir the Sums?

Adams. T cannot fay that.

Attorn. Gen. Was not there a Letter penned by
Mafter Leve and Doltor Drake?

Adams. To that Queftion, I muft fay there
was a Leteer; but I cannot deliver it upon my
Oath that 1t was penn’d by Mafter Love or
Doétor Drake: But it was taken to be {o; and
I thought it was fo.

Attorn. Gen, To whom was that Letter dire-
ed?

Adams. 1 cannot tell to whom,

Attorn, Gen, To whom was it declared to be
direCted? To whom was It declared to be writ
ten ?

Adams. To the General Affembly and Kirk
of Scotland.

Ld Prefident. Was this at Mr. Love’s Houfe
too e

Adams. It was fo.

dttorn, Gen. Was Mr. Love prefent, and did
approve of it 2

Adams. Mr. Love was prefent at fome time of
this Mceting.  The, Reafon why I thought it
to be of Malter Lsze’s or Do&tor Drake’s draw-
ing, was nothing but merely the Language of it,
it being 1n order to promotethe Ends of the Co-
venant 5 and all the whole Language was couch-
cd to that purpoie ; and taking notice of the want
of Relpett to Mafley and the Englifh, and of
their being beaten.

Attgin, Gen, My Lord, this is very high: For
he tells you this Letter was approved of, and di-
reCted to be fent ; and this was after Dunbar Fight,
after we were engaged in Blood.

[Hlere Adams read out of his Examination, as
followeth + ]

Adams. There was alfo a larse Letter, in the
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nature of a Declaration, penn’d by Mafter 74ve
and Dr, Drake, and approved of by moft of the
Presbyterian Party, Minifters, and others, and
directed to the General Affembly and Kirk of
Scotland, fobfcribed by none: Which contained
the Subftance of what was declared by 7iws and
Maffey; but durft not promife any grear Sums
of Money till they appeared more confiderable,
and grew nearer Action. The Bufinefs required
higher Spirits than was for the prefent; and the
Bufinefs required a confiderable Sum: But to
leave no Means unattempted when the Bufinefs
was feafible. [So far he reads.) |

Attorn. Gen. Major Addams is now upon his
Qath to tell you,

Adams. My Lord, as well as I remember, it
did put forth much after this fort: Bur I cannot
{wear it in thefe Words; but that is the Sub-
ftance of 1.

Attorn. Gen. Was not this asreed and declared
at Mr. Lsve’s Houfe, that fuch a Letter thould
be written to the Honourable Commitee, and to
the Kirk?

Adams, 1 anfwer that, after the fame manner
as all other Things are agreed at fuch Meetings
as this 1s: But I have no ground, and do not

know why I fhould fay Mafter Lsve and Door
Drake penn'd ir.

Attorn. Gen. Ask him for the Subftance of the
Letter ; whether it were not as he hath told you ;
and whether he did not fay they could not pro-
mule 2 confiderable Sum of Money.

Adams, Certainly, either in that Letter, or
fome other, there was fome fuch Expreffions.

Ld Prefident. Well, it was about that Time,
and i that Letter, or in fome other Letter, and
at Mr, Leve’s Houle,

Attorn, Gen. My Lord, ask him if there was
not an Agent come from Scetland, and a way laid
at Kendal for a Correfpondency between thefe
Gentlemen here and fome of Seotland ; and whe-
ther one Groves was not fent thither,

Adams. That was fomething obfcure: That
there was fuch a Thing, I do verily believe, be-
caufe it went amongft us for a Truth; but how
to make it out for a Truth, upon my OQath I
cannot tell,

Ld Prefident. Did Mr, Love know of it?

Adams. I do not know,

Atlorn. Gen, Ask him what he knows con-
cerning Colonel Bamjfield’s Man coming hither.

Adams. Concerning that, 1 know nothing:
But I confefs 1 had fome ften that at that time
there was fomething found. And this s all 1
can {ay to that; I cannot guefs the Time.

Attorn, Gen, Wasit after the Fight at Dunbas ?

Adams, Yes, that it was.

Attorn, Gen, Were the Meetings at Mr. Love's
Houfe?

Adams, I cannot fay all: But all that I know
of were,

Attorn. Gen. Ask whether upon the larpe Let-
ter Myffey did not write that Things were well
fettled in Scotland.

Adams. Many of thefe Things were under-
{tood fo, and taken for granted amongft us; but
I can fay no otherwife: I choughe it to be fo;
but I know not.

Attorn. Gen. Were younot prefent at Mr. Love's
Houfe, when thefe Leters were read, that they
were In a hopeful Condition ?

Adams, 1 cannot fay fo,
Ld



1651. H.C.J.

fay?

7.d Prefident. What can you

ffdrzms.fﬂs before, That 1t went for a Trugh

amoneftus: And that is as much as I can fay to it.
‘ /Ift?m. Gen. Was there not a large I eteer 1n-
i . L

viting your Friends to Union: |
Adg:zgm. 1 underftand the other Letter to be this

ou propound o meE NOW.
’ A;I‘;ﬂrg. Gen, Now we fpeak of a Letter from

an Buice, and others.
AI?;E::::. I cannot [peak particularly to that; for
1 did not fee them; but they were told me by one
or other of thofe that v.ir_ere'of the Correfpondency

d this is all 1 can lay.

AI},;J Prefident. What }is the Truth? Do you
conceive it is fo? _

Aiorn. Gen. My Lord, we fhall not trouble him
wich that. My Lord, ask him one Queftion
more: What did Mr. Lsve tell you, that if the
Presbyterians got the upper hand agmn?

tdams. Thofe words, I think, did but‘ amount
to this, Thatif the Presbytertans were in Arms
aoain, by the Blefling of God, the Cavaliering
Pﬁrty might be prevented {rom’ getting the day.

Ld Prefident, Who do you mean by the Cor-

{pondents?

" %(fﬁ?fﬁ. By Correfpondents I mean Alford, Potter,
Far, &c.

Id. Prefident. Was not Mr., Love oneof them?

Adams. 1 teok him to be fo, my Lord.

Mr. Love. My Loid, I pray ask him, whether
any of thefe pretended or fuppofed Letters were
ever received by me, any one of them, or that I
writ one of them, or mended one of them.

Adams, 1 cannot fay that ever 1 faw him do
any fuch Things nor did I ever fee him write
any.

Ld Prefident. But you faw the Letters there?

Adams, That T have fud.

Mur. Love. Ask him whether I gave my Con-
fent to the fending away of this he calls a Com-
miffion and Inftructions, about the time of the
Treaty at Breda.

Adams. No, I will not fwear that; and upon
my Oath I canrot.

Ld Prefidens. Wil you not? I will prefs you
to nothing, You faid even now, you did not
lknow he did {end them away; but you did fay
he was privy to them, and to the Debates of
them. Did he declare any Difient?

Adais. 1 cannot fay that.

Mr. Love, Will you ask him this Queftion?
Whether he read the Lerters that he prerends
were fent into England or Scotland, or whether
he heard them read?

L4 Prefident. That he fwears.

Adims, 1did not fwear that thefe were the Con-
tents of them exally: 1 was there when thefe
Letters were read.

Mr. Love. He only heard them read.

Ld Prefident. 1f there were half a fcore that
had Correfpondency, and received Letters, and
come together, and one of the moft confiding
Men read them; will any Man fay that he will
not believe thefe were right read? Such a Hear-
fay as this, is fuch a Hear-fay as you may take
notice of.

Mr. Love. But let him prove how it was a
Corrcfpondency on my part.

Adams. 1 did not fay that Mr. Love was one
of the Correfpondents; 1 deny that I faid fo: I

faild T conceived him to be fo3 but that is not
that he was {o, -

Vor, 1I.
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" Id Prafident, They did debate together, and
met together, and received Inftruttions; and

therefore he may very aptly conceive he was a

Correfpondent.
Mr, Love. Doth he {wear that I affented ?

Adams. 1 did not {wear fo.
Mr. Love. He faith Money was fent to Tifus s

pray ask him whether by Agents I employed.

Adams. I capnot fay fo.

Mr, Love, Here is no Proof at all that ever 1
received Letter, or writ or fent any Letter,
Pray ask him if I knew before they came to my
Houfe, that they would bring fuch Letters with
them, Do you {wear that } was prefent in the
Room at the time that the Letters after the De-
feat at Duynbar were {ent, wherein there was, as
you fay, a Promife of Affiftance?

Adams. You were there fome part of the
while,

Mr. Leve, Ask him whether he was not
threaten’d with Death in cafe he would not, and
promifed Favour in cafe he would, bring in Evi-

dence againft me.

Adams. I cannot fay I was threaten’d with
Death to that end.

Mr, Love, 1 fhall bring a Witnefls that fhall
prove from his own Mouth, that he hath con-
fefs’d, If he did not bring in Evidence againft
me, he fhould be hanged. ,

Adams. It is true, Percival did come to me,

and 1 did fay to him, That upon Examination, I

did fay, if 1 were not ingenuous, I was threaten’d
to be hanged.

Attorn. Gen, When a Man is a Traitor, and
doth confefs he deferves Mercy. |

Mr. Love, Ask him whether he hath rot re-
ceived Money to give in this Information apainft
me,
Adams. 1 have not.

Mr. Leve. Did not fome Meflenger come to
you, fome Months ago, from fome Members of
the Council of Stare, and told you you were
poor, and fhould be ruined if you did not con-
fefs it? He had three Meflengers fent unto him
from the Council of State, or fome of them,
that told him, If he would not confefs, he thould
be ruined.

Aitern. Gen, Did you receive Money, or were
there Promifes made to you, to tetify againft
Mr., Love?

Adams., Upon my Qath 1 did not.

Mr, Love. Hath he never come to Mr, Scot's
Chamber? Did he not come a Month before I
was committed, being brought there by Major
Cobbet? And whether he hath not received Mo-
ney from Major Cobbet? 1 defire that Major Cub-
bet may be called upon his Oath, to know whether
he hath not given him Money to bring in Infor-
mation againft me: For he hath taken notice of
all Fafts, and of all Things done, and hath
brought ail to Mr. Scot. 1 know, by Informa-
tion, that this Adams is a hired Witnefs. Sir, this
Man is a Tobiab and a Sanballat : Some Men have
hired this Man againft me. I defire Major Cebber
may be called.

Ld Prefident, He did, and might do it: But
did he it to teftify againft Mr. Losve? [ hope a
State, that watches the Nation, may watch for the
Safety of a Nation.

[Mr, Cobbet, a Major of the Army, is called
into the Court, and is fworn.]

Q. Mr.
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Mr. Love, Pray ask him whether he hath not
at any time, within this three Months, given

any Money to Major Adains, to acquaint Mr. Sea,
or the Council of State, with this Dclign, as ’us
called.

Major Cobbet. My Lord, I muft and do deny
that which this Gentleman doth aver: And truly
T wonder at his Boldnefs, in the Prefence of this
Horourable Court. I do know Major Adas,
and have known him a long while; and commi-
ferating him, as being a Prifoner, 1 lent him ten
Pounds; but for no confideration that he fhould

etray Mr. Lsve, orany Man, I paid the Mo-
ney to his Wite. |

Mr. Love. He paid it, he faith; how then did
he lend it? And he paid ic to his Wife: That
was to cover the Bribery. But did not you dil~
cover to this Man, if he would reveal 1t to
Mr. Scot, what Recompence he fhould have of
him? Did not you, walking 1n the Fields with
him, defive him to reveal what he knew; and
promifed him if he did, he thould be a ¥an pre-
ferred ?

Major Cobbet, 1 have been acquainted with
Major Adems this four or five Years, and met
with him in the behalf of the Presbyters, un-
derftanding there was {omething was driven on
dangerous to tht Commonwealth; and I thought
I was bound in Duty to requite them, if it wers
poflible, foi their Pains of Difcovery. And I
Iaboured with him that he would deai /o hoseft-
ly with himfelf and the Commonwenlth; as to
let the Commonwealth know what he did Lnow
of this Defign, Accordingly he gave ma foma
notice; and I faid to him, Major #doms, it i
find you ingenuous, if there be any thing thnt |
can do for you, I {hall be rcady to ferve you by
Night and by Day.

Mr. Lewe. It appears then that the ten Pounds
was not lent to Major Adams, butr was paid him
for his Difcovery: So that ’tis clear he is a
hired Witnefs.  And have you not brought him
to Mr. Scot’s Chamber with Promiles of Pre-
ferment !

[ No Anfwer to that Queftion.]

[ The Licutenant of the Tower is commanded
to withdraw his Prifoner; and the Court
adjourns till to-morrow. ]

The Jecond Day's Proceedings, July the 21/
| 1051,
HE Court being fat, Colonel /7%f, Lieute-

nant of the Tezwer, was commanded to bring
forth his Prifoner; and Mr. Lsve was broughe
to the Bar.

Malfter Jaguel was called into the Court, and
the Clerk tendered him his Oath ; and Mr. Faguel
fpake to the Court to this purpofe::

That there were many Oaths abroad, and he
could not tell what to fay to them; and le de-
fired to be exculed. The Lord Prefident told
him that he could not be excufed. Mr. Faguel
faid he was a Prifoner, acculed of the fame OF
tences that Mr. Love was accufed of; and that
he concetved he was not a competent Witne(s
againft him, The Court again piefs'd him to
take his Oath, Mr. Faguel faid that he durft not
in Confcience fvear againft Mr, Love; and there-
tore delired it might not be prefs'd upon him.
The Coure fill perfifted in it, that he mutt rake
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his Qath, and witnels what he knew. He an-
{wered, he would fpeak the Truth of what he
knew, as weli as if be was under an Oath. The
Court told bim that that could not be: for if he
did not fwear, what he fhould fay could not be
received as any thing in matter of .Evidence.
Mr, faguel ftill perlifted in his Refufal, When
the Court faw he could not be otherwife pre-
vailed with, they fined him five huadred Pounds
for refuling to iwear. And Mr. Faguel, after he
was withdrawn out of the Courty, was called in
again, and prels’d to take his Oath; and was
told that the Court had fined him five hundred
Pounds for rctufing to fwear; and again asked
him whether he would {wear, Mr. Faguel then,
when the Oath was read to him, did not fwear
in that manner as the other Witnefles did, but
only put his Hand to his Buttons. And when
Mr., Lsve asked him whether he was under an
Quth, he anftwered that he was as good as under
an Quth. Bue the Court not being fatisfied with
that Anfwer, prefs’d him further ; and then he did
fay he was {worn, and was under Qath.

Ld Prefident. Declare now what you know of
this Bulinefs,

Mr. Fagied. My Lord, for the Faper I was
examined abouty as for knowing Titus, | never
faw him 1 my Life but one quarter of an Hour
i a private Houle, and I knew nothing of his
Buiinefs any where,  For the other, 4/ford com-
ing over with Letters, { wasar Mr. Leve's Houle,
and waen' 1 was there, there were feveral Men
there.

sttorn, Cein Inwhatpart of Mr, Lewe’s Houfe?

Seguel, I concetve in his Chamber; for I went
up 1o feveral that were there, whofe Names [
can pontively fay, {or two or three of them,
though I cannot remember the other abfolutely,
though I conceive moft I have named in my Ex-
amination were there; Capt. Pefter was there,
and Doctor Drake and Major Aiford, and
Mr., Love was there fometimes, theugh divers
times he went out, fome coming to fpeak with
him.

Attorin, Gen. Wasthere not a Copy of a Letter,
fard to be fent from the King, read there?

Faquel. I remember no fuch thing,

Attorn. Gen. Was there not a Narrative ?

Jaguel, Yes, from Titus, wherein he declared
the King’s Inclinations to make peace with the
Seots, but that s wicked Counfel about him did
hinder ir.

Aitorn. Gen. Was not this of what Tites had
relaced from Terfey, the Narrative of what had
pals’d between him and che King there?

Jaquel, 1 think it was.

Attorn, Gen. Was not Major L4lford fent to re-
ceive an Account from him at Calais ?

Saquel, William Drake did tell me fo aftcr-
wards,

dttorn. Gen, Did Major Alford deliver no Ac-
count there?

Jaquel. 1 think it was Major Hlferd read the
Narrative,

Altern. Gen,
of Mouth?

Jaguel, Truly I cannot remember.

.:jf'fﬂ?‘ﬂ. Gen. You cannot remember It was
read: |

Jaguel. Yes, 1 am fure it was sead, and at
Mr. Lowe's Heule, |

Did he make no relation by word

dttorn,
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Autorn. Gen, And he was prefent fomegmes?

Yool Yes, fometimes.
}7‘1’::%??;. Gen, What Money Was there agreed

+non to be provided for Tilus ¢
Jp;fljzgffci IP know of none: It Was moved by
Captain Potter, that there might be forty Pounds,

I know of none, nor was It agreed by
ﬁi‘ Love, Mr. Drake; of myfelf, that we fhould

at all. ,
laYA‘ig':';?. acng;z. Did you not meet with Z7illiam

-ake. and defireto goalon with him to fee Zuus ¢
P ;ffg’;;? I did fo,gbut I%hink Drake dc[ired it :
I met him in Vet gate-Mfzrkef, and, {aith he,
I am going to fee Te/4s, O along with me. I
fid 1 never faw him, nor did I know him: Says
he, You fhall not ftay at all. Whereupon he
went and found him 1 2 Cheefemonger’s Houlfe
in Newgate-Maiket.

itorn. Gen. What Difcourfe had you ?

Faguel. He faid he was newly come out of
Hollaid, and he had been with the King, and
he was a Man of excellent Parts for his Years;
~d that he was inclinable to what was good, but
that he had fuch defperate evil Counfel about
him 5 and that he did much pity him, and that
his Clergy efpecially was wicked: and he pro-
pounded nothing to us, nor did I ever fee his
Tace afterwards; and this is about two Years and
And for any other Meetings at the

a half ago.
I never met

Seoain-Tavern, or for any Agents,
him, or faw him.

Attorn. Gen. Do you not remember at any
Meeting, that there was Money propounded for
Captain itus, or for Alford’s bemng fent over to
Calais ? Speak what you know of that, and by
whom it was told you.

Faquel. Major Alford him{elf told me he was
to meet his Son, and he went over upon that
{core 5 but after he was gone, #illiam Drake told
me he was gone to fec or meet Captain Titas, 1
am not certain of the Words: and when he did
come again, which was the next time I heard of
him, then #illiam Drake comesto me, and defired
me to go along with him, for I think he went
up and down to every Man,

Attorn. Gen. Youthink then that #illiam Drake
was the prime Man,

Faguel. Yes, he was the Actor and Agent
that moved all.

Attorn. Gen. When Alford returned, he defired
you to go with him ?

Faquel, To Mr. Love’s Houle,

Attorn, Gen. What was done at Mr. Love's
Houfe?

f?rzgzrel. There were fome Papers read, which
Alford, as T take it, read, or William Drake,
am not certain which; but read it was of a re-
fation, that Tifys came out of Ferfey, and had
{een the King there, and the Scotch Commiffio-
ners; and that the King had a great Inclination
to agree with the Scotch Commiffioners, and that
he was a Man of excellent Inclinations and Parts,
and had a great Defire to agree; but his Coun-
{el, and wwkeq Crew about him, would not let
him: and he faid, as I remember, That the King
was a l_ﬂnd of a Prifoner with them there, and
faid, his Counfel did hinder him, or elfe, if he
were from them, he would agree with the Scotch
Commiffioners.

Attorn, Gen, You fay this Paper was read, this

Narrative was read in Mr, Leve's Houfe 5 was not
Mr., Love prefent?

Vour, llL
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Faguel, T am not able to fay he was: when1
came in, I remember he was not in the Room,
and he was there two or three times while 1 was
there, but he wag feveral times called out.

Aitorn. Gen. Do not you know there swas
an Agreement of a Letter written back to 7i-
s ¢

Faguel. X can remember no fuch thing, but 1
think Williom Drake told me {o, as I remember,
but that was two Years ago, I do verily believe
by what I conceived, was of his wtiting.

Ld Prefident. 1 could wifh that Mens Conici-
ences could not be fcrupled to believe fo much
of 2 Minifter, more than of a Magiftrate; 1 hold
it pernicious Doétrine for any Man to think he is
bound more to obey the Minifter than the Ma-
giftrate ; Iask you then before the Magilftrate here,
who was prefent at that Meeting?

Faquel. William Drake, I am {ure, and Major
Alford was there, and Captain Potter, and {eve-
ral others, as I remember, Mafter Fenkins.

Attorn, Gen, This was in Mr. Lsve’s Houlfe,
was it not in his Study?

Faguel. 1 cannot tell that, I fay asI conceive,
that Mafter Fenkins and Mafter Cafe were there,
but pofitively I cannot fay it; and Mr, §ackfor
and Mr. Nalton, 1think,

Attorn. Gen. What fay you of Mr. #atfon?

Faquel. 1 think he was there.

Atorn, Gen, What fay you of Mr, Herring ¢

Faguel, 1think he was.

Attorn, Gen, What fay you of Mr, Cauton €

Faguel. In truth I cannot tell.

Attorn. Gen. What fay you of Mr. Robinfon ?

Faguel. 1 think he was.

Attorn, Gen., What fay you of Mr, Drake?

Faquel. Yes.

Attorn, Gen, Was Colonel Zaughan there ¢

Faquel, Yes, I conceive he was there.

Attorn. Gen. Was Mr., fackfon there ?

Faquel. Yes,

Attorn. Gein. Were Captain Far and Captain
Potier there?

Faguel. 1 believe fo.

Attorn, Gen. Was Mr. Gibbons there?

Faguel. 1 cannot tell,

Attorn. Gen. What fay you of Mr. Sterks?¢

Faguel. No, Sir, 1doe not know it.

Attorn. Gen. Did you not know him to be the
Scotch Agent? Was he not taken among you to
be an Agent from Scotland ?

Faquel, Yes, he was a Scotchman.

Attorne. Gen. And for Contribution of Money,
what Money did you pay, and to whom?

Faquel. Two five Pounds to Mr, Drake.

Attorn. Gen, For what Ules?

Faguel, For charitable Ules.

Attors, Gen, Then he asked it of you fo, or
for that purpofe; butafterwards, what did you
learn it was employed about

Yaquel. Sir, he did not tell me how he did em-
ploy this Money ; but afterwards 1 heard him fay,
that he had fent Titus Money.

Attorn. Gen. What did you contribute to $terks’s
going into Scotland ¢

Faquel. Ten Shillings.

Attorn Gen, And who elfe did contribute, that
was there? And how much was the Sum that
was colleCted

Faguel. 1 cannot tell,

Attorn. Gen, How much do you guefs, or
have heard?

Q.2 Taquel,
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15uel. Four or five Pounds 1 think.,

?fr!{:m Gen. Ask him, who gave the Scotch-
aren Money ¢ _

Yaguel. Truly, I did give feveral Scotchmen
Money, both to poor Minifters, and others that
were banithed by the A&, becaufe I knew they
were very poor, and knew not how 0 get away s
and I did it out of Charity towards them. |

Ld Prefident. Becaufe the State had an 1l Op-
nion of them, therefore you had a good Opinion

of them. o
Faquel, There was one Minifter that had twelve

Children that was banifhed. _

Attorn, Gen, Were you at any Meetings at
Mr. Love’s after Duithar Inght?

Faguel. No, not 1.

Attor. Gein. At what Fafts were you at? And
who officiated at thofe F :}{’rs?

Faguel. 1 was av Major Adans’s and Colonel
Barioir’s.

Aitorir. Gen, Who did exercife at thofe Fafts?
Was Mr, Love, Mr. Feikins, Mr. Cafe, any of
them ¢ _

Fagnel. 1 believe they were, I conceive fo, I
profels I cannot remember; I believe Mr. Fen-
Lins was there.

Artorn, Gein. Was not Mr. Lsve one of them ¢

Faguel, Yes, he was.

Aitorin, Gerr. What was the Occafion of thofe
Falts?

Fequel. 1 know no particular Occafion, but
for the Good of the two Nations.

Atiorin. Gen, How do yau know they were
for the Good of the two Nations? Was 1t not
for an Agreement between the King and the
Svots ¢

Faauel. 1 confels it was for the Good of both
Nations, as both Nationsare the Church of God,
and do both profefs themfelves Proteftants, and
of one Religion ; and I concerved it was my Du-
ty to pray for the Good of them both,

Attorin, Geir. But was there not fome Exprefli-
ons for a Blefling upon the Treaty at Breda?

Jagrel. 1 cannot remember fuch Expreffions ;
for in fuch Dutics I defire to have my Heart lift-
ed up unto God: And, my Lord, it is a great
while ago,

Ld Prefident, Will you fay your Heart is lifted
up unto God, when yowr Underftanding is in your
Heels?

Jaguel. My Lord, I do not remember one
Paflage in Prayer a Week after.

Attorir. Gen. That is in ordinary Meetings,
but this 1s for both Nations: but by what did you
know that' this was for the Good of both Na-
tions, and why was it pretended to be for the
(Geod of both? And, my Lord, why they fhould
not meet before, bur jult ac that time, and ata
private Faft ?

Jaquel, 1ehink, that fince the Nations of Eng-
fand and Scotlond were at odds, I have been at
twenty Ifafts.

Attorir. Geir. My Lord, ask him, Whethet he
were not late with Potzer, and did not meet with
hm about I.ctters {rom Bamfield, and whither
they went to read them ?

Faguel. This was about Febiuary or Mareh
laft, he told me he received Letters, and defired
me to go along with him to Mr, Lsve's, and
cafter Dr. Drafe came in, and then thefe Let-
ters were reads and Ipr{)fcfs I know not from

whence they came, nor the Man; and fo did
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Mr, Love declare, That he never faw, nor knew,
nor heard of Banifield before.

Attorn. Gen, Did he not make mention of Par-
ties in Scotland, That one Party was for the King,
and another for the King and Kirk, and a third
neither for King nor Kirk ? ~

Faquel, Yes.

Atorn. Gen, But who were thofe he named,
that were Men for the King ?

Jaquel. 1 think Hamilton, and his Party,

Attorn. Gen. And who for the King and Kirk ?

Faquel, drgyleand Lefley.

Attorn, Gen, And who neither for King nor
Kirk?

Jaquel, Straxphan and Car,

Attorn. Geir, What did hetell you of the young
King’s efcaping ?

Faquel. Something there was in thar, but he was
tetch’d back again.

Attorn. Gen. What faid he of Argyle?

Jaguel, Nothing at all, as I remember.

dttori, Gen. Was there not an  Expreflion,
That they were now agreed to receive in the whole
Nation, unlefs it were thofe that were notorioufly
{candalous and excommunicated ?

Faquel, 1 believe there was.

Attoris. Gein, Did it not mention five thoufand
Pounds for providing of Shipping?

Faquel. Yes, in the Narrative or Letter,
whether there related at that time, I know not.

Attorn. Gen, And what mention was there made,
who were fit to command in England, if that Par-
ty fhould come from thence into England ?

Faguel, T conceive there were three Noblemen.

Altorir, Gen. Name them,

Fagquel. My Lord of Suffolkt, my Lord of
Warwick, and my Lord of AManchefter, or either
of them.

Aitorn, Gen. That was propounded by Bamfield,
but I hope thofe Lords were more noble than to
do any {uch thing, Was there not another Let-
ter that came with that of Basmfield’s, fent by my
Lord Aigyle, and it was only, That therc fhould
be an Approbation of him? And was this Let-
ter likewife read at che fame Time, and at the fame
Place?

Faquel. Yes, my Lord. :

Attorn. Ger. What was then propounded for
Money to be raifed for Bamfield?

Faguel, Truly, Captain Potter did make men-
tion for forty Pounds to be raifed, ten Pounds
for Colonel Bamfield’s Man, and thirty Pounds
for Bamfield himfelf: but that Bufinefs at the
reading was wholly declined, and abfolutely re-
fufed by all, to act any thing in that relation in
which it was fent over,  Whereupon Captain Pos-
ter did move, That if nothing were done in that,
whether it were not convenient to fend the Mef-
{enger fomething to bear his Charges: fays he,
If you will pay the Meflenger ten Pounds, and
fend Bamfield thirty Pounds, 1 will give the Mef-
fenger the tenPounds, But there was no Agree-
ment, nor Conclufion I know of, no Bill of Ex-
change was fent, bur Captain Poiter faid he would
lay down ten Pounds.

Aitorn. Gen, But no body fpake againft Cap-
tain Polter's laying down of ten Poundss and it
was propounded to you to lend ten Pounds, and
you faid, you would confider of it: But did Poi-
ter lend it?

Jaquel. 1 cannot tell that, my Lord, he faid
he would do i,

Aitors,
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Aiorn. Ger, My Lord, let now Mafter Faquel

what was the Caufe why they did refufe
gld};ﬂ;nyv thing in the Letter about five thoufand
Pounds ; what was the Caufe upon the Debate
between you at Mr. Love's Houfe, why you did
refufe to do any thing about the five thoufand
Pounds?
Faguel. The Debate was foon over, for we
abiolutely refufed it, we would not meddle in I,
nor liking the bufinefs; it was a Trouble, 1 am

confident, to them that heard it read.
atorn. Gen. You do not remember that ever

any body did acquaint the Magiftrate with the
Defign in working from Scotland ¢

Faquel. No, not I,

Jittern, Gen, Did not fome fay, that Bamfield
was a Malignant? _

Yaquel, I cannot tell, but I never heard of him
before.

Attorn, Gen, Were you not told he was a Ca-
valier, and of the King’s fide, and that that was
the true Reafon why they would not truft him ?

Faguel, 1 do not remember any fuch thing.

frtorn. Gen. Did Mr. Love agree for ten Pounds
for Bamfield’s Man, and thirty Pounds for Bam-
Jreld ¢

Faquel, No, I cannot fay fo. ~

Attorn, Genr, Did not Major Alferd tell you,

upon his Return from Calais, That he was fent -

thither to take an account from thence?

Faquel, He did not, but William Drake did
tell me that he was gone to Calais to fpeak with
Captain T#us.

Aitorin, Gen, And to take an account of the
Tranfaction of Ferfey.

Faguel. Truly, Sir, I cannot fay that; but
William Drake told me he was gone thither to
fpeak with Z7z#s: and this 1s above two Years ago
that 7illiain Drake told me fo.

Attorn, Gen. To what end ?

Faguel. To tell and hear News,

Aitorn, Gen, What did he do more?

Fagrel. 1 profefs in the Prefence of God, T can-
not tell, Sir, I befeech yous; for in the Paper,
I told you before, there were fome Circumftances,
and fomething that I cannot fay; but it was to
this purpofe, To fpeak with Tuus, to hear the
News from Ferfey; but 1 cannot fay certainly
that Word,

Altorn. Gen. We do not prefs you to the
Word, but to the Effett of it: My Lord, I
think Mr. Faguel hath given an account already,
that this Relation was at Mr. Love’s Houle.
Mr. Faquel, let me bring one thing to your Re-
membrance, 1f ‘it be true: At;your Meeting at
Mr. Love’s Houfe upon this bufinefs of Bamfield’s
Narrative, you fay, thirty Pounds was moved to be
lent to Bamfield, and ten Pounds to his Man.

Saguel. Yes, by Captain Potter.

Attorn. Gen. And when it was then faid, it
was thought fit by Mr, Love, Mr, Drake, and
Captain  Potter, that it fhould be .fo done;
whether did you not all agree it fhould be fo
done?

Jaguel. No, there was no Agreement, but it
was thoughr convenient, or to that purpofe,

Altorn. Gen, 1t was thought convenient by all
the Company prefent ?

Jaquel. Truly, Sir, there was not much re-
gard taken in that bufinefs, nor was there much

done; for we did not ftay long, but th
fuch Words. y iong, but there were
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Atiorn. Gen. But by all prefent?

Jaguel. Yes, there were fuch Words,

Altorn., Gen. Whether were not fome Friends
at Dinner at Dowgate, and was not Aafon there?

Jaquel. My Lord, there wasa Gentleman there,
I cannot fay who he was, nor did [ fee him be-
fore or flince.

Attorn. Gen. Who did they tell you he was?
Did they not tell you Mafon ?

Jaguel. 1 profefs 1 cannot remember that, nor
can I tell, but I concelve it was fo,

Altorn, Gen. In your Examination you fay it
was Mafon?

Jaguel, 1 faid, I conceived fo.

Aitorn. Gen. Why did you believe {o?

Faguel. 1 cannot tell, but as I remember,
William Drake told me {o.

Attorn. Gen. Whether when Bamfeld’s Letter
came, and the Letters from my Lord of reyle,
Lowdon, and others came, was there not a Lii-
ter from Bailey?

Jagquel. 1 donot remember, my Lord.

Aitorit, Gen. Nor from the General Affembly?

Jaguel. 1 do not remember any fuch thing,

Aitorin. Gen. Bethnk your felf, you are upon
your Oath, whether he that brought the Leters
from Banfield, did not bring Letters from Bailey,
and from the General Affembly?

Jaguel, 1 cannot remember there was any fuch
thing {poken of there.

Aitors. Gen. Was there no Expreffion of Let-
ters of Thanks for the good Affection of the
Presbyterian Party here, and Encouragement to
perfevere?

Faguel. 1 do not remember any fuch thing.

Attorn, Gein. Were there no Promifes, that
when they by their Endeavours fhould get a free
Parliament in England, that they would reimburfe
all that was lard out?

Jaguel. 1 do remember no fuch thing.

Mr, Love. 1 would ask him fome Queftions;
and the firft 15, Whether he hath fpoken this as
a mere Relation, or whether he owns all this he
hath {poken, as under an Qath?

Aitorn, Gen. We are paft that, my Lord, he
did fay, he was under an Qath,

Mr. Love, 1f he fay fo, I am concluded.

[ Mr, Faquel made no Anfwer to this,]

Lé Prefident. You have asked two Queflions s
in a few Words: For the firft, Whether he fpake
it under an Qath? You know that time was
fpent to declare it before he began: if you ask of
his own knowledge, you miftook it; tor he faith
fomething he hath by Relation, and fome that
he knows. This he hath taken notice of, what
fhould we further examine over the fame thing ;
for he faith fome of his own Knowledge, fome
by Relation from particular Parties, and fome
from Parties he calls not now to mind; -and it
was declared by the Court, that he was a Witnefs,
and the Court accepted him.

Mr, Love, I defire your Lordfhip to ask lhum this
Queftion, Whether the fuppofed Narrative that he
{peaks of, that Alford faid he brought over, and
read at my Houle, was read at my Houfe; or
only by Alferd, and fo brought over as News?

Faquel, In truth, my Lord, I cannot tell that,

Mz, Love. He fpeaks of Sterks a Scotchman; 1
defire your Lordfhip to know whether he knows,
or can affirm by the Oath you fay he hath taken,
that he was a Scoich Agent,

[No Anfwer to that Queltion,]

Mr,
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Mr. Love. Sir, ask him this Queftion ; he men-
tions a Faft at Major Adams’s, or Col, Barfon's
and that for the Good of both Nations, becaufe
he thought they were the Church of God; whe-
ther there was any Intimation in that Meeting,
that it was under this Notion, for the Good of
both Nations ; whether that Meeting was for the
Scoteh Nation to invade the Englifh Nation?

[No Anfwer to that Queftion.] -

Mr, Love. He faid (if I have taken him rightly,
and if not, 1 defire your Notaries to inform me
better) that Mr, Love did not agree to fuch a
Sum as Forty Pounds, and afterwards he faid,
that all there faid it was convenient; Now I would
ask how thele two can agree together?

Ld Prefident. You are right; for the thing of
Agreement he difclaimed torally. _

Mr. Love, Then I did not agree to it,

Ld Prefident. No, nor any elfe.

Mr. Love. But afterwards he fays, that they
did conceive it was convenient, now I pray ask
him, how he knew that I thought it was con-
venient?

Faquel. T cannot fay any thing that Mr., Love
did fay it was convenient; but it was not dif-
fented from nor fpoken againft by any, as I re-
member,

[ Mr. Faguel withdraws, Col. Barton 15 called
into the Court, and 15 fworn.]

Attsrn, Gen. My Lord, let Colonel Barton tell
you what he knows of the Meeting at the Swa#
at Dowgate,

Col. Barton. My Lord, I was there a little
while after the Death of the late King, I was
going 1nto Canngi-Street, and met wich JVilliam
Dicke; he delired me to go with him to the
Swan at Dowgate. 1 told him I had a lietle
Bufinefs in Cannorn-Strect, and 1 would be there
by and by. 1 {taid about half an hour about my
Bulinefs, and went then to the Swan at Dowo-
gate, and there was to my beft remembrance (for
politively 1 cannot fay) /7illiam Diake, and one
a Stranger, Major Huntington, and Lieut, Col.
Bains, and there was one Capt, Tifns, as was faid,
and Major Alford, and I do not remember who
elfe were there. My Lord, at that time truly I
was under a Defeft in my Hearing, and fince
that I have loft an Far, through a huge Heat,
and Cold taken. Dut, my Lord, I not coming
but to the mddle of the Difcourfe, they had, and
not perfeftly hearing, could not well judge of
their Difcourfe: But afterwards I asked #7illiam
Drake, what the Intent of the Meeting was?
He told me, that their Intentions were to make

fome Addrefles or Applications (fome fuch word
it was) unto the Prince, to take him off from

his malignant or evil Countel about him, and to
put him upon {uch as would be honefter and
better Counfellors, And this is the Subftance of
what I then underftood from #liam Drate.
My Lord, I think two or three days afterwards,
I know not which, there was a Meeting again
at the Wbite-Hart in Bafing-lane-end at the
corner of Bread-Sireet, ‘There were, 1 think,
moft of them that I have named at the firlt
Mecting: 1 am fure William Drake was there,
and Captain Tifus, and Lieut. Col, Bains, and
Major Huntington, 1 cannot tell whether Mr.
Alferd was there or no, but thefe I am fure were
there. T did not come to the beginning of that
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Meeting neither, the Paper had been read before
I came in, to my beft remembrance : but [ asked
William Drake what was the meaning of that
Meeting? He told me, it was to the fame effedt
that they {pake of before ; and they had Thoughts
to fend fomebody over to the Prince, to per-
fuade him from that Condition. A.while after
I met with Lieat. Col. Bains, and truly 1 did
ask him more fully of the Circumftances of that
Meeting: he told me fomething, that they in-
tended to make ufe of my Lord Piercy and Fermin,
and thofe about the Prince, which he difliked.
Truly, my Lord, it troubled me extremely, to
think that they fhould make ufe of fuch ill In-
ftruments to perfuade the King, and I faid, I
thought 1t was not well. And the next cime I
faid to William Drake, you have not done well,
for it 1s not a Chriftian- Way we take, to make
ufe of fuch Men as thefe to perfuade with the
King; for do you think that my Lord Piercy and
Fermiy and thofe Men, will ever perfuade the
King to leave themfelves, and their own Coun-
fels? So he put me off, and from that time he
was 2 licele more thy of me. Afterwards he did
{ecretly and cunningly get from me Ten Pounds,
and came under a pretence to fupply a Friend in
neceflity ; and 1 faid to him, you have Money
of your own. Says he, I have not fo much as I

muft needs fupply him with; and he could not
do it of himfelf, for fear it fhould be mifs’d, My
Lord, I asked him what Friend it was. Nay.,
faith he, you cannot know that, and you cannor
have it till he is in a Condition. To tell you
truly, he had been a good Cuftomer to me, both
for himfelf and Friends, and I was loth to deny
him 1t, {uppofing I fhould have it again, I after-
wards did not, to my knowledee, meddle or
make at any Meeting; I was never at any of
thofe Meetings after the Bufinefs at Bafing-laie,
becaufe I difliked them; but afterwards I did
fuppofe that this Ten Pounds was for Captain
Titus, for I did put it to him, and faid, I am
afraid you did furnith Titus with that Ten Pounds,
What then, faid he? Then I fhall require it
again of you. So he put me off and run out of
the Land. My Lord, for any other Meetings,
Tranfactions, or Knowledge of any other thing
from the time of the Meeting in Bafing-lane, 1
know none. For the Prifoner at the Bar truly
I do not remember, and I am confident I was
never at his Houfe in my life, nor changed one
word with him.

Attorn. Gen, Did you meet with Tifus in Fleet-
fireer 2

Barton. I didy my Lord, and I asked him
whether the King that was dead, (for I knew
he was much about the King, becaufs I had
heard it;) and I asked him, I fay, whether the
King was a Man of thofe Parts he was reported
to be. Titus told me, not only of his Parts, but
Virtues, Truly T fufpeted then, that Zitas was
not the Man he feem’d to be, and I feared he
was a Cavalier in his Heart; and truly that did
occafion me, with the diflike of others, to leave
their Company,

Attorn, Gen, There were {fometimes private
Fafts at your Houfe; what was the Occafion of
them, and who fpoke to you for them?

Barton. My Lord, 1do not remember the Party
that fpake to me, T am not certain whether it
were Mafter Zicars, but cannot pofitively fay
Ity or whether it were by Sir Matthew Brand,

or



165' . M. C. J- ]('07' ngh-Treafon * 119

- hev defired to meet 5 they met ina
gozi::}:{:ﬁ; H?ul‘e, to humble themfelves before

. and I cannot fay any thingof the Falt,
}312;:11{1‘?6“% had Cuftomers, and I did think 1 was
' bound to ferve my Calling s and I was not there
above half an hour, and it was up _and down, off
and on. There were divers Minifters, who did

exercife at that time. ‘ .
Aitorn. Gen. Who drd exercife at that time?

Barton. | was not there much of the time, but -

I think Mr. Fenkins, and to my beft remembrance
M. Love was theres there was Mr. Tate the P_ar-
[iament-Man, to my bet remembrance:: I think
Mr. Fagque! was there, and there was Sir Adafthbews

Brand. o
Attorn, Gein,  What other Minifters were

ere !
. Barton. 1 think Mr, Cafe, and to my beft re-
membrance Mr. Robiufonr 5 but 1 am not cereain,

ittorir. Gen. What was the Occalion of your
Fafts, and at your Houfe?

Barion. | knew no Occafion, becaule I wasnot
there ; but 1 have heard a Servant of my Hou:fif,
who was there, give this Relation.  Mr. Fenkins
began in this manners O La;‘d,‘rbuu_ kiveft e
are agt et to put up Complaints” againfi any, but
to bumble curfelves before thee, and lo pray that
the Sins of the Land may be pardoned.  Bur I do
ot remember there wasany Word, but for the
pardoning the Sins of the Natic::n. _ _

Ao, Gen. Was. there no Sins named in par-
ticular?

Barten. My Lord, I do not remember,

Attorn. Gen, My Lord, ask him whether any
body hath been with him, tocall for any Money
for any Parties beyond Seas for Mafley, or any
others.

Barton. 1 fhall give you a true Narrative of
that. I underftood, my lLord, that afrer the
Prifoners that were taken at Duunbar were come
down the River, there were divers Citizens,
both Men and Women, that came to f{ce them,
and made a Relation of their Mifery to be fuch,
as I have not heard; and there was one among
the relt, thet faid there was a piece of Meat
reached down among the Prifoners, and two or
three catching at 1ty it fell down among the
Dung, and they took 1t up, and eatit. There
were divers did move for a Contribution to
them, and it was a pretty while before I did
contribute any thing: there was Captain Far
with me, and defired me to give him fome
Money, and he did not propofe the Ule; but to
my belt remembrance, it was either for chari-
table Ules, or for fome in mifery. Now I was
loth to ask him for whae charitable Ufe, becaufe
I did not defire to be known to give fuch a Sun
of Money to the Scorch Prifoners, [ had a lictle
Money which I had devoted to charitable Ufes
in my own purpofe: When the Parltament grant-
ed my Petition for re-imburling the Money 1 lent,
I did promife Fifty Pounds to charitable Ules ;
and tlis, 1 confefs, ! did intend for the Scotch
Prifoners, but was loth to ask him, becaufe ]
would not be thought charitableto your Enemies;
but did 1t not under that relation.

Aitorn. Gen. Mr. Faguel, you know William
Drake and Mr. Love very well, do you not know
that Mr. Drafe and Mr, Love were very familiar-
ly acquainted ?

Faguel. I mult needs fay, Mr. Drake would
be acquatnted with all the Minilters in London;

and I cannot {ay, he was mor¢ acquainted with
Mr. Love thanany other Minifter.

[Captain Far is called into Court, and is
{worn, ]

Attorn. Gen. My Lord, let him acquaint yﬂﬁ
with what pafled at the White-Fart in Bread-

Jreet. .

Capt, Far. I defire the Benefit of my Papeis.

Attorn. Gen, At whofe requeft did you come to
the WPbite-Hart in Breadftreet, and when was e

LFar. By William Drake.

Aitorn. Gen. Was that the firft time you were
acquainted with any thing of this nature, for
carrying on and profecuting of an Order, to the
furtherance of an Agreement between the Scots
and the King? What do you know of that, at
what time was the Meeting ?

Far, it was about two Years fince.

Atorin, Gen. What was the Difcourfe at that
Meeting ?

Far. It was the drawing up of fome Heads of
a Letter, which might bé fent to Scotland,

Attorn, Gen, What was the Effeét of it?

Far It was to this effeét, to the belt of my
Memory ; for it is fo long {ince——

| Here Captain Far was at a ftand; whether
through Infirmity of Speech (for he feemed
‘to be flow of Speech) or otherwife, I can-
not fay 5 and he, or the Attorney-General

for him, made great Ufeof the Papers of
his Examination, ]

Attorn, Geno To defire them, the better o
bring them to an Agreemerit, that there might be
moderate Propefitions,

Far. It was to moderate their Defires in the
Agreement between the Xing and the Seoss.

Attorn, Geir. Whatto do?

Far, That they might abate of their Demands.

Atarn. Gen, Of their former Demands, that
they might be the more like to agree; was 1t
not {o?

Far, Yes, my Lord.

Attorn, Gen. Was it not propounded likewife,
that fome thould be fent to the King, to perfuade
him to give Satisfattion to the Scots ¢

Far. It was propounded by Zifus, but not ap-
proved of,

Attorn, Gen, But did you not agree to fend to
the Scors that you did agree to, and were there
not Heads which Ttus, or Drake, did undertake
to wrie, and alterwards were drawn up?

Far. 1 faw no Letters.

Attorin. Gen, But did not Draze tell you he
had fent them to Mafter Bailey in Scotland?

[Captain Far being at a ftand, the Attorney:
General asketh him again:}

Attorn. Gen. Did not William Drake tell you,

+a Letter was fent accordingly into Sceflaind 2

Far. Yes, he did tell me he had fent Letters.

Attorn. Gen. My Lord, let him give your
Lordihip an account before the Treaty at Ferfey,
where Drake met with him, and what he pro-
pounded to him, whether to fend to Fesfzy, and
what Perfons, and upon what Meflage?

Far. Mr. Drake did fay, that Captain 72¢4s did
fay, It was requifite for one to be at the Treaty
at Ferfey; and I had 1t from Drake, that Titns
did undertake to go himfelf thicher. '

Altorn.
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Attorn. Gen, What was his Employment to be
there, and what Money was to be raifed for hin ?
Did he tell you he wanted NMoney?

Far. After Mr, Drake defired I would help
him to Ten Pounds, and 7ifes was in want of
Money to relieve his Neceflities: and upon this
Requeft I did leave Ten Pounds in Mr. Drake’s
Warehoufe,

" Attorn. Gen. Was Drake prefent?

Far. 1 think he was, 1 was promiled it agair,
but never received it.

Aitorn. Gen. My Lord, let him inform, alter
this Negotiation of 7##uswasended at Jesfey, whe-
ther chere was not a Letter written by Zius, and
whether this was not read in the prefence of
Mr, LTeve, and fome others, and whether at
Mr. Love’s or no?

Ld Prefident. Upon the ending of the Treaty
at Ferfey and Breda, were you not prelent at
Mir, Lsve’s Houfe, when 1t was [ignified from
Zins, that it was not convenient for him to
come into Lrglazd, becaufe he thought he was
difcovered to the Council of State, and defired
fomebedy to be fent to Calais, to take an Ac-
count there of his Negotiation

Far. Yes, my Lord, I wasthere?

Attorn, Gen, Where, at Mr., Love's Houfe?

Far. Yes.

sttorn, Gen. In what part of his Houfe, whe-
ther in his Chamber or Study?

Far. In hisStudy, as 1 remember,

Attorir. Gene Was the Letter read there, and
who read 1t?

Far. illiam Dircke read it

Attorn, Gen, What was the Subflance of the
Letter, as you remember?

Far. It was for {ending one over to Calais,

Altern, Gein. Was Mr, Love prefent when this
Letter was read ?

Far. Yes fure, he was prefent.

Aitorn, Geir. Was 1t agreed that one thouid be
fent to Calais, to take anaccount of it?

Far. It was defited, and I was propounded to
g0,
Attorn, Gen. Who named you to go?

Far. Mr. Drake.
Aitern, Gen. What was the Occafion that Ma.
jor Alford did go?

Far. It was his Son’s being there, that was
cone from him,

Atiorn. Gen. But then it was agreed that 4/
ford thould go? When Ajferd did return from
Calais again, and there was an Account given of
his Employment, where was this Account given?
and where were thofe Papers read, that did give
the Account?

Far. It was given at Mr, Love’s 3 but I can-
not fay he was prefent at that, for he was abfent
lometimes; 1 cannot be polirive to fay he was
prefent: I do concelve he was prefent, but cannot

pofitively fay It

Attorn, Gen. What was the Subftance of the .

:ﬂi;:count given by Alford or Drake, or who read
It

Far, It was a Narrative that he had been at
Calais, and what Entertainment he had,

Attorn, Gen. Was there a Copy of a Letter
brought thither, written from the King to the
Presbyterian Party ?

Far. I cannot fay he brought it.

Altorn, Gen, What was the Subflance of the
Tetter?
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Far, To fend Commiftioners to the Treaty at
Breda.

Attorn. Gen. What elfe was in the Letter?
Did not the King of Scois declare in the Let-
ter, that he would give Satisfaction to the Seots,
and in order thereunto he defired Commiffio-
Niers ?

Fur, It is fo long {ince, that I cannot remem-
ber it, | .

Attorn. Gen. 1 ask you, whether it were not
to this cffed, to declare that he was willing to
eive Satisfaction to the Scots, and to that end de-
fired the Presbyterian Party to fend Commiflioners
to Breda

Mr. Leve. This is grofs Darknefs, for you to
dictatc Words to him, and then to fay, Was it
not thus, or to this effe€t? and {o to put into the
mouths of the Witnefles what you would have
them fay.

Attorn. Gen, When you go in Darknels, it is
arofs  Treafon,

Mr, Lewe, Eight Witnefles have not proved
that I either writ Letter, or recetved Letter, or
lent Money.

Attorn, Gen, What was the Effelt of the Let-
ter? '

Far, It is fo long fince, that T cannot fpeak
parricu]arly s but 1t was to fend Commifiioners.

Attoris, Gen, The Copy of the Letter that came
from the King by Major 4lford?

Far. [ do no fay fo, Sir. .

Ld Prefideint. Such a Letter as they conceived
to be brought from him, as they read,

Attore. Gen, What was thae?

Ivr, 'That he had been with Titus, and did
bring tie Narrative from him, or to that effed.

Altgrn, Gen. Was 1t not to be communica-
ted ¢

Far. Yes, it was fo.

Ld Prefideint. What was the Narrative read
from T3¢ Who were prefent ar this Meeting ?

Far. There were feveral there, but I cannot
pehitively remember any,

Attorn, Gen, Was Mr. Leve there?

Far. I cannot {1y he was.

Ld Prefdeit. Was Dr. Drake there ?

Far. 1 canrot fay pofitively, that he hath been
at any Meetings,

Ld Piefident. \When you were at this Meeting,
and  Major Alferd returned this at Mr. Love's
Houfe, was Dr. Dratke there?

Far. I cannot fay it

Ld Prefident. Was Mr, Feakins there 2

Far. T cannot fay I,

Ld Prefident. How many were there?

Far. About Ten or Twelve,

Atterin. Gen. Ask him whether this Meeting,
when this Letter came from the King, advifing
to fend Commiffioners to treat with the King at
Breda s whether was there not 2 Commiffion
naiied, and Perfons  named to treat?

ar. William Drake read Papers, but it was
not agreed upon by the Company, becaufe pri-
vate Perfons could not give Commiffions.
- Ld Prefident. Was it not debated at that Meet-
ing for 2 CommifTionto be fent accordingly ?

far. Williem Drake read Papers there, «that
was 1n the Nature of a Commiflion; but it was
not agreed upon by the Company, becaufe pri-
vate Perfons could not do fuch g thing.

Ld Prefidezr, \Was it not in order to the
Treaty ?

Iar.
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Far. It was to advife with them about the

{reaty. _ _ \
/!:fgm Gen. Was it not read in the prefence of

- Company ? _
[hLFaEHTPheyCGmmifﬁons and Inftructions were
read in the prefence of the Company, but they

were pot agreed upon. '
Attorn. Gen. Was it not in the name of the

Presbyterian Party in England ¢ '

Far. As1 do remember, the Commifiion was
in the name of the Presbyterian Party, for I did
but only hear it read. |

Mr. Love. Let him {peak wiva voce.

Far. Tothe beflt of my Remembrance, 1t was
for the Presbyterian Party, bur pofittvely I can-
not fay fu: My Lord, ’tis two Years lince, and
as near as I can remember, it was [o.

" Ld Prefident. The Commifilon, you fay, was
not agreed to, but the Letter and Inftructions were?
- Ear. William Drake did undertake to draw them
up.
PL(Z Prefident. Were they drawn up and fent ¢
Far. 1am not able to fay they were?

Ld Prefident, Who were to be the Commif-

{toners?

Far. My Lord Willoughby of Parbam; Alder-
man Bunce, Major- General AMaffey, Colonel
Graves, and Captain Titus,

Attern, Gen, What were they to do?

“n

Iar. Toadvife, but not to treat in the behalf

of the Presbyterian Party.

Ld Prefident. Not in the behalf of the Pres-
byterian Party ¢

Iar. No.

Attorn. Gen. Was there not an Agreement of
Letters to be fent to the Queen, and no Propofals
that way !

Far. No, my Lord,

Ld Prefideiit, What was the Subftance of that
Letter read?

far. It was, as I remember, to have the
Queen perfuade the King to give Satisfaction to
the Scots 1n their jult Demands, -

Attorn, Gen. Was 1t not moved thento be de-
bated what Power they had to fend a2 Commif-
fion, and by what Authority they fhould do i,
and by whom was it fpoken ?

Far. It was demanded, what Authority had
private Men to fend Commiffioners?

Artorn. Gen. Did not you go afterwards with
fome over into Southwark ?

Far, Yes,

Attorn, Gen.- Where did you go?

far. 1 went with Major 4lford, and with Al-
derman Bunce his Son, and 1 went to Grave/end,

Alioin, Gen, What other Company was there ?

Fai, Nobody elfe, nor had ] gone, but at the
requelt of Mafler 4lford.

Attorn. Gen. Did you know that Mafon went ?

Far, "There was no fuch Man went along with
us.
Attorn. Geir. Did no body tell vou that Mafon
went with the Infttutions agreed upon ?

Fai. There was a Gentleman we met with at
(ravefend, that [ conceive to be that Mafon,

Avorn. Gein. Did he carry the Inftrutions?

Far, 1 cannot tell.

Ld Prefident. Did no body tell you fo?

Fei, Not as 1 remember, 1 did nor fee any
delivered to him.

Ld Prefident. Do you believe he carried them,
cut of thefe Circumftances you heard ?

Vou Il

Ffor High-

Treafon. I2r

Far, Yes, I believe he did; I am upon my
Oath, and to fay pofitively, I cannot.

Aitorn. Gen. Were there not Letters left at your
Houfe, and for whom, and what did you with
them ?

Far. There was at my Brother’s Houfe Let-
ters left, but they were returned.

Attorn. Gen. But for whom were thofe Letters?

Far. They were directed to #71lliam Drake by
Tiius,

Attorn, Gen. Were you at Colonel Barfon's
Houfe at the Faft?

Far. 1 was. .

Altorn. Gen. Who officiated there? Was Mr.
Love one of them ?

Far. 1 cannot fay pofitively, I believe Mr, Loze
did.

Ld Prefidens. Do you believe Mr. Love was
one of them?

Far. 1 conceive he was one of them, and
Mr. Robinfon.

Attorn. Gei. Did he not pray for a Bleffing upon
the T'reaty between the King and the Scors 2

Far., That was done, but I cannot fay it
was by Mr. Love; but thefe Words were faid
there,

Attorn, Gen. Were you at a Meeting at Mr.
Love's, after the Fight at Danbar, a remarkable
‘T1me to this Nation ?

Far, 1 was there, but came in late.

Attorin. Gen, Were you there, when a Letter
was read from Maffey?

Far, 1 did not hear it read,

Ld Prefident, What do you know of it ?

Far. There was fuch a Letter came, toafiift the
King with Money and Arms; but it was not
agreed upon,

Ld Prefiaent. Do you fwear fuch a Letter
camer

Far. I cannot {wear pofitively.

Ld Prefident. Did the Gentleman tell you fo?

Far. He did tell me fo.

Ld Prefident. The Letter did write likewife
for Arms and Ammunition, did it not 2

Far, Yes, and for Money.

Ld Prefident, Did not Mr, Love tell you, they
could not do it?

Iar, 1 did underftand it was Mr. Love,

Attorn. Gen. Did not Mr. Love tell you, they
agreed to raifea Sum of Money for Mafféy, and
Titus, and Graves, or fome of them?

Far. Yes, he did.

Attorn. Gen, What was the Sum of Money,
and for whom was it agreed upon? did Mr, Love’
tell voufo?

Far. 1fay, Mr. Love didtell me it was agreed
upon for the fending of fome Money, whe-
ther 250 or 300/, I cannot fay pefitively ; and
it was to relieve Maffey and Titus in their Ne-
ceflities,

Attoris Gen. . Did not Mr, Leve move you to
contribute to this? and what did you contri-
bute ?

Far. Mr. Love asked me, and I did promife
Five Pounds, and brought Five Pounds, and laid
it down upon his Table.

Altorn. Gen. Who was in the Room then?

Iar. There were feveral.

Ld Prefrdent, Do you know none of them ?

Attorn. Gen, Mr. Love farth, he hath neither
writ, received, nor fents but he doth not fay,
he did not mend Letters.

R | Far,
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Far. 1 brought Five Pounds in a Paper, and
Jaid it upon his Table.

Id Prefident. And was he in the Room?

Far. Yes, my Lord, but 1 cannot fay any elfe
Wils.

Aitorn. Gen. 1 could tell you who there were
more; Mr. Cafe was there too: My Lord, ask
him if it were not agreed between them, that it
{hould be fo-brought.

Far. Asdid underftand, it was fo 3 it was fo
for my Parcicular, but I cannot fay it of others.

Attorn. Gen. Did not Mr, Lsve {peak to you
to that purpole, to bring it in that way?

Far. I cannot fay he bid me lay 1t down.

Ld Prefident. What was the Manner of Mr.
Leve's requiring of you, or notifying of it to you,
and the Manner of your Purfuit of that?

[ Here Captain Far was at a ftand, and made
no Anfwer. ]

Attorn, Gen, I will make it very fhort: Whe-
ther this were not done thar there might be no
Difcovery of 1t?

Far. It was done to that effeft, that there
fhould be no Difcovery of it: 1 did it under
that Notion.

Ld Prefideit. And do you not think Mr., Leve
concelved it under that Notion ?

Far. T cannot fay he did.

Altoyn. Gen. Were younot fpoken to by Cap-
tain Majfey, 1o Ipeak to Colonel Bartor to lend
Morney !

Far. 1 did {peak to him.

Ld Prefident. What was that?

Far. Ten Pounds, as I conceivedy for I re-
ceived 1t from him in a Paper.

Attern. Gen, To whom did you deliver it ?

Far. To Captain Adaffey, Mafley’s Brother,
my Lord. _ ‘

Ld Pyefident. You received it from Colonel
Barton. Captain Maffey bid you fpeak to Colo-
nel Bartor for a Sum of Money; and he gave it
to you; and you gave it to Captain Mafey.

Attosn. Gen. Was the Money, as you concei-
ved, returned to Afaffey and Titus?

Far. I cannot fay 1t was.

Ld Prefideiit. Do you believe it was defired to
be raifed to that purpofe? And do you think it
was done according to that purpofe?

Far. 1 do not know.

Attern. Gen, Whether do you concelve that
this Money, you thus brought to Captain Ma/fer,
was not for Maffey and Tiius ¢

Far. 1 do conceve 1t was.,

Attorn. Gen. And was not Mr, Love common-
ly at your Meetings? And whether, after Drake
went away, the Meetings were not at his Houfe ?

Far. 1 met with Mr. Leve often at his own
FHoute.

Aitorn. Gen. This Money was taken up under
the Notion of a charitable Ufe?

For. 1 do conceive it was given them under
that Notion.

Mr. Lsve. Sir, he gave you a large Account
of the Negotiation with Titusy pray ask him if
1 were privy to it.

Iar, | cannot fay fo?

Ld Picfident, Do you believe jc ?

Mr. Love. You fay the Copy of the King’s
Lewer (you fuppofe ) that was brought over hy

diferd, was read at my Houfe; whether did [
hear the Letter vead in my Houfe?

Far. 1 cannot fay you did.

Ld Prefident. Vas not Mr, Love, when the
Letter was communicated, fometimes in the Room,
going and coming ?

Far. I cannot fay when 1t was read; but I fay
he was there during fome part of the Communi-
cation ; but I cannot fay he was there at the read-
ing of the Letter,

Attorn. Gen, Thefe are good Queftions, my
Lord.

Mr. Leve. The Court will judge of that.

Ld Prefidens. But do you not conceive that he
underftood the Contents of it?

Far, 1 do conceive fo,

Mr. Love. But he doth not fay it was fo. He
fud there was a Narrative read from Zitus, |
delire your Lordthip to ask him whether I was
prefent whilft the Narrative was read, yea or
no.

Far. I cannot fay any thing to that ; I cannot
fwear he was there,

Mr. Love. Ask him whether I did not go of-
ten out of the Room.

Far, 1 did obferve, that when Mr. Fove hath
been there, he hath been often called away, and
hath been abfent; and therefore I cannot fay
fuch a thing was done when Mr, Love was
there.

Attorn. Geir. He hath before proved it upon
QOath, that e was there fometimes.

Mr. Love. But look before, and he faid he
could not fay I was prefent when it was read.

Aitora, Gen, This Narrative, whether was it a
Copy written by Alford, as News brought over,
or the Copy written by Titus himfelf?

Far. diford fid it was a Narrative from Titus.

Mr. Love. Pray ask him whether I did fend
Alford over, yea, or no; or agreed to the fend-
ing of him over,

Far. 1 think he did not; but he was fent by
William Drake,

Mr. Love. My Lord, whether was he not pri-
vy toit? He told you Titns's Letter twas writ
before Alford went,

Far, But it was not agreed upon.

Attorn, Gen. Titus’s Letter, that he writ, that
fome might come to him, to receive an Account
of him, was read at Mafter Love’s Houfe.

Mr. Love. I move this Queftion, becanfe A7-
ford, who was the Man fent, confefled that 2/il-
liame Drake fent him., He pretended there was a
Comnuffion read in my Houfe; I defire to know
when, or at what Time; whether before the
29th of Maich, 16507

far. 1 am not able to fpeak to the Time; it
1s about two Year fince, or fomething under.

Mr. Love. 1 defire, Sir, to ask him this Que-
flion, Whether the rude Draughe, written by
William Drake, or the original Copy, was fent
away ¢

far. There was only a rude Draught that
Drake vead 5 and then afterwards Drake was to
draw it up,

Mr. Love. Ask him whether T gave my Con-
fent to the fending away of this Commiflion.

Far. ] cannot fay Mr, Love was there when it
was fent away,

Attern. Gen. Did Mr, Love make any Prote-

ftation againft it.

Far. It was agreed by all that the Commiffion
could nor be fear,

Mr, Love.



16:1. H.C.J.

Mr. Love. Ask him whether I did not declare
in the Company, when there was fuch Specch of
commiffionating, that it was an high A& of
Prefumption for private Per{ons to commiflionate
any, and a notorious Falfhood to fay it was an
A& of the Presbyterians 35 and whether did not
1 declare my felf againft fending the Commif-
fion.

Far. I did fay it was agreed upon by all, that
we could not fend the Commuffion. |

Mr. Love. I can prove, if I may have the Wit-
pefles indemnified, that 1 declared agamit any

iflion.
Cofjin}l’rlgﬁdm. Mr, Love hath declared then he

knew of the Commiffion, | '
Mr, Love. 1 acknowledge the difavowing of
any Commiflion; 1 gave my Reafons for 1t.
Attorn, Gen. My Lord, I hope you will re-

member what the Prifoner fays.
Mr. Leve, I do not own any thing about con-

curring with any Commiffion, but onlly difavow-
ine of ir. Alter Dusbar Fighe, he faith, he came
]a; . and he cannot tell whether the Letter was
read at my Houfe, only he fays I told him fo :
And whether was that the Letter, ora Copy of
It ?

Fer, 1 cannot fay that.

Mr. Love. The molt that T have done, 1s but
to receive News; and I hope 1 fhall not die
for that? 'Was this Letter of Maffey written to
me ?

Far, T have faid already I cannot fay fo.

Mr, Love. I would be glad to be freed in
Court. .

Ld Prefident. You are a very free Man in-
deed.

Mr. Love. He fpeaks of a Sum of two Hun-
dred and Fifty Pounds, or three hundred Pounds,
fent to Maffey and Titus 3 pray ask him whether 1
did agree that it fhould be fent,

Ld Prefident. Did he difagre= ?

Far, 1 faid 1t wasagreed to 3 but by whom, I
cannot fay.

Aitorn, Gen, Did Mr. Logve at that time difa-
oree
" Far, T cannot fay he did.

Mr. Lsve, Did I move Captain Far, or fay,
Captain Far, will you contribute Five Pounds to
Maffey or Titus, or any Money ?

Far, You asked me the Queftion, whatl
would do,

Mr. Love. But for Maffey and Titus 2

Far, 1 did conceive it was for Maffey and 73-
{us.

Mr, Love, He fays he laid it in my Houfe ;
and he {o far juttifies me, that he cannot fay I re-
ceived 1t 3 and God is my Witnefs, [ never did
fee it inmy Life. If another Man agrees to re-
ceive Money in my Houfe, I hope the Court
will not judge me for it.

Ld Prefident. It is an cafy matter for you to
take it, and convert it to another Ufe.

Far. Ido conceive that Captain Maffey had the
Money.

Mr., Love, Now you cleat me: Another Man
brings the Money, and I do not order him to
bring it3 and another receives it, and not I.

r Captain Far withdraws. ]

Attorin. Gen, Now, my Lord, we fhall conclude

in a very fhort word, with a Minifter to a Mi-
mfter,

Vor. II.

for Eigh—Treafon.
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| Mafter Fackfon the Manifter is called into the
Court. ]

Mr. Fackfon. Siry I dare not fivear.

Ld Prefident. Dare you reftify the Truth when
God calls you to it ? For God will appear in no
other Vifion than in the Power of Magittracy.

Mr. Fackfon, 1 dare mot fpeak againft this
Man’s -Life,

Ld Prefident. Dare you fpeak the Truth before
a Magiftrate ?

Mr. Fackfon. That that I fay, is this: That I
look upon this Man as a Man very precious in
God’s Sight 3 and, my Lord, I fear I fhould have
an Hell in my Conftience unto my Dying-Day,
if I fhould fpeak any thing that fhould be circum-
ftantially prejudicial to his Life: And in regard
of thefe Terrors of the Lord upon me, I dare not
{peak.

Attorn. Gen, 1 think all the TJefuits in all the
Colleges have not more defperate Evafions or Shifts
from the Purpofe than thefe Men have, My Lord,
you now fee what a defperate Combination here is,
that Vlen being before Authority, and in the Face
of Magiftracy, in fucha Court as this is, fo emi-
nent In the Prefence of it, and fo authorized ag
this 15 5 that Men fhould dare to dally as they
doj and that Minitters thould fay they dare not
{peak the Truth : not when Treafon is hatched
and contrived, they dare not fpeak the Truth
that this Man fhould be more precious, though a
Traltor, than the Commonwealth, which thould
be preferved. 1 hope we fhall root thefe Opini-
ons out, or fome of the Parties that hold them ;
that I will fay.

Ld Prefident. Mafter Jackfoir, you are one of
the Parties in thefe Meetings, you have heen at
their Mectings ;3 and we require nothing of you
but to {peak the Truth. St Aufin will tell you,
That to conceal a Truth, ortell a Lyve, you had
better let the World fall abour your Fars. You
are required nothing but to fpeak the Truth ;
and will you fay this Truth will be a Torment
to your Soul? Are you a Profeffor of Jefus
Chrift, a Minifter of God? The great Errand
you are {ent hither about, is to fpeak the Truth
trom him. Therefore lay your Hand upon your
Heart, and do as becomes you as a Chriftian, and
as a rational Man, and as one that will tell
Truth; for by the Truth the World ftands.
We are all no better than favage Men, if we
have not Judgment to tell Truth one to ano-
ther. .

Altorn. Gen, My Lord, fuppofe Mr. Loye
fhould kill one of thefe Men (that do hear the
Debate} in the Prefence of Mr. Fackfor, and he
Thould be called to give Evidence, and refufe it s
he may tzke away any Man’s Life, Perfonal
Refpelts fhould be fet aflide, when we come to
Judgment, You fz¢, my Lord, the Perfon of
this Man, how it is preferred by this Man, That
which is the Truth, you are required to fpeak, and
nothing elfe.

Ld Prefident. Have you any Oath or Promife
among your Combiners to be fecret in this bufi-
nels?

Mr. Fackfon. Never in my Life, my Lord,

Ld Prefident. Will you take your Oath?

Mr. Ffackfon. 1 darenot, my Lord,

Ld Prefident. What is your Reafon?

Mr. Jackfon. I have told you, my Lord, and
I will tell you it again; I am a Man of a

R 2 troubled



124, 47. The Trial of Chriftopher Love

and I dare not do any thing that

eroubled Spirit \
] . in my Confcience to my Dy-

fhould caufc a Hell
ing-day. '
Ld }.;)i'tj/fffﬁff. Do you look to die?
Mr. Fackfon, Yes, my Lord. S
Ld Prefidest. Anddo you expect to live again?
Mr. Fackfon. 1 truft in Jefus Chrift I fhall live
again. oo
" Attorn. Gen. My Lord, 1 defire your Clerk
may be commanded to give him his Qath, and he

required to take it.
[ The Clerk tenders him the Oath. ]

Ld Prefident. Will you take this Oath cr
not ?

Mr. Fackfon. No, my Lord.

Ld Prefident. "Then I think you are the Men
that were fpoken of before, Jefuits and Priefts :
They fay you are none , but you aretheir Brethren,
- Atern. Gen. My Lord, ihefe go beyond Je-
fuits : The Jefuirs will fwear with a Relervation,
and thefe will not fivear at all, This Man muft
be procceded accordingly with 5 for it this be al-
lowed, I conceive there will be.no Juftice in Eag-
Jand, And in refpect of the Quality of his Per-
fon, Funétion, and Gravity, by fo much 15 1t a
more pernicious Example, and 1t aggravates the
Thing'every way.

Ld Prefident. Let it be known here, that it
may be difperfud abroads and I think there are
foune of moft Counties of England, And this A
is gone forth ; this very Plot s fecretly {pread with
fome chief Minifters throughout all Englaid.

Ateri. Gen. 'This Right they have done to ma-
ny of them, that I believe it will make 2 more fe-
vere Inquifition 1nto thefe Perfons, than otherwife
there would be: It is not Blood that 1s look’d af-
ter, but Confefiion and Contrition, [ am glad
that thofe that are not Clergymen do come in,and
the Ciergy will not confefs at all,

[ The Court confults a while.

Ld Piefident, Mafter Fackforr, for your refufing
to fwecar, the Court fincth you five hundred
Pounds, and Imprilonment during the Pleafure of
the Court.

[ The Keeper of the ezt 1s called upon, and
commanded to take him 1n Cuftedy. ]

Mr. Love. My Lord, I have fome Motions
humbly to make to this Court, The firft is, to
intreat your Lordfhip, and the reft of the Mem-
bers of this Court, that if I have let fall any Ex-
preffions thro® Inconfideratenefs, or for want of
Skill 1n the Law, that have been an Offence ei-
ther to your Lordthip, or to any, I befeech you,
if 1 have fpoken any derogating Expreflions, or
made any unfeafonable Motions, that you would
impute 1t to my enorance,

Ld Piefident. Noae of them fhall hurt you.

Mr. Leve. Then 1 intreat this Favour, That [
may have Counlel affigned me, and Sollicitors here
in Court, and 1 my Chamber at the Tower, and
a Copy of my Charge, and convenient Time, as
the nature of the Bufinefs requires, my Charge be-
ing long, and | have not read a Word of it, nor
the Depoficions ; that [ may have, 1 fay, Counfel
afligned me, and convenient Time to bring in my
Aniwer.  And T am confident, through the good
- Hand of God upon me, I fhali clear my felf of all
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the Treafons charged upon me, and of all their
Aggravations, through Strains of Witand Quils
lets of Law by Inftruments of State: I am confi-
dent 1 fhall clear my Innocency, that 1 fhall not
ftand a Traitor before you. |

Ld Prefident. They being Inftruments of State,
are Inftruments of God appointed by the State,
For your Time, you have all this Afternoon.
Are you not ready ? N L

Mr. Love, 1 was yefterday nine Hours lock’d
up in that clofe Room and in this Place 5 and I
could not read one Werd laft Night, not out of
Trouble of Mind, but through Wearinefs, being
kept fo many Hours in the Court. ,

Attorn. Gen. My Lord, he hath had a Fort-
night’s Notice of his Trial to prepare for ir. My
Lord, we have been two Days; and by the Courle
of Proceedings, if the Gentleman had had his Trial
by a Jury, both muft have been difpatched in one
Day. Weare appointed to go on to hear his De-
fence now, or elfeon Monday.

Mt Love. 1 delire a convenient Time to bring
in my Witnefles, to make it appear how the Wit-
nefles againft me contradict themfelves, 1 have
not yet read the Depofitions of one Man, and 1
cannot read the Depofitions. by Monday ; 2nd to-
morrow is a Day that fome Time of 1t thould be
fpent in other Employments.

Ld Prefidert. To do Juftice, youa muft run out
of the Church; and though you were at your
Prayers, you muft forfake Praying and Sabbaths
to do Juflice. Sir, this is of a higher nature than
all your Preaching and Praying.

[] i r

[ The Court confults a while together. ]

Ld Prefident. The Court all agree to oive you
till Wednelday Light o’clock in the Morning.

Mr. Love. 1 celire thar T may bave Counfed
here, and in my Chamber, '

Ld Piefident. Yon have fhewed nothing theia
two Days that raifes any Denbe in Matterof Law,

Mr. Love. Thereare fom:things in my Charge
that ! doubt this Court canuor tike Cognizance of 5
fomething in thofe Aés, and fomething in refpect
of the Time. It is Matter of Law, whether the

ALt fpeaking of fending or receiving Letters or

Mefiages. And here are eight Witnetles come in,
and never a Man proves that | received Letter, or
fent Letter, or lent any Money. And this | con-
ceive 1s Matter of Law, whether the A&s reach
being prefent only where cther Men lay down
Money.

Ld Prefident. You have had Counfel.

Mr, Love, My Lord, I have had none.

Atorn. Gen. For Counfel you are to fend him
none, my Lord : He hath his Liberty ; he hath
Recourfe for all the People of Exngland to cometo
him,

Mr. Lowve. Counft! have refufed to cometo nie 3
I have their Letters about me.

| Here he reads the Letters of {fome Coun-
fellors, which they fent to him to the
Zotoery dechaning they could not come “to
him, unicls the; were afligned by the
Court.

Attern. Gen, All that we can fay to you, 15,
that Courfel may come to you, if they will.

[ Mafker Love is commarded away 5 andthe
Court adjourns iill Wednefday,]
Tlie
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The Third Day's Proceedings, Joly zbe
25thy 1651,

HE Court is fet; and Mr. Love 15 com-
manded to the Bar.

Attorn. Gen, Mr. Love, th?s is the Day the
Court hath given you (according to your Defire )
to make your Defence; and they are ready to
heif;t}’i'iﬁdfﬁf. Ard 1 hope thofe Directions that
have been given, have been obferved, that any
Perfons ‘of what Quality foever, cither Lawyers
or others, that came to you, have had 1n 2 fair
ay Accels unto yous and that youhave been de-
barred -nothing that the Court gave Order for.
If there have been any Impediments, we will do

our helt to haverthem taken away. ‘
Astorir, ‘Gen. My iLord, I have nothing .more

at prefent againft Jdum: You bhave herird' that
whereof ‘he itands accufed, and the Evidence
prottuced to prove it. And, my Lord, .I hope
ithey be fufficient :to:convince the Gentleman that
there +is Proof againtt :him for thefe :Facts and
rereafonable Defigns, whereof he:ftands accufed,
This 'Day -is appointed for his Defence, if he
thinks fic to make it, .But -if God hath other-
.wife -wrought upon his Hleart, and that he him-
({elf is convinced that the Char:ge againft him is
proved to be true; to me it will be the belt way
.of his Prefervation. But :what way Jfoever he
-thinks fit to take I fhall be ready:to go along

'with him in itz And fo, my Lord, I.expelt

+what he fhall- fay.

Mr. Zove.'My: Lord, T fhall not trouble your
‘Lordthip and: the- Court, to bring in at prefent
any Witneffes to teftify any thing that might in-
validate that{Teftimony that fome have brought
inagainft me ;i1 love not to protract Time: Bu
1 fhould betray my..own " lnnncency, fhould: |
by my Silence lie under all that Charge and Ob-
loguy which is caft upon me. And thercfore. I
deem it my Duty, wherein I can, and as far as
I am able, to exprefs myfelf before your Lord-
fhip and the Court. And therefore I humbly
crave leave of your Lordthip, and this Court,
that [ may make my Defence for my Life before
youl.

Although I am denied Counfel to plead for
me in this Couart, which is fo jult and neceffary
a Means for the Prefervation of my Life, yet
my Comfort 1s that of the Pplmift, My Defence
is of God, which foveth the Upright tn Heart, and
pleadeth the Canfe of bis Seirvant. againft bim that
puffeth at bim,

My Lord, you have granted me that Favour -

- which the Remans did to Pazl, that he might
anfwer for himlelf, concerning the Crimes laid
againft him. |

In making my Defence, I {halls humbly crave
leave to proceed in this' Method:: To fpeak
fomething, Firfk, concerning: the Charge:. Se-
condly, concerning the. Witnelles, and  their
Teftimony : Thirdly, fomething: concerning my

felf: And then, Laftly, foni¢ Things humbly to:

PrDEDfﬂ to yout Lordihip and the. Court,. con-
cerntng  my Choarge. ' Mr,: Attorney.General
hath exhibited a Charge againtt me, . confifting
of two Parts;- of* High-Trealon, and - of other
* High Crimes- and: Ofiences,  As- touching the

for High-Trealon.
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firft, comparing the A&s which the State hath

made with the Actions which my felf have done,
I know not any perfonal A¢t of mine (proved
againft me) that renders me guilty, as to Trea-
fon, by any publick Aét of your Lordihips, And
therefore [ pleaded the general Iffue, Not guilty,
as to that. -

As to the fecond, my Counfel having a general
Licence to come to me, and fince having been
with me, they have acquainted me that Pre-
fence with, or Silence at what my Accufers have
done, this renders me culpable by your Adis;
and therefore, as to that, I fhall humbly commit
my {elf to your Juftice and Mercy. S

Concerning, Sir, the Charge latd againft me,
I can fafely and truly fay I am charged with many
Things which I ought not, bzing pretended to
be done before the A was publithed which con-
ftirutes.this Court. 1 am charged likewife therein
with ;many Things that I knew not, and with

other Things .that [ did not; and therefore dare
not in Conicience le under the .Obloquy of the

whole Charge. -1 do.therefore in general declare
and proteft againft what 1s mentioned in the

:Charge, touching the raifing of .Infurrections, Se-

ditions, and Rebellions, -1 may fay m that re-

gard as Feremy did, Idefire not that woful Dav,

(od he knows. | -
To the other Particulars, to wit, the Confede-

ration with Jermin, Piercy, and others, m foreign

Parts, to raife ;Forces, I aniwer, I diflike the
very Mention of their Names, or any Concur-
rence. with them in any Pratice of fuch a na-
ture, who are Perfons whofe Principles are fo
contrarient to Religion and Liberty.

As touching the other Particulars, to wit, a
Correfpondence with the Sen of the late King,
the Queen, Fermin, and Picrey, and others men-
tioned in the Charge; I do declure belore you,
That .1 never reccived Letter f{rom, nor fent
Leter to any of thems nor had. I any Corre-
{pondence with them,

There are other Things i the Charge, to
which all the. Depofitions of the, Witnefies do
not in the lealt come up: And fhould T by my
Silence .render my {elf obnoxious to the whole,
you might judge me to be guilty of that which
indeed | am not guiliy of.

I obferve, in reading the Charge, that there
are many Things in 1t which the Witselles do
not in the leaft fpeak unto: For, firft, none of
them fwear that ever 1 wrie Letter to the King,
or to the Queen his WNother, or, to Fermiu,
Piercy, or any ather Perfon named 1n the Charge,
or to any Perfon of the Seatifb Nation, fince the
Troubles began.

Again, none of the: Witnefles fwear that ever
I either defired, or perluaded, or dire€ted any
Perfon to write any Letter to any. Perfons, whofe
Names, are mentioned in the Charge, or 1o any
Perfon in or of, the Scofifn Nation :,;MNor do any
of them {wear that ever any Letter was written
in myilHoufe; but that only Letters {fuppofed to
be come from .or ifunt to the Scots were | read
there ;..avhich [- do not deny.  Again, none, of
them fwear.thar ever 1 did {fo much as read 2
Leteer.in my Houfe, or.other where, that was
pretended to come from the Seefs, or pretended
to be fent .into Scotfand.; Further, none fivear

 that.ever I.gave my exprefs and particular A {fene

to. the.fending..away of .any Letter.  And none
{weat. that,ever 1 colleGed. one Pepny of-Money
"~ either
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either for the King, or the Scots, or any Perfon
to Scotland. That which is affirmed by one
Teftimony, to wit, by Aiford, that I moved for
Money, I fhall anfwer when I cometo 1t, A-
gain, none of the Witnefles prove that ever I
invited any Perfon, or foreign Forces, to invade
the Nations of England and Irelend 5 which yet
is laid exprefly to my Charge, in the Charge read
againft me. None likewife prove that ever 1
plotted, contrived, oOr endeav_oured to rali_“e
Forces, Tumults, or Infurrections within this
Nation againit the prefent Government. None
fvear that I was a Correfpondent. Indeed Adams
in his Teftimony had thefe Words, (which
both the Notary and myfelf took ) That he
took me to be a Correfpondent.  But whenl had
your Lordfhip’s and the Court’s Leave to put
this Queftion to him, Whether upon Oath he
would affirm I was one? his Anfwer was, That
he could not pofitively fay I was {o; but he
faid, He did conceive I was a Correfpondent;
but did not fay I was fo. So that, Sir, as to
thefe Particulars, there are none of the eight
Witneffes (neither the feven that have been
fworn, nor yet Mafter Faguel, whom I do not
take to be under an Oath) thatdo chargeany of
thefe Particulars upon me.

[ have a Word alfo to {peak concerning the
Witnefles who are my Accufers; and I might
fay there is an Incompetency n them, . as to their
Number. There are many Particulars {worn a-
gainft me, to which but one Witnefs hath fworn
to one Fact; and this I fhall humbly offer to
your Lordhip’s and the Court’s Confideration.
I might alledge alfo an Incompetency as to
their Quality: They are not only l'erfons ac-
cufed of Trealon, and fo are not to be believed,
but they have made an open Confeffion of that
which is Treafon by your A&, and fo are not
legales Teftes. They have done that by an open
Confeflion, which, as I am informed, is cquiva-
fent to 2 Conviction: They have confefled fend-
ing of Letters, receiving of Letters, and lencing
of Money; but they have proved none of thefe
Things againft me, Now they having both
given it under their Hands, and alfo publickly
declared that they have done thefe Things, I
cannot Judge them competent Witnefles againtt
me: But this I muft leave to the Court’s Confi-
deration,

Sir, concerning the Incompetency of thelr
Number, to that wherein two Witnefles do con-
cur, I am concluded; and wherein they have
tetified any Thing true, 1 would not deny it for
all the World; and wherein they agree in their
Teftimony in a Truth, therein I will be candid,
and ingenuous to acknowledee it.

My Lord, tho’ the Charge be long, and my
Time but fhort, and the Depofitions many Sheets
of Paper, (and truly I could hardly read them over
till late laft night) yet through the good Hand of
God upon me, I fhall labour to make as plain
and clear 2 Defence as God fhall enable me.

Sir, in reading over the Charge, I obferve,
that thofe things which feem moft criminal againtt
me, are fworn to but by fingle Teftimony ; and
I will mention, with your Lordthip’s leave, a
few Particulars.

Firft, Touching the Letters faid to be from
Titns, the Effe@® of it being, as was faid, to
defire fome to come over to Calais, that he
might give them Information touching Affairs at
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Ferfey 5 none but Far {wears that this Letter
was read in my Honfe. The other Witnefles,
fome fay, it was read 1n one place, ana fome in
another: Alford, T remember, he fays he heard
it from }illiam Drake; and Adams fays, it was
vead in FWillian: Drake’s Houle: but none but
Far {wears, it was read in my Houfe, There is
likewife none but Far fwears, that Major A#lford
was defired in my Houfe to go to Calais to Titus;
neither Faguel, nor Poiter, nor Aiford, nor
Adzms, nor any of the reft lay this to my
Charge: it is only Far that lays this to my
Charge, and he doth it moft untruly, which I
will make out unto you by an undeniable Demon-
ftration.

He fays, that at a Mceting at my Houfe the
Company did defire Major 4/ford to go to Calais.
Now if your Lordfhip obferves alford’s Tefti-
mony, he tells you upon QOath, that he was
never in my Houfe till after he came from Ce-
lais, nor ever {pake with me in my life tiil afier
he came from Calais, therefore could not be de- -
fired in my Houle to go to Calais, So that,
Sir, I will not lay 1t upon the Badnels of [urs
Conlfcience, but upon the Badnefs of his Me-
mory. Ydo not think he 1s fuch an Atheift, to
{wear fallly deliberately 5 but being asked fo
many Queftionsas he was, for he was ask’d four-
fcore and eighteen Queftions by Mr. Attorney,
and fome of the Court, he might cafily fay he
knew not what,

And 1 faw the Man was confounded, and it wag
hinted to him what to fay, by the help of the Pa-
pers, and Examinations taken from him in pri-
vate, and fhewed to him in publick: fo that,
Sir, I faw the Man under a Temptation, [ was
loth to mention this then, tho’ I knew his Tefti-
mony herein to be falle, becanfe 1 would not an-
ticipate my laft Anfwer,

A tlhird Particular charged upon me by one
Witnefs only, isa Copy of a Lewer (not the
Original, none fwears that) that 4/ferd reccived
from Titrsy and hetold him, it was a Copy of
a Letter from the King. Now Far he fwears
that the Subftance of the Letter was to defire
Commiflioners to be fent over to Bieda, at the
Treaty there: now A'fuid, who preiended to
receive this Letter from Titns, being asked the
Queftion, he fwears that there was no fuch
thing in the Letter, that he knew of. Now
truly, if any did know the Contents of that
Copy of a Letter, 1t mult be Alferd, who

- brought it over: [ befeech your Lordfhip there-

fore to confider it, and tho’ the Charge againft
me be very high, and my Condition very low,
and the Oppofition againft me very great; yet [
hope I am in the hands of merciful and juft
Men, and that wherein you fee but fingle Teiti-
monies, that therein you would be very tender
in proceeding to a Sentence again{t me upon thofe
Teftimonies,

Again, in the next place, I obferve a fingle
Teftimony only in another Bufinefs, and that is
Major Alford, None but he, of all the Wit-
nefles did {wear that it was agreed upon among
us, Thatis, at my Houfe, That a Commiffion
and Infiructions fhould be fent over to the Lord
IWillongbby of Parbam, Maffey, Titns, and Al
derman Bunce 5 none, I fay, but #lford fwore this.
Adams indeed fwore, that there was a Motion s
that this thould be; and Huntington fwore this,
taat Mr. Loze fhould fay, Come, come, ler it

oF
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oo (to which I fhall anfwer, when I come to
)

it.) But Far faid exprefly, three times in Court,

heing upon Qath alfo, That all ti}e Company
wcreg agzgn& fending away the Commiffion.  And
Alford he only fwears, That the Commuflion was
agreed upon. e
Jb[iﬁhopf your Lord(hip and the Court will judge
which of thefe to believe ; and for Aford’s affirm-
ing that it was agreed upon among us, I am {ure,
if he had any Confcience, he could not fay that
I agreed to it. 1 will not deny (now Witneffes
have proved it) but that 1 was prefent,  But
I did exprefs myfelf againft the Commiffion and
Inftrutions, as being an Aé of high Prefu_mpt:-
on, for private Perfons to fend Commiflions
and Inftrutions; and as being an Act of note-
rious Falfhood, that it fhould run n the name
of the Presbyterian Party, when none did know
any thing of it, that I know of, but only thofe
that were then in the Room. And I befeech
your Lordfhip and the Court to confider, thqt
this is not only a fingle Teftimony, but that It
i« {aid to be done in the Year 1649, a great while
ago, my Lord. And fo the Bufinefs of Tifus, if
st had been true, was done fome time before
that : fo that, Sir, it being done before the Act
of the 26th of Mareh 1650, which confticutes
this Court, herein I hope it will not be deemed
criminal, if 1 had agreed to and approved of
the Commiffion, which I never did. Another
Particular, to which I obferve there 15 but a
fingle Teitimony, which is #fford alfo; he {wore,
that at a Meeting at my Houfe, I moved for
Contribution of Money to Tifus; none {wore
this but only he. Adams {wore, I took Pen and
Ink in my Hand, but he knows not what [ writ.
Others {wore, That I was fometimes prefent at
the Meeting ; but none but Alford {wore, that I
moved at a Mecting for Contribution of Money.
Now, Sir, as to that it is but a fingle Tefti-
mony; and if it were true, 1 do not deem it
comes under the A, becaufe the Act (of which
I was ignorant till the day 1 heard it here 1n
Court) of the 2d of Auguft 1650, that At doth
adjudge this to be Treafon, to wit, The fending,
or cauftug to be fent, Money, Horfes, or Arms,
inio Scotland, Now, Sir, if it had been true,
which this Witnefs depofeth, That 1 ata Meet-
ing did move for Money, yet he proves not
again{t me, that ever 1 received or {ent away a
Penny; and if I had moved it, that had neither
been a fending away of Money into Scotland, nor
a caufing of Money to be fent away: and fo
brings me not, asto T reafon, under your Act.
Anocther thing, unto which only a particular
Witnefs fwore, to wit, Fur, 15, That I moved
him particularly to contribute Money, He
chargeth not this at a Meeting, as Alford doth
for he fays, he came in late, but faith that ic
was a perfonal Motion to himalone: And he
doth not fay, that I moved him for Money for
Maffey and Titus, but that 1 only asked him this
Quettion, Cuaptain Far, what will yorn do? And
it your Lordfhip confider 1t, and that your No-
taries have taken righr, you fhall find that to be
his Anfwer, which I fhall an(wer when I come
to it. And thereupon he confefles, he brought
five Pounds to my Houfe, but he doth not tell
vou that I received it; and God is my Witnefs,
I never faw it, nor received it, nor did 1 give
any direCtions about it. Butas Far was going
out of the Court, he named Captain Maffey, the
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Perfon which he thought received the Money ;
for which he was rebuked by fome that were
by him, that fo the greater Odium might lie
upon me: as if becanfe the Money being brought
to my Houfe, I muft needs therefore receive
it. His Name, as | am informed, that rebu-
ked him for declaring who received it, is Cap-
tain Bifbop: {o that they would infinuate into-
your Breafts, who are my Judges, (who I hope
will be confcientious) That it was Ithatreceived
the Money, when the Witnefs meant honeft-
Iy, that another receivedit. But if I had recetved
it, or moved for It, yet he is but a fingie.
Teftimony to that Particular.  Again, inreading
the Depolfitions, I take notice that there 1s on-
ly a fingle Teftimony to thofe words; (upon
the reading, reading 1 cannot fay, for 1 never
read it; upon the hearing fome Papers read,
fuppofed to be a Commiflion) that [wsilington
{fwore, that I fhould fay, Come, come, let it go.
Thofe were his words 3 but the other who were
there prefent, two or three of them beirg ask’d,
whether they heard me fpeak fuch words, they.
all of them denied that they heard any fuch-
words, Now truly this Hustington 1s 2 Man
whofe Face 1 never faw before that day, rorfince,.
till I faw him here in Court: and it } bad known
that 2 Bufinefs of any dangerous nature had been
come to my Houfe, which I did not, (forl
knew no more of it, than any here prelent, be-
fore Drake took the Papers out of his Pocker,
which Huntington confefles were written 10 Cha-
racters, and read by Drake) | fhould have been
accounted a very indifcreer Man, to fpeak any
fuch words in the prefence of a Man whofe Face
I never faw before, And for thofe words that T
fhould fay, Come, coine, let i go; 1 hope your
Lordlip and the Court will be fatisfied, that L
never fpake any fuch word, as to the Commif-
fion and Inftrudtionss for then I fhould have
contradiCtedd my {elf in one breath: for at the
fame time [ had {poke againft it

Again, I oblerve in the Depofitions, none but
Adams affitms that there was a Letter, <wbich,
{ays he, <was declared to be direéied to the Geaeral
Affemblyof Scotland, He doth not fiear it was
direCted to the General Affembly, but that it
was declared to be fo, and fo {wears by Hear-fay.
None but he, I fay, affirms upon Oath, That
at my Foufe there was a Letter read, which was
declared to be directed to the General Aflembly.
And he fays furcher, e thought this Letter was
penned by Mafter Love or Dr. Drake: But I be-
fecch your Lordfhip and the Court to confider
by what reafon he did concetve this; and I hope
your Lordfhip will aiftinguifh between a pofitive
Affertion, and a conjettural Suppefition. Yor
being ask’d, why he conceived fo? [ conceive fo,
fays he, becanfe of the Language of it: as if he
that never faw any Letter of mine, to know
that poor and low Style I write in, fhould con-
ceive that etther 1, or that other Gentleman
named, fhould pen that Letter, merely becaufe
of the Language of it, it being, (he faid) in
order to promote the Ends of the Covenant. 1
hope the Court will judge of the Infufficiency
of this Evidence; and were it never {o clear,
vet as to that Particular, 1t 1s but one Telli-
mony.

Again, none but #dams fware concerning a
larege Letter, that, for my part, I never knew
of, till the day he affirmed it here in Coure. A
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larpe Letter, he fays, in the nature of a Declara-
tion, penn’d, as he thought, by Malter Lsve or
Pr. Drake, wherein it thould be faid, That they
could not fend Money till the Seots did appear
more confiderable, and grew nearer to Action:
Yet he confefivs he had no ground to fay Mafter
Love peni’d it.  And indeed he had not.  But,
Sir, as for this Leteer, though I durlt not for a
Wotld deny any thing which I kaow to be true;
yet God is my Record, to my knowledge, I ne-
ver fo much as heard any mention of 1. And
as for thefe words he fbeaks of to bz in the Let-
ter, I know nothing at all of them; nor did I
ever hear them, as | know of, dll I heard lum
affirm them here in Court.

Butif it kad been fo, yet he is but a {ingle
Teftimony, and 1 befeech your Lordihip to con-
fider, that he fiys it was to this effect, or this
was the Subflance of 1t: Now [ hope fo many
grave Judges and Lawyers that fic upon my Life,
and fo many confcicntious Men, will be tender of
a Man’s Blood, when a Man fhall come in with
Evidence, and fhall fhew neither my Hand, nor
the Letter, nor the Original, neither Copy, nor
Tranfeript, nor any thing but the vain Rovings
of a Man’s Memory in things fpoken or done
fo Jongago; andthata Man fhall come in againit
a Man's Life, and fhall only fay, that this was
the Sum or Subftance of 1t, or it was to this
cfi2ét.  And I being a Divine, I fhall not fpeak
as to Mawer of Law, that this 15 infufficient
Tellimony 3 buras a Scholar, and one that ftudies
the Scriptures, I fhall obferve one memorable
Inftance that pleads my Juftification in this Par-
ticular, and they are the words of Chrilts Chrift
faid, Deaffroy ye this Temple, and in thiee Days I
will raife it #p, John il 19. Now the Scripure
in Mark fays, Tiere arefe certain, and bare falfe
witnefs againft Chrift, faying, e beard bim fay, T
will defiroy this Temple, &c, Maik xiv. 57, 53,

[ befeech your Lordfhip to confider, that in
this Teftimony of the falfe Witnelles againft
Chrift, there 15 oply the Varmtion of 2 Word,
and the Adduwion of a Letter; there 1s the Ad-
dition of a Letter 7, and the Alieration of the
word ye for will {ther¢’s all) for Chrift did nor
fay [ will deftroy, but, deffray ye; and yer the
Scripture takes notice of 1t, that this Addition
of a Letter, and Alteration of a Word, brought
his Accufers under a falfe Teftimony, though
they fpake according to their Intention; for they
did verily believe he fpake of the Temple: for
they faid, Forty Years was it in building, So
that I befeech you be tender in Marmers of
Blood. 1 know you who are skifful in the Law
do know, that the Proof of Treafon muft be as
clear as the Sun, FProbationes oportent effe fuce cla-
ricres, Now when a Man fhall come againit a
Man’s Life, and cannot fhew any Leter that
ever he wrote, or that ever fiec did receive, but
fhall only fwear it was to this efiect, or to this
purpofe, or I believe this was the Subffance of
it; 1 hope youare {o wife and confcientious, tha
you will pafs no Judgment upon this conjectural
Evidence.

Anather Particular, to which only one Wit-
nefs tefifies, and that s Adams; he fwears that
I thould fay, Thatif the Presbyterians were in.
Arms, by the Blefling of God, Malignants might
ke prevented from geting the day.  Truly, | do
not know what Crime is in thefe words, but as.
they may be wrefted,  Dur, Sir, I do remember

that this Adams hath often come to my Houfe;
he faid feven or eight times, he might have faid
feven aud twenty nmess for he hath come
fometimes once or twice a Week to my Houle,
to tempt me (as I now perceive) and hath offered
me Money 3 and would ask me whether 1 knew
any thing for a publick Ufe that might require
Moneys And though I never fufpected him, yer
fo free am 1 from maintaining Correfpondency,
or from having Intelligence, or contributing of
Money to mamtain 2 War, that I never received
onc Penny of lim in my Life, though I have
been moved to it by him: But 1 remember, of
Jate efpecially, about a quarter of a Year before
I was i Prifon, he would come once or twice
1 Week to my Houfe, and he pretended that he
was wrought upon by me, and that I had turned
hin frem his malignant principles; for he was
very violent for Hamiltew’s Invafion of England,
which 1 was, and to this day am againft; and I
did labour to poflels him what a mifchievous
Defign that was: and fo he pretended to be
turned to my Principles, and uwpon this got fome
room in my Affections. But thefe words were
not above a fortnight before I was committed to
Prifon: and 1 remembet the Qccafion of them
was this; 1 was bewailing the grear Alienation
and Diffcrence that there was between the Pres-
byterian and Independent Party (though I do
not love names of DiftinGion) and indeed thus
I faid, that if the godly Party, that were now
difanited and disjoined, both of the diffenting
and  Presbyterian Way, were in Arms, there
were no Flopes that ever the Malignants fhould
gee the Day.  And God 1s my Record, I fpake
nothing to him but to this purpofe.  And thus,
through the good Hand of God upon me, I
have fpoken to what 1 obferve in reading: the
Depofitions, wherein I find but fingle Teftimo-
nies againft me,

I fhall now crave leave (which is the majn of
my Work) to run over the Depolitions as briefly
as I can; for I fhall not trouble you with large
opeeches: but being the Depofitions were Jarge,
aod the Witnefles many, your Lordfhip and the
Court (L hope) will bear with me with the more
Patience, if [ {peak more largely init, It is my
Duty to fpeak for myfelf, and it is for my Life.

The firft Witnefs that appear’d in Court againft
me, was Fenry Potzer. As to his Teltimo-
ny, there are many Particulars which he was
ast’d about me, to which he fpake but conjec-
crally 5 as be thenght, and as he belicved, and as.
be conceived.  And when Papers by Mr. Attor-
ney-General of his Examination were tendred to
him, he anfwered, That then be bad @ Latiinds
to fpeak more than be durjt affivm upen Cath,  And
upon this 1 fhall humbly crave leave that I may
make this Moticn to you, That you would not,

i pafling Judgment upon me, hearken to any
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privaie Examinations, which are extrajudicial,
to be broughe in Court againft me; for ‘moft of
the Witnefles had their private Examinations.
fhewed them in Court, and were read to them,
and they did not fpeak in cheir Relations of
what they. knew, but whar they conceived s and
when they could not tell what to fay,. then their
Examinations were produced to dire@ them: and
I hope your Lordfhip and the Court will take
notice of this,  And herein I cannor bur ac-.
knowledge the Jultice of this Court in this Par-
ticufar, That you would not receive private
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Examinations till they came Face to Face, that I
might anfwer to the Crimes laid againft me,

But as to his Teftimony, I fhali not run over
things that touch me not, I muft not flatter my
felf to pafs over things that concern me: For I
know it will be looked upon with more prying

Eyes than mine arc. There are only two things
in his Teftimony that concern me: He fpeaks

not of any Meetings at my Houfe that he knows
of 3 he fpeaks not of any Money that ever I lent
him or gave him, though therc was a narrow
and exact Examination of him in thofe Particu-
Jars. But two things concern me in his Depofi-
tion ; the one is, That he received a Letter with
a great L. upon it, {rom one Colnnq] Bamfield.
which was a Narrative of the Affaws ol Seot-
londd s which Letter, with two more inclofed,
from my Lord of Argyle, Lotodon, and Latbian,
he faid, he brought them to Mr. Love’s: and
herein I might take notice, that he forgot him-
felf a litle, for he mighe have faid, that he
brought them Orlt to Mr. Faquel's; tor Faguel
did affirm in Court, that Peiter brought the Let-
ters to him, and ipake to him to come to me,
The Subflance of the Letters {rom the Harl of
Argyle and the reft, he fays, wereto mote for
Ten Thoufand Pounds; -and {as | remember) 7a-
grel fays, for Five Thoufand Pounds: But Pos-
zer himidf acquits me 1 this matter ;5 for he
doth not fwear the Letter was to me, nor could
he fwear it juftly; nay, he fwears he did not
think it was to me, And as tor this Bamfield,
he 1s 2@ Man whofe Face I never {uw to this Day:
and he {wears, (and indeed he had been injurious
if he had not told you thus) that when he came
into Mr. Leve’s Houle, he faid,
Mr Love, I bave News to fhew
yorr, And unlefs things be agora-
vated againlt me, by the Infinua-
ttons of Men, and by rigid Infe-
rences and Colleétions, this will be
the worlft charged upon me, That
there were feveral Mectings at my
Houfe, and {everal Letters read
there, which T do not deny. Bur, Sir, he con-
fefles that ke faid [Ar. Love, [ bave wews fo
foezw yorr ;] and that he opened fome of the Let-
ters, and that {fome were not opened when he
brought them: But neither he nor Faguel {wears,
that I opencd them s and he tells you, That he
carried away the Letters with him.  And he
twears further, That both my felf, and all that
were there prefent, did manifet an utter Diflike
and Deteftation of thofe Lerters. But herein I
lenow what will be laid to my Charge; it will
be faid, Why did not Mr. Leve reveal them ?
Truly, in this T do ingenuoufly fay, That I did
conceive by reading of the A& that conftitutes
this Court, That thofe only were bound to re-
veal, that did receive them ; and not that I was
bound to reveal that which another Man recei-
ved. But herein I am better informed by my
Counfel, and they tell me, That Prefence with,
or Stlence at what others do, makes it a criminal
I :}& in me, it the Matter of the Letter be cri-
nnnn‘l nnc} treafonable by your Adts; and there-
fore in this, that I did not difcover them, I fhall
humbly beg yvour Favour.

The nexc ’_Fhin'g in Potter’s Teftimony that
toucheth‘ me, 15, he fwears that he heard of a
Propofition for raifing of 400/, for Titus and

Mafley 5 but he varies from the others s Alford
Vor. 1l
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faid, 2 or 00/, and Far faid 250 or 300/, and
Potter faith, 400/, But he fath he was not
prefent, when the Propofition was made, and
theretore he cannot fpeak as to thar, But yet
faith he, I brought Ten Pounds to My, Love's
Houfe, and there left it 5 (five or fix Perfons more
being in the Room.) Mr, Attorney-General was
pleafed to ask him, Whether he did not give
me a twitch by the Hand or Cloke, when he
brought 1t? Poiter, I remember, denics that he
did fo; and I do not remember th:t ever he did
it, nar do I remember that ever hie laid a Penny
of Money down in my Houfe: And [ tell 1t
you in the Prefence of God, I never faw it, nor
recetved it to this very Day. But, Sir, if he had
given me a twitch, which is intended as an Ag-
gravation againft me, I hope a Judicatory will
not proceed upon o filent a thing as chat is:
Though Selemen fays, There is a Teacking with
the Fingors, Prov. 6. 13. yet that s fo filent a
thing, that a Court of Judicatory cannot take
notice of it, unlefs it be manifelt and apparent
by fome Act, And therefore fceing he doth rot
affirm that T fuw the Money laid down, or that
[ received the Moacy, or direfted or ord-red
him to come to my Houfe with any Morey, |
hope you will not lay chat to my Charge. And
thus 1 have done as to that Particular,

"T'here 15 only one thing more in order to the
Letters he was examined about, He was asl’d
what Anfwer was returned to thofe Leters rhat
he received from Bamfeld, and the Eary of Ar-
gyle and the reft, that he fhewed Mr. Lowve? ‘U0
that he gave this Account, That a Litter was
left at his Shop, which he thought, he faid,
came from Mr. Love, or Doltor Drake. Now,
Sir, for my part, 1 declare in the prefence of
God, That [ never in all my Life, either wrote
or fent, or lefta Letter at his Shop @ And al-
though I am not to plead another Man’s Caufe,
yet I believe that godly Minifter he mentions
will clear himfelf alfo; but I muft only fpeak to
my own Defence,  For my part, [ never in my
Life fent a Letter to his Shop, wriiten to thofe
Perfons: and he only {wears, that he thought the
Letter left 1n his Shop came from me or Doétor
Drate: But how could he know from whom it
came, or what was the Matter of 1£?2 Aad if
it had come from either of us, which he did not
afirm, yet he doth not fay he opened the Let-
ter, and fo could not tell the Contents of it, that
it was an Anfwer to the fuppofed Letter he
fhewed me. I have only one thing to obferve
1n his whole Teflimony, and that 15, That he
confeffes, until he had a fight of other Mens
Examinations in private, to wit, of Alferd’s and
Adams’sy the things did not come to his Remem-
brance, or Words to that Effedt he hath in his De-
pofitions 3 and that there were fome things to
which he could not fpeak exaltly, till he firlt faw
fome Informations ; and that Mr. Attorney- Ge-
neral did fthew him fome Informations, and thar
did bring things to his Remembrance; and thac
betore Capt. Fifber and Mr. Attorney did prompt
him, and remember him, he had forgot. So
that, Str, 1 befeech you confider, whether this
be a clear and a good Teftimony in Law, That
when 2 Man hath forgot a thing done fo long
ago, he fhall through the Examinations of others
have his Memory rubb’d up, and then {hall
come here ina publick Court to teftify this againft

a Man’s Life,
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The next Witnefs is Major Alford, he gives
you a large Relation about fending Ttns to Fer-

fer, and of 100l given him for his Journey,

and of Letters to the Queen, and Fermin and

Piercy. My Lord, I am as ignorant of all thefe
things as the Child unborn, and did never kaow
that Titus vas gone or fent to Jferfey, by any
Perfon, till a long time after I heard he was
there, and till I heard of his Name in the Diny-
sals, that he was an Agent for fome Presbyte-
rians; till then, God is my Record, I knew no-
thing of that: and I need not {peak to this, but
becaufe this was part of my Charge, and brought
nto the Court, many may imagine, as if 1 were
cuilty upon the whole matter.  But that which
concerns me, is this; he affirms that the Com-
miffion and [nftructions were agreed upon at my
Houfe, to fend to fome Perfons, t wit, my
Yord Willoughsy of Parbam, Maffey, Tirus, and
Aldermai, Buiice, to treat at Breda s and this to
be in the behalf of the Presbyterian Party.

Now, Sir, I thall humbly crave leave to offér,
wherein this Teltimony is not only difagreeing
witih the Teltimony of others of the Wiinefles,
but even to his own Teflimony alfo.  For here
he foys, it was agreed upon at Malter Love's
Houfe; and in three Leaves after, he fays, 1t is
true, there was a Commuflion and Inftructions
read at Mr. Lsve’s Houfe; bur whether they
were agreed upon there or no, faith he, 1 know
not. I do not fay he hath a bad Confcience,
bue fure | am he hath a bad Memory. He dil-
agrees with the Witnefles alfo; for Far did ex-
prefly affirm upon Oath, That all the Company
was againft {ending them away; and therclore
for Aiford tofay 1t was agreed upon among us,
in that { am fure he doth ror fpeak truly.  Ano-
ther thing which »7rd lays 1o my Charge, is
about a Letter, which atier Dunbar-Fight thould
come from Afaff-, wherein he fhould write for
Money, and for Arms, by the way of Hollund
and he fwears this Letter was read in my Houfe,
and fays, That upon the reading of i, I did
move for the Contribution of Money to be rai-
Ied for the Supply of Titrs. Now before [uan-
fwer to thar, though 1 am not in a Condition to
recort, yet I fhall humbly crave leave, with-
out Offence to Mr. Aworney-General, to Intreat
the Court to take notice of this one thing :
Mafter Attorney-General, when the Witnefs
had fpake thefe Words, did pray your Lordfhip
and the Court to obferve, that Mafey wrote for
Arms, and Mr. Love moved for Money; as if
he would mfinuate to the Court, That he wri-
ting for Arms, and I moving for Money, that
my moving for Money wasto buy Arms. Now
Alford upon Qath did declare, That every Man
there was aganft Arms, and he only faid, That
the Motion for Money, was to fupply the per-
fonal Neceflities of Adaffey and Titus, who were
in want. So that I inreat you to confider it,
that that Infinvation of Mr. Attorney-General
might not be aggravated againft me, and that a
bad Inference might not be drawn from it as
if he writing for Arms, and 1 moving for Mo-
ney, that that Money fhould be to buy Arms ;
which 15 contrary to Mujor 4lford’s Oath,  A-
gain, another Infinuation of Mr. Attorney-Ge-
neral is this; He prayed your Lordfhip and the
Court to confider, That I moved for 300/ now
this 1s contrary to Aiferd’s Oath s for Alford hath
thefe words, M. Love did mgve for the Contriby-
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tione of Money, but there was no Sum fiuker of,
Now when he fhall affirm that there was only
a Motion for Money, but no Sum {poken of,
fhall this be laid to my Charge, as it } moveg
for goo /.2 Therefore I intreat you, that thofi
Infinuations and Aggravations of Mr., Attorney-
General may not be laid upon me ; and thae ye
would take no notice of any private Examina-
tions, hor yet of any Aggravations of thofe
who are Inftruments of State, but upon the plain
Depolition of the Witnefles, and ccording to
their Teltimony and your Confciences | muft
{tand or fall. Affoid faid further, That atier
he came from Tutzs, he gave an account of 3
Narrative, and of a Copy of a Letter from the
King of Scots, What he might bring I know
not; and it hedid, 1 never defired him, eicher 1o
go to Calaisy or to come to my Houfe: For ]
never {pake with him as I remember, cill after he
came from Casais 5 nor till the time, he fays, the
Letter and Narrative was read in my Houfe,
Now, Sir, he only fays it was a Copy of 3
Letter (not the Original) That Titus (faith he)
did fbew me a Copy of o Letter, at leaflwife, awhich
be faid <was ﬁ'a{u :ZJ.:*_KEHS to the Presbyterian Pay-
2y.  So that this which 1s the woundation of the
reft of the Teftimony, is only this, Thar the
Copy of the Ietter wis read e my Houfe, and
that 3t was @ Copy of the King’s Leror,  This
he athrms only upos Hear-fay 5 for he [ays, !ifus
told him fo: But who cap {wear, either thut T3-
fus bad the original Letter, or that this wae )
true Copy? Nay, might it not br a2 Hiftinogs
thing, cither of Titrs or of this Man, us may
well be fufpectad 2 So that they thar rece v
Letters, if that be Trealon, and thofe thar wrce
Letters and {fend Moncy, if they be Traiters 3
ver they have proved none of thete againft me,
and yet « only am arraiencd, and they in hope of
Favour,

Again, T defire the Court to take notice,
though Captain fur fays there was this Cluf 11
the Copy of the Litwer from the Kisg, 1o jend
Commyffroncrs £ Bieda s (and yet he overthrew his
Outh ateerwards 5 for he favs, it is o lorg ago,
that | cannot remember #': but [ fhall fpml?to
hat when I come to it) yet difmd, that brengtie
this Letter, affirms, That he did ot know it
was to defire Commiffioners to be fenr; and if
it had been fo, 1 fhould never have dore ir, and
never did it. At that time I was in my Siudy,
I do not deny it; but when Lrake read the
Commlf_ﬁorr, b did declare my Diflike of it, and
Deteftation againtt it and fo dig (as far affirm-
ec) cither moft or all the Company : And if any
fuch thirg ‘were fent, God is my Record, I did
neieher K..ow of the wiiting of ir, (other than
in Characters) nor of the contriving of ir, nor
yet of the fending of it away, till I heard .
: that he carried this
Commiffion to Grazveftad to one Mafen, a {lan
whofe Name T never heard of before T was in
Trouble, And if T had written and confented
0 I, yet it was in the year 1649, as Major
Huntington fwore, and therefore was before the
tme that your A& could take hold of me, if I
had concurred to it, which I never did. Again,
he inflited upon it, Thar I moved for a Cou-
tribution.  Now herelny ] befeech your Lord-
fhip, that I_ms_iy offer thefle two things,

Firft, This is bur the ingle Teftimony: of one

Man, and by the Law of God, and of the Land,

a
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2 Man muft notdie, but under the :I'e[’cunony of
Two or Three Witnefles: in the oid Teftament,
Dent. g. and 15, Ome }.f/?t_fzeﬁ fhall not ?‘fﬁj p
againft a Man for any Tiiquity, or fa;r' any Sin i
any Sin that be finneth, At tbe Mouto F’f Two Wit-
weffes, or ab the Mouth of Three fﬂfffﬁjﬂ;’{ , Shall
the matler be qﬁaﬂﬁﬂwd. And left .tl}ls m:ght be
thought to be a Judicial Law pertining only to
the Jewith State, it is therefore quoted four times
in the New Teftament ; by Chrift, m Matth. 18.
by Paul, n2 Cor. 13 and i two ocher }’la?es,
as noting it to be a Law of Moral Equity,
That no Man’s Life thould be taken away but by
exprefs and clear Teftimony of Two fufficient
WitnefTes, Now in this that may feem moft to
pinch upon me, that I fhould move for Mﬂnf.:.y,
there is but one Witnefs; and it is, as [ am 1n-
formed, contrary to the Laws of the Land, and
the Statute of the 1ft of Eezward the Sixth, which
provideth, That no Man fhall be indiCted, ar-
raigned, and convitted for Trealon, but by two
lawful and fufficient VWitnefies: and therefore I
befeech your Lordfhip and the Court, that you
would be tender in thole things, wheren you find
but one Witnefs {peaking.

'The other thing that 1 fhall fay to this Point,
abour moving for Money, 1s, That 1 humbly
conceive the Act doth forbid relieving Perfons 1in
Arms; but now no Perfon can be relieved by a
bare Motion: itis not the Motion, but the hav-
ing the Money moved for, before the Perfon
in Arms can be fiid to be relievedy and if it
were true, yet it is not proved, That thofe
Perfons were then in Armis,  The other A& of
the Szcond of Auzuff, 1 conceive, gives me Re-
Lief, 1f [ had moved for Moneys tor it judges
mofe only to be guilty of Treafon, that fhall
either fend, or caule to be fent, Money, Horle,
Arms and Ammunitton into Seetland,  Now,
Sir, 1f I had in a Meeting moved for Money,
yet he tells you not how muzh I moved for; for
ought he knows it might be bue for Six-pence,
for he cannot fear to ir: and I bope, when the
Sum is not {poken of you will be very tender.
Yer this comes not under your A&, either to be
a fending of Money into §eotland, or a cauling
of it to be fenr, which i1s not the lealt faftened
upon me.  When I ask’d him (though he fwore
I moved for Money) whether I contributed any
Money my {eli? to thar he anfwered, he could
not fay I did, nor could any of the Eight Wit-
nelfes that came againft me, And thus I have
done as to hic Tettimony.

The third Witnefs is Major Huntington ; and
he affirms, That in the Year 1649, one ask’d
him 10 go to my Houfe, and told him there were
lome there at Prayer, and that he mighe there
hear fome News; and that he fpake upon hear-
fay: But then he fpake upon Quth, And when [
came there, Prayer wwas done, Now for a Man to
be fo pofitive 1 the firlt Entrance of his Tefti-
mony, as to {ay Prayer was done, when he could
not know that there was any Prayer there at all 4
(for when he came, it feems there was no Prayer ;
and how then could he know there was any
Prayer there at that time ?) this at the very firft
Entrance of his dvidence, I fuppofe, might be
a jult Ground to fulpe&t his whole Teltimony.
But as for the Man, [ knew him not, I never
ﬁ_lw him, as I faid, before that Time, nor {ince,
nil § faw him here in Court.  This Man affirms,

‘That Pilliam Drake read in Charatters, that
You, i1,

for Higll-Ti'eafon.
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which he called 2 Commiffion, and faid, Thae
he bad a Command from the King to fend this
Commuffion away; which, God is my Record,
I never heard, nor ever knew of it : and Ajerd
that brought over the Letter, in which Far
{wore thofe words were, he himielf denies it.
But that which concerns me in Huntingion’s Te-
ftimony, is this, he affirms, That when the
Commiflion was read by Diake, I fhould fay,
Come, come, let 1t go. Now, Sir, I ask’d him
this Queftion, Let it go, what doth that refer
tof  Says Huntington, let the Papers go. Now
truly I am not fo bad a Grammarian as to {peak
of Papers, et it go, and not to fay, let them go.
And if I had fpoke of Papers, as ae fays I did,
I mult either be guiley of Nonfenfe, or elfe he
of Falfhood; I believe he of both. Bur as for
thofe words, Come, come, let it go; he douth not
affirm that I faid, Come, let it go away, butlet
1t 203 and that may be a word of diflike: And
if I did fay fo, yet it was not of the Commif-
fion, God i1s my Record 5 for he came ror till
Nine of the Clock at Wight, as himfelf fays:
and before he came, [ had declared mv flf a-
gainft {ending away the Commifiion and Iaglru-
ctions, as being an At of wo high a Maure for
private Men, and of natorious Faithood, to fay
it was in the Name of the Presbyterian Rarty,
when it was not.  And the oner Men that were
here in Court upon Ouatiy aud that were then
prefent, as Adanes and Afferd, did coniefs ucon
Examination, 'I'hat they heard no such words from
me.

The next Teftimony is Malter Adamsy and he
relates a Story of a Correfponuency borween /77
fiam Drike and one adufoins and ozing ask’d, Was
Mafter Love privy to this Corrfpondenc: ? he
did fo far clear me, that he could not fay 1r, nor
was [ privy wo it.  Being ask’d again, Was Ma-
fter Love privy to thefe Letters of feading mo-
derate Propofitions to the king?  That he like-
wife clears me in, he cannot fay w: And I can
fay, that 1 am fo far from Moderation i cheir
Seafe, that Moderation 1n their Seafe | deem
downright Maligaity ;3 wiich I was and fill am
utterly againft. He was asi’d hikewils, Did
Mafter Love know of collecting a Hundred
Pounds for Titus ¢ To that he anlwered, That
he durft not upon Ouath iy that Mr. Lsre wus
privy to tius Coilecticn 5 and nhe doth not fay,
that 1t was agreed in my Houle to fend away the
Commiffion, but fays, it was moved in my Houfe:
for he {ays, [/ cannot fay, it was agreed upon, for
there was no Vote paf’d.  Thele were his Words ;
and he coatradiéts Aford and Fur in three Places
of his Teftimony., He overthrows Aiford’s De-
pofition. He affirms that the Copy of the Lete
ter from the King was to [hew whiat great A ffec-
tion he bare to the Nintitry of Euslend; and
promifed great Favour when he was in a Con-
diton to do it, and defired them to {tand ftedlaft
i the Way they were in.  And he faich he dare
not {wear that this Letter was read in my Houfes
but he thinks it was. Now, as to tats Lerter
likewife, I ‘deflire the famne Favour from you,
that when the Letter doth not appeary neither
the Original, nor the individual Copy, that you
would be tender of pafling any Judgmen: upon
me upon the vain Rovings of a Man’s Memory ;
and of a Man’s Memory too, that 15 engaged to
profecute my Life to fave his own, as moft of

the Witnefles are that came in againft me, He
S 2 fairh
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faith there was 2 Motion made in my Houle,
that a Commiffion and Inftructions {hould be
drawn up, to fend to my Lord Filloughby of
Parbam, and the reft in Helland 5 but he fays,
But by whom [ canint fay: and fays he, Toere
awas 1o Debate, as Iremember, to mend the Infiiuc-
tions; though the Attorney-General did liy 1t
upon me, as if I had correfted and amended
them, when I did neither read them, no, nor o
much 25 touch them in my Life. The Sublance
of the Commiflion, he tells you, was to authorize
the Lord /¥illoughby of Parbam, Majley, (sraves,
and others to aflit their Brethren of the Scotifl
Nation in their Treaty. Now to this there is a
manifelt ‘Conwradiction in another Man’s Tefti-
mony : For Captain Fui {wears thar the Com-
miffion he fpeaks of was not to trear, but only,
as private Perfons to advife that the Ning might
agree with the Scors upon the Intereft of Reli-
gion, and the Terms of the Covenant; that he
might not be drawn away by the high-flown
Cavaliers and Malignants,  So that Far over-
throws this Tellimony of Adams. . Adams fays it
was to treats and Far fays 1t was not to treat,
but to advife. But be it the one, or be it the
other, I deteft boch ;3 1 had no hand in, ard
oave no Afliat unto it, but manifefted my Dil-
{fent to the whole.  He being likewife asked (for
Iam flill upon Adams’s Teftimony) whether at
a Mecting it was rot propounded at my Houfe
to write to the Qucen, and to Fermin and Piergy,
to mediate with the King to agree wiih the
Sests: To this he anfweredy, No.  And truly
he might very well anfwer fos tor I am fure I
did nrever in aif my Life hear of a Motion fo
much as of a Leiter to be writ to any of thefe
three Perfons, to the Queen, Piercy, or Feriiin s
and fhould have lothed and abhorred the very
Thought of it and fhould think that Caufe the
worfe, ,wherein thele  Perfons were engaged,
Being asked whether there was not a Letter
from Picrey, that writ for Money to be fent to
the King; and whether the Anlwer given was,
That they fhould ftay ull the King and Scots
were agreed, and then to fend Moneys Adoms
in this did me tlus Right:  He confefled he faw
fuch a Letter writs but (fays he) [ only faw it
iz the Hands of eie Mafon: a Man, who, for my
part, I never knew nor heard of ull T wasin
Trouble. And being asked whether this Letter
from Piercy was read in Malter Love’s Floufe,
he faid, Certanly no. Being agamn asked whe-
ther about Augnft there was not a Letter written
from Aaffey, wherein he faid he had back-friends
in Scotland, and complained that he was not
promoted there, and whether that Letter was
communicated at Mr. Leve’s Houle: In thisalfo
he did me right ; for he anfwered, No certainy,
that Lelter was not, to the beft of my Remembrance,
read there : I beard of fuch a Letter, but fawy it
s0f. Then bemng asked whether one Sterks was
not a Seotch Agent; and whether he did not v.e
to come to my Houle: ‘To which he gives this
Anfwer, Ve took bim to be a Scotch Agent, and
be met fometimes at Mafter Love’s Houzfe,  Now,
Sir, as to thaty he fuppofed that he was an

Agent, but doth not fwear that he was fo, much lefs

that | knew him to be fo. Nay, I can fwear,
upon the beft Information I have had both from
his own Mouth, and the Mouths of others, that he
was no Agent ; for he lived in Kuglond fourteen
Years, and bhad not been in Scotland in fourtcen

Y ears.

And T heard himfelf fay fo when he went away
upon the Act: And I asked him, Are you im-
ployed by the Church or State of Scotland 2 And
he told me, No, he was not, It Is in your
Breafts whether vou will believe me, or no,
And likewife Mr. Blairy when he was here in
Louden, did affirm to me that he was a poor
horeft Man ; and that he was no way imployed
as an Inftrument of State. I know nothing of
the Man’s Agency: Be he Agent or not, I never
fent Letter or Meflage by him, nor received any
from him in all my Life. But I fee 1t is laid
heavy upon me in my Charge, that I contributed
Money to him s but no Man in his Depofitions
did prove that I ever gave him a Penny. Adams
being asked whether Mafter Lowe did not write
down the Sums of Money that was to be contri-
buted to Afaffey, in this he doth me right alfo,
for he faith, Adafler Love bad a Paper in bis
Haid, but I did sot fee what be wrote : and there-
fore to that I need not anfwer,  Being further
ask’d, Did not Mafter Zswve put the firlt Letter
of their Names before the Sums which others
wrote ; he arfwered, He could not fay fo,
Being askd further, Was there not a Letter
peni’d by Mafler Leve and Doétor Diche ? this
Anfwer he gives, There was a Letter, bat (fays he)
[ cannat deliver it upon my Oath that it was penned
by thein sy but [ thonght it wwas fo. He could not
tell to whom this Letter was directed, but faid,
1t was declared to be direlied to the Geieral Affembly
of Scotland. Now, as I obferved in the Begin-
ning, this is only the fingle Teftimony of one
Man, And, indeed, it was the frft Queftion
(as | remember) that was asked me, that was of
moinent, when [ was examined by the Com-

itece, whether I did rot pen this Leiter. 1 did
declire to them in the Prefence of God, Thas I
ieither penivd thaty wor aiy ctber, 1o aiy Perfon of
the Scouth Natisin, fince the IFais bezan: And this
I declare in the Prefence of the fame God, ftill
tobea Truth, Deinz ask’d further, Was Mafter
Love prefent at fome time of this Meeting? he
anfwerd I was: And the Reafon why he
thought that we might pen i, was becaufe of
the Language of it. Mr. Attorney-General
upon this (f remember) ufes this Expreffion, My
Lerd, this is very bigh; after we were engaged in
Bleod, that a Letter fhould be fent. But to this

lay, there is only a fingle Teftimony that fuch
a Letter was writs and whether it was fent or
no, he doth not prove: nor doth he prove that
wntie: And I declare to you that I never
wiit it.  As touching this Letter, which Mr.
Auoraey-General is pleafed to infit upon fo
much, dawzs being asked whether it was agreed
upon that this Letter fhould be fent, he gave
this Anfwer, It was after the fome manner that
other Things wwere agiced upons but there was no
Vele pafd :  And therefore he cannot prove my
particular and cxprefs Affent to the fending of
the Letter, or any other Letter whatfoever.
And here to take off the Jealoufy of a Corre-
fpondency, which in the clofe, through the Grace
of God, 1 fhall clear to you; but to take it off
now a little, before [ come to it: If there had
been o Correfpondency maintained, would it
hm been imaginable that from the time of the

Pight at Durbar, which T think is ten Months
fince, to this time, that there fhould be no Let-
ter that any Man can fay, nor that I did certainly
know of, that either was written, or conveyed,

or
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or debated upon to be wriEtcn, from Fhaf time
o this very day, to any of the Scozifi Nation ¢
And yer all this tends to 1lggl:ﬂvli1t_{:i Matters a-
gainft me, and all the Bt:lrdcn 1S :uh upoi] m):
weak Shoulders. Other ivien that have heavy
Ioads have laid them upon my Back, to lighten
them from off themfelves. TDEChng [11_15 L'-‘-E_-
ter, e faich, This was the Subjiance of i1, or il
neas lo this effelt, or prrpofe. A;ﬂd agiin, I mﬁ‘ﬂ
upon 1t to hefeech your Lordfhip and tae Court,
to take heed what you do. It concerns you
more than me: It concerns my Lite only 5 but
it concerns veur Honours, and Lives, and Souls,
and ail, that upon ai uncertain Lvidence you do
not fpill 4 blan’s Biond. The Man never read
the Letter, only he heard it read 5 and then he
beings into that and other Letiers, Tois 15 the
S:{*J;h{}f" If, 0% 12 wwas 1o fbfj'@ﬁ‘ﬁ?-. And thﬂugh
chis Man hath done me Injury in ﬁ)m_t: Paracu-
lars, y.UIn otiers he haili doae me Right : For
bemn.s asked, Did Malter Love write Letters, or
recuive any, or mend thefe Inftructions ¢ he only
fwears he faw the Letters 5 but cannot fay 1 did
read them. Being asked whether 1 did give my
Confent o the {2nding away of that Letter after
Danbar-Fight, which 1s fo muE.‘h inﬁlttf:] upon,
and fo greatly aggravated, he did thos far right
me 3 he iaidy T will net froear be did give bis Coins
fent. PBeing asked whether 1 was a Correfpon-
dent, he fad he teok me to be a Correfpondent :
Axnd upon thefe Words I had leave to ask him
this Qeltion, Whether he knew I was a Cor-
refpondent ? To this he faid, That Letters were
heard by me 3 but, {aid be, [ cannot fwear that
be was a Correfpondent : [ did conceive Mafter Love
to bz a Correfpoindert 5 but I did not fay fo: sdnd I
duve not fwear that bhe was a Correfpondent,  So
that herein likewife there is nothing bur his
humbly Conceiviags, and his Suppofitions ; ac-
cording to which I hope you will not pafs any
Cenfure upon me,  And thus I have done with
Adams's Telbmony.

The Gfth Tetitnony is that of Faguel, which
1 do here apain in Court excepr againdt as no le-
gal Witnefs; for he did declare he could not
in Confcience take an Qath againlt me. He did
well nigh half an [our declare he couid not
{fwear, but that he would make a Narrative or Re-
latien of what was true. 1 did intreat your Lord-
fhips leave to put 1t to him whether he was
under an Qath, or no? and he fud, cwice at
leaft, I am as good as under an Oath.  If any Per-
fon, good or bad, come under an Oath, I mult
ftand or fall by his Teftimony ; and, according
to God’s Ordmance, an Oath is to decide all
Controverfies : But the Man declared he was
not undzr an Quath, and went our of the Court,
and was fined five hundred Pound : And when
afterwards he was called nto the Court again,
he did only put his Hand upon his Buttons on
his Brealt.  So that this was not any taking of
an Oath 3 but fearing his Fine, he did it, though
with much feeming Regret of Confcience 5 and |
am 1nformed this Day that he denies that e
was under an Qath, And if o, then I have no-
thing to fay to his Teftimony 3 and fo fhall not
fpeak to it, bur only as to a bare Relation and
naked Information, There is nothing that doth
concern me in his Teftimony, but only a Con-
currence with Petter.  Potler and he coming to
my Houfe with fome Letters, (as he faith) one

from Bamfield, another from drgyle, Lowdon
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and Lothiay, and Belearras, and another from
one Malter Bailey, if I remember right. Now
Sir, as to thefe Letters, I do not deny but that
they brought them to my Houfe ;5 nay, I do ac-
knowledge thofe two Men did bring thofe Let-
ters to my Houlfe, at leaftwife which they faid
were fuch @ But whether they were the Originals
or Copies, 1 know not; for I never read nor
kept the Letters, but they carried away the Let-
ters with them, And Captain Poiter faid, Ma-

fler Love, Ihave News 1o fhew you 5 at that very

time when Mr, Faguel and he came to fhew them
at my Houfe. This Witnefs, I cannot call him
fo, but this Informer faith, that being asked what
was done upon the hearing of thofe Letters, he
faid Potter read the Letters 3 but that there was
no Agreement upon it, but an utter Diflike in
all that heard them about the Contents of them.
And Lie hath thefe Words further, It was, fays
he, a Trouble, [am confident, to them that beard
and read the Matter of thofe Letters, But being
acked, Did Malfter Love agree to the giwing
of forty Pound to Bamfield and his Man? To
that Queftion he anfwers thus: He faid there
was no Agreement; but it was thought conve-
nient by all. Upon this | craved leave of your
Lordfhip to ask him this Queftion, Flow he
knew my Thoughts, that I thought it conveni-
ent? To which he gave this Anfwer 5 [ canno!

[ay any thing, that Mafler Love did fuy it was

convenment,  So that therein, though he might
prefume upon a Man's Thoughts to know them,
yet he muft only judge my Thoughts by my
Words, as the Tongue and Heart agree; for
he is not 2 God: But he doth not fay that I faid
it was convenient. Nor did either of them prove

that ever I gave a Penny either to Bamfeld or his
Man.

The lalt Witnels that came in againft me, 18
Captain Far, And, indeed, I donotknow what
to make of his Teftimony : I will not call it 2

Prompting, that will be thought too bad a Word 5
but certainly it was fuch a Teftimony that I never

heard produced in any Court in my Lite : For
MalterAttorney General, and fome others here, did
ask him ninety eight Queftions. So that the Man
{pake nothing deliberately, but fpake by reading
out of his private Examinations, which is extra-
judicial to be brought in Court, where the Wit-
nefles are to fpeak <ive wece. There was, I
{ay, {fo many Queitions (befides thofe I had leave
to ask him) propounded to him, during the
time he was upon his Oath. Ard the Man
was of a dull Spiric, and flow of Speech ;
and 1 did perceive him to be fo pofleffed with

‘Fear, and that he knew not what he faid : For

he hath manifelt Contraditions in his Teltimo-
ny, which I believe all the Court will fee, and
therein concur with me, when they come to hear
them. The firt Word 1 heard him fay in Court
was this, To defire che Benefit of his Pupers. It
feems he did {ofpet the Badnefs of his iviemory,
that he muft have his Fapers to help him, (and
Papers written by another) before he would de-
pole in Court again{t me for my Lile.

Being asked whether upon the ending of the
Treaty of Fesfoy there was not a Letter came
from Titus, to defire fomebody to come to Caleis,
and whether that Letter was read atany Houfe ;
and whether at iy Houle 4lford was defired to
oo he affirms he was, (which none elfe did) and
which 1s a moft notorious Fallhood, 1 have no

Rancour
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Rancour in my Heart againft him; the Lord
knows I have prayed for all thofe tl_mt perfecute
me; and my Heart cleaves to them in Love and
Pity. 1 do not tax the Badnefs of his Confci-
ence, I think he dares not be fo vile ; but I de
tax his Memory in Things done {o long ago.
And afierwards he fays he could not remember
ought, (tho® he did pretend to remember) becaufe
they were done fo long ago ; yet before he did
affirm them. Now to demonftrate this, that he
fays in this Claufe, to be falfe, that 4iford was
defired in my Houle to go, Alford himlelf fays
he was never at my Houlfe till he came from
Calais, which is certainly true: And therefore
Alfoid could not at my Houfe be defired to go
to Calois, 'When there was an Account given of
Alford’s Return from Calzis, then I know he was
there, though I never fpake with him before
that time, as | remember ; nor was he ever with-
in my Doors tili after his Return.  But fays Zar,
I cannot fay Mafler Love <was prefeiit while Al-
ford’s Return was there vead 5 jor fosietimes be
was abfeis.

‘Then further, being asked what was the Sub-
ftance of that Copy of the Letter from the IKing
that «Lf7d broughit from Tafus, he anfwered, That
the Sum or it was this, that theKing of §eots did
declare he would sive Satistadtion to the Sests ;
and i order thereunto, he defired Commifioners
to be fent over 1o Breda,  Thele are the Words
of his Teftimony. Now, Sir, this is but the
fingle Teftimony of one Man ; and it is cortrary
to the Teitimony of that very Man that brought
over this Letter: And 1f any Man knew the
Subftance of the Cory of the Letter pretended
to be from the Kmmg, 1t mult be Aford, that
brought 1t over @ Certainly none could know it
better than ke, And therclore for this Man to
be fo ftrangely befides himfelt, and to foraet
himfelf fo, asto fay thisis the Sum of the Let-
ter, when he thas broughe it faich the contrary,
and did not know that this was the Sum of 1,
this may feem ftrange ; and I hope you will
judge of the Weaknefs of this Teftimony, Be-
ing asked whether he did not conceive this to be
the Copy of the King's Leteer, he did me right
in that ; for he faid he could not tell whether it
was the Copy, but that 4ferd told him he
brought over a Copy of the King’s Letter, And
Mr., Atorney-General was pleafed to aggravate
this of Caprain Fur againft me : Says he, The
King fent over for Commiffioners to treat; and
accordingly at Mr. Leve’s Heule it was agreed
upon that Commifiioners thould be fnt, and
there were Perfons named.  To this [ fay, Thar,
God s my Record, I never in all my Life heard
(as I remember) of any Letter from the King to
that end, that Commiffioncrs thould be fent over.
And Far doth me right herein 3 for in anfwer to
that Queftion, Was your Commiflioners agreed
upon ¢ he three times anfwers negatively, 1 do
not perceive that he remembers himfeli fo well
in all his Teftimeny, as in that Particular.
Being asked whether the Commifion was agreed
upon, he faid 1t was not agreed upon by the
Company. And herein he did me more right
than any Man 5 for he gave my Reafon, For
(ays he) the Reafon given wwas, Becanfe 1rivate
Perfors cenid o g1ve a Commiffion.  And though
he lath done me more wrong than any Man,
yet nercin he hath done me more right than any

Man.  Being further asked, Was it ror debated
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to fend a Commuffion cver # Dyake, he faid, read
& Paper in the natdie of a Commiffion s bnt it was
0t agreed upon by the Company, becanfe private
Perfoits conld do no fich thing.  And a third time
he fays, The Commifiicn and Inflro&ivis were read
in a Company at Mr. Love's Houfey (that he
affirms, and that I do not deny) but wiot agieed
npoir,  And further he faid, He did conceive, to
the beft of his Remembrance, it was in the
Name of tne Presbyterian Party of Ensland : Bue
(fays hej [ cainot pefitively fay il wwas fos for I
did but oisly bear it iead, Then your Lordthip
asked him this Queftion, Did you fay that the
Commiflion was not agreed upon, but that the
Inflrullions were ¢ “T'o this Captain Far faid,
That William Drake undertook to draw up the
Commillion and Inflruétions; but yer, fays he,
1 cannet fay that they were cither drawm up, or
fent,  Again, he fays further, (and herein le
doth me more right than Adams or Alfird doth)
Adams, he fays it was not agreed upon ; yet he
faith thus, There was a Commiflion read for to
treat 5 and fo fays Alford : But this Man fays
direCtly, That this fuppofed Commiflion was
not to treat m the behalf of the Presbyterian
Party.  And it had been a Folly for private Men
to afflume fuch a vain Tidle to themfelves. So
that he fays direil, upon your Lordihip’s Que-
ftion to him, that it was not to treat, but to ad-
vile the Scofch Commiflioners, and the BMinifters
efpecially, to agree with the King upon the
Interelt of Religion, and Terms of the Covenant.
But being askad, Was it notin the behalf of the
Presbyterian Party ? he anfwered, No.  Being
further asked, Was there ror an Agreemernt at
Mr, Leve’s Houle for a Letvr o be {ent to the
Queen+  Herem allo this ban doth me right ;
he faid, No, my Lord. And yer he contradiéts
him{elf likewie 5 for being asked in the next
Queltion what was the Subftance of that Letter
to the Queen, he anfwered, The Subffance of the
Letter to the Queen was, That fhe fhould per-
funde the King to give Swisfattion to the
Seots 1w their juft Demands, Now, either e
muft hear of this Letter fomewhere elfe, or elfe
frame a Fiction to himfelf, that this was the
Matter of the Letter, when chere was no fuch
Lewer ia serum matura. The next Thing he
charges me with, is, That I fhould fay it was
agreed that Money fhould be raifed for Adeffey
and Tites; and he mames the Sum, he thinks
250, or 300 /. and that | thereupon fhould par-
ticalarly move him with this Queftion, Captain
Yary what will you do? Now, [ befeech your
Lordfhip and the Court to confider thar he doth
not fwear that | faid coe coere asreed, but i twas
agresd 5 and that might be the A& of other Men,
and rot mine. And in another Flure he {aid,
they agreed 5 but he doth not fay that [ faid zce
agreed, 1o include my felf © But to that, That I
fhould move him, and fay, Captain Far, what
will you do ? Truly this is but a genera! Quefiion.
And he himfelf did me thus far right : When I
had leave from the Court to prepsund this
Quettion to him, Caprain Tar, did 1 move you,
or ﬁs}_' lo yott, I7hat Woiey will your give for Miafiey
or ‘Litus ! he anfwered, He “did conceive it was
for that Ufe. So that he proves not again{t me,
that 1 moved for Money for Mafley or Titus 5 but
only that ] thould fuy, Caprain Far, <l ot <ill A
do?  And it you obferve the Words of the Telti-
mony, they are thefe exactly,  Fle rells vou that
he
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he brought Five Pounds; for there is all that e-
ver I am charged win. I am not E:hargcd with
lending a Pennys but only that Fifteen Pounds
was brought to my Houfe ; Ten Pounds by Pot-
ter, and Five Pounds by this Man, And heat-
frms that he Jeft this Five Pounds at my Houle,
A.ud hercin I perceive a Contradiction m the
NMan 3 andtherefore it is hard to determine when
he fpeaks true, or when he f{peaks falfe. Thele
are his very Words; M. Love (fays he) asked
me what [ wonld doy and I did lay down Five
Pounds nponn Mr. Love’s Table, when feveral Per-
fons wwere in the Koom. And being asked, Did
Ar. Love receive this Money ? he faid he could
not tell 5 but was loth to tell who he thought re-
ceived it.  But-in his lat Word, fave one, that
he fpake in Court (which made m_uch for my Ad-
vaiitage) he faid, he thought I did not receiveit ;
and God is my Record, Idid not : But he faid
another Man did, and named Captain A/affey,
RBut the ContradiGion 1 obferve 1sthis : He tells
you he laid down Five Pounds, when {feveral
Perfons were in the Room ; and in the nexe

1eftion but one being asked, Was Mr. LZove in
the Room ? Yes, my Loid, fays he; but I cannot
fay any body elfe was I{Jf.’re. * So that therein the

1an evidently contradifts himfelf.  And it ap-
pros he was under a very great Fear, and even
confousied by the many Queltions propounded
to him. I asked him furtner, "D:d 1 bid you lay
it down ? Says he, I cannot fay that you bid me
lay down the Money.  Being asked, Was this way
of laying down of Money to prevent Dilcovery 2
he faid he did it under that Notion, But being
asked by me, Did I bid you lay it dowon under that
Notion 2 he antwered, he would not fay I did.
So that I neither directly nor indiretly did bid
him bring M:oney to my Houfe, or lay it down
when it was brought there: But other Perfons
were in the Room s and he conceives what Perfon
took it away, Therefore I befeech you make a
candid and fair Interpretation of what I have faid
or done,

Being asked about the Copy of the King’s
Letter, that Alford fays he brought over from
Tans, whether I was in the Room whillt it was
read, he faid, I cannot fay that be was there when it
was vead 5 but be was there during fome part of the
C.onmninication,  But {ays he, I canaot fay be was
there at the yeading of the Letter s nor can I (ay
be was prefent whilft the Navrative was read, He
obferved I was ofzen called away, and was abtent ;
and {ays he, I cannot fay there was any fuch thing
done by Mr, Love, And 1 asked him this Que-
ftion, Did I fend, or agree to fend Major Altord
to Calals ? He anfwers, He thinks I did not. And
herein he falfifeth his former Teftimony 5 for he
fard Major Alford was defired in my Houfe to go
to Calzis 3 and yer dlford {wore he never was in
ny Houfe il after he came from thence. But
herein he doth me right too, (though with Con-
tradittion to himfelf :) He faid it was agreed at
my Houfe that Aford thould go 3 and yer now he
fays be thinks 1 did not agree 1o the fending of
Alfard,

Being nsL:'cd further, whether 1 did give Con-
fent to the fending away the Commiflion, he an-
fwered, 7 caniot fay Mr. Love svas there when it
was feit away. And wuly I may (ay, who brought
It away, or who drew it up, and what was done
in 1, I cannot tell.  There might be a thoufind
Treafons 1n it for ought I knowy for 1 did nei-
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ther own the reading of it, nor the fending of it,
but did utterly protelt againft both, Being again
asked, whether { agreed to the fending of it away,
he anfwered, 1t was agreed upon by all, that
we could not fend the Commiffion away., When I
asked him, Did I fay to yor, Captain Far, Vil
you contribute Frve Pounds for Mafley and Tiens?
he gave this Anfwer, (Tays he) Zou asved me what
Twould doy fo that I conceived it was for Mafley
and Titus. And he affirms he laid this Five
Pounds down in my Houfe 5 but did not fay that
I received it. And in the Prefence of God X
fpeak it, [ never faw i, nor received 1t in afl my
Life.

And thus with much Acknowledgment, and
blefling God, and thanking your Lordthip ard
the Court, you have given me leave to take a bricf
Survey through the Depolitions of the Witnefles,
tho’ they have been very large, and the Charge a-
gainft me very high, '

Now having {poken to the Depofitions (before I
(hall crave leave to fpeak {omething concerning
my [lf, and make humble DPropofals to this
Court) I fhall add but one Word, and ir is this :
I was loth, before I faw Witnefles Face to Face,
to confefs any thing ; I deemed it again{t Nature
for any to confefs again{t himfelt, unlefs he could
be fure his Confeflion fhould not prejudice him,
And I might have been guilty of my ewn Blood,
if ihad contefled; for then, did the Matter con-
fefled amount to Treafon by your Law, my Lifa
would be at vour Mercy, and you might hang me
upon mine own Confeflion. And upon thag
ground [ went refolved to the Committee ;5 and
thro’ the Grace of God 1 refolved not there to
confefs a Word nor Tittle, cill Theard what Iroof
was brougit in againft me. And now [ do in~
cenuoufly acknowledge that there were {overul
Mectings at my Houle ; that thefle Perfons met
there 5 and that this Commiflion was read there,
but 1 did uwerly diflike it, and diffent from 1.
And that I was prefent at the reading or Letters,
either at the beginning, or end, or fome part of
them, [ do acknowledge : And this I fay, that |
was ignorant of the Danger that now 1 fee I am
. The A& of the 2d of Auguft, 1650, doth
make it Treafon to hold any Correfpondency, or
to fend Letters, tho’ but in a way of Comimerce,
into Scotland, let the Martter of them be what it
will.  Now herein my Counfel acquaints me
with my Danger, That I being fometumes pre-
fent when Letters were read i my Houfe, am
guilty of a Concealment ; and as to that, I do
humbly lay my {elf at your Feet and Mercy.
But as to Treafon, I do not know any perfonal
A& of mine proved againlt me, that brings me
under any A¢t of yours, And thus having brief-
ly fpoken concerning the Charge in general, and
concerning my Accufers, and having briefly {ur-
veyed their Teftimony, 1 thall humbly crave leave
to {peak fomething concerning my felf, and I fhall
be very brief in it

Concerning my felf, it is needful I fhould
fpeak a Word: I would not itand under Mif-
reprefentations, to feem to be what T am ne,
I am prefented unto fome as if I were a Ma-
lignant, an Apoftate from my frft Principles, a
Mover of Sedition, and what not, but what I
am. Wherefore I am conftrained to {peak a
Word in my own Vindication, and T fhall make
the Apoftle’s Apology, I ans become a Fool in glo-
rying s but ye have conpelled e, 1 countit-never
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lawful for a Maw’s own Mouth to praife him,
till another Mar’s Mouth accufes him 3 and then
he may without Vanity be his own Vindicator.
What I fhall fay of my felf, the Lord knows it
15 not voluntarily, out of an affected Oftentation,
but by Compullion, for a neceffary and clear
Manifeftation of my Principles and Practices,
now fufpetted. As touching Malignity, [ hate
both Name and Thing : And, as Cardinal Fui-
nefis faid of himfelf profanely, That if he knew
any Part of him infelted with Lutheranifm, he
would cut it off, and caft it into the Fire ; that
I can fay truly, Thar if 1 knew any Part of me
infected with Malignity, I would cut it off with
the Pruning-heok of Mortification, and by an
ingenuous Retraétion before you all this Day.
God 1s my Witnels, I never drove a malignant
Delign, I never carried on a malignant Intereft :
T deteft both. 1 ftill retain my old Covenanting

Principles, from which, through the Grace of

God, I will never depart for any Terror or Per-
tualion whatfoever, 'When I look upon all the
Vows, and Covenants, and Declarations, and
Proteftations of both Houfes of Parliament, I do
hind a Suitablenefs between my Judgment and
them, and am not confcious to my fell of any
thing that I have done in oppolition or contra-
aiction thercunto: And therefore I may fay as
Yeremy didy, when he was accufed, in the like
Cafe, of makinrg DefeCtion to a contrary Party,
Fer. 37. 13, 14 Iriph faid to Jeremiab, Thon
Jalielt away to the Chaldeans, Then faid Jeremiah,
It is falfe, 1 fll not awway to the Chaldeans.  So,
if it be charged upon me that I am fallen from
my firft Principles, or that I am fallen to Ma-
ligmty, 1 fay to any that fhall fo accufe me,
it 1 falfe, Ifall not away to Malignity 5 I do re-
tan as great a Keennels, and fhall whilflt I live,
and as {trong an Oppofition again{t a malignant
Intereft, whether in Scotland, or in Erxgland, or
m any Part of the World, againft the Nation
where 1 live, and have to this Day, as ever I
did in former Times. I am no Incendiary or e-
vil Initrament, to divide the Nations one from
another: God knows the Grief of my Heart
hath been for the Divifions, and the Defire of
my Soul hath been for the Union of both the
Nations. And if I had as many Lives as I have
Huirs on my Head, or as much Blood in my Veins
as there 15 Water in the Sea, I could count it all
well {pcht to quench the Burning that our Sins
have kindled between the two Nations. T have
all along engaged my Eftate and Life in the
Parllament’s Quarrel againft the Forces raifed by
the King : My appearing in their Caufe was not
from any Aim at Profic, but out of a Perfuafion
of Confcience and Senfe of Duty. I may fpeak
1t, a5 Paxl doth it of himfelf, [<wasin Labours
mere ioan they all. 1 {peak it without Vanity ; I
was, according to my obfcure Station and mean
Condition, m doing and giving in the Parlia-
ment’s Quarrel, more than many. Many gave
ottt of tocir Abundances but I out of my Want:
And as Chrilt fpake to the Widow who gave
two Mites, That fbe gave more than they all s
far fie gave all that fbe bad, even all her Living
S0 did I's thoush I gave my Mite, yet I cave
my All.  And I did not only deem it my Dury
to preach for the Lawfulnefs of a Dafenfive
War, but (unlels my Books and wearing Appa-
rel) 1 contributed ajl that 1 had in the World :
And that was no fmall Sum, confidering the
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Meannefs of my Condition. And T have at
this Day a great Sum due to me from the State,
which is ftill kept from me, and now my Life
endeavoured to be taken from me. And yet for
all this, I repent not of what I have done; the’
1 could from my Soul wifh that the Iinds of that
quft War had been better accomplifhed : Then
fhould we have been happy, and united among
our Iclves, and honoured among the Natons
round about us. I am fo far (I fay) from re-
penting of what I have done, both by dcing and
contributing, and fuftering in the Parliament’s
Quarrel, that were 1t to do again upon the fame
unqueftionable Authority, for the fame declured
Ends, and againft the fame malignant Perfons, I
fhould manifeit as much Readinefs of Mind
to engage according to my Meafure, as ever I
did.

And thus T have declared myfelf touching my
Principles in thefe Particulars 3 I fhall now crave
leave to exprefs my felf a little touching my Suf-
ferings ; and then to make but a few humble
Propofals, and fo calt my Life into God’s Hands
and yours, Touching my Sufferings, I may fay
that my whole Life hath been a2 Time of Af-
fliction, either of Body or Mind : God fees my
Heart to be a tough and knotty Piece, that it
needs fo many Blows to break it. I may fay with
the Pfalmift, Ihave beenr affliéted from my Youth
2p, and from my Youth up have I met with Op-
pofiiion : From the Prelates, being perfecuted
by them mecrly for Confcience-fake. [t is near

twenty Years fince I was cited to the Bifhops
Courts : I have been often troubled for hearing

of Sermons, and difcharging other Exercifes of
Rehigion, which were an Offence in thofe Days,
When I was a Scholar in Oson, and Mafter of
Arts, (I do not {peak it out of vain Oftentation,
but merely to reprefent unto you, that what I
was I am, and what I am I was) I was the it
Scholar 1 know of, cr ever heard of in Oxom,
who did publickly refufe in the Congregation-
Foufe to fubferibe unto thofe Impofitions or Ca-
nons impofed by the Archbithop, touching the
Prelates and Common-Prayer 3 and for which,
though they would not deny me my Degree,
yet 1 wasexpelled the Congregation-Houfe, ne-
ver to fit as a Member among them. When I
came firftto London, which wasabout twelveYears
fince, I was oppofed by the Bifhop of Londsy 3
and though I was called as a LeCurer to Aun A/-
derfgate, yet it was near three Years before
could faften upon any Lefture, After this, a-
bout the Year 1640, or 1641, I was imprifoned
in Neweaflle, merely for exprefling my felf a-
gainft the Errors of the Service-Book, and was
removed from Prifon there, by a Habeas Corpus,
to this Place ; and in this Court of King’s-Beich
I wasacquitted.  After this, about the beginning
of the Wars between the late King and the Par-
!Inmcnt, I was the firft Minifter that 1 know of
In Liglaid, who was accufed for preaching of
Threafon and Rebellion, merely for maintaining in
a Sermon, in Kent, at Tenderden, the Lawfulnefs
of a Defenfive War, at the firk Breaking-out
and lrruption of our Troubles; bur was then
publickly acquitted in a Court there, and reco-
vered Cofts and Damages of my Accufer. Af
ter this T had a lietle Breathing-time, whillt the
two Floufes of Parlizment were in Power ; only
[ was once complained againft by the King’s
Commiffioners at Uxbridge, for preaching g Ser-

mnon




6. HLC.J.  jor HighnTréd?oﬁ. |

o there,  1did not know that 1 fhould preach
chere till the Pfalm was fung ; and did only preach
2 Sermon which I had preached the Day brlore at
Windfor-Caftle. 1 was, 11y, complained of by
the King's Commiffioners to the Houfe, for that
Sermon 5 but within three Weeks 1 was acquit-
ted and difcharged by Order of the Houfe of
Commons. ‘That Sermon is much {poken of,
heeanfe it 1s fo licte feen, it is {o oblcure a Prece s
and many imagine as 1f the Kegfnnt:fs pf my Af-
foction was blunted from what it was in that Ser-
mon. But [ declare unto you, that I come up
to this Day to every Tiule of that Ser-
mon. I hear it is lately priated s and ff it be
printed according to the frit Copy, 1 will own
every Line of it, as that to which my Heart and
Judgmment concurs o this very Day. After all
Uis, fince the late Change of Government, 1
hive been tires times in Trouble: I was once
cory.aitted to Cuftody by, and twice cied be-
{ote tae Commitiee of Plunder’d Miniliers 5 but
there was no fufficient Proof againit mie, and {o |
Was diici..‘.r;ﬂd.

Bt now lait of all, this great and laft Tial
and Trouble is come wpun me. I hiave been kept
feveral Weeks 1n clofe Prifon, and now Lam ar-
raizned {or my Life ; herem 1s my great Com-
fort, even that which was the Apoftle’s, 2 Cor.
1. 10. God that bath deliver:d me, be doth deliver
me, i whom 1 teufl that be will yet deliver e :
And that that thall be made good to me, Feb 5
19. Iz foall deliver thee in frx Troubies, yea in
feven there fhall no Evil foucs thee.  As Cato, he
was accufed chirty two times by the unkind State
whem he faithfully ferved, and yet after thirey
two times Accufation, his Innocency and Upright-
nefs brought him off, Why fhould not I be
confident in my God, who have had a Life-time of
BEznerience of his Care and Love towards me?
It 15 not the Danger or my Life troubles me ;
I am a fickly Man, and [ know a Difeafe
wiil ere-long Kill me, whatever you do with me :
but this grieves me more, That I fhould {uffer
from ther Hands, for whom I have done and
fuffered fo much 1 my oblcure Station, and
according to my wealk meafure, Had it been
an «nemy had cealt thus by me, and made
fuch an eager Profccution of me, and fuch high
Aggravations of that which 1n the Simplicity of
my Heare I have done, it had notbeen fo much;;
and as I told the Committee when 1 was exami-
ned by them {who charged me with Jefuitifm
and Non-Ingenuity, becaule I would not confefs
againlt my felf and others) that though I ho-
noured them as private Gentlemen, and fhould
acquaint them with what my fclf had done, when
“it fhould not be a Snare to me ; bur when they
Thall apprehend me by a Warrant for Treafon,
and examine me in order to a ‘¥rial for my Life,
i no Judicature in the World will I confefs a
Word, till I firft hear what will come in againft
me. Now, as [ told them then, I never wrote
Letter, nor received Letter, nor fent or lent Mo-
ney to any Perfon of the Scoiifs Nation. Now
that I fhould meet with this hard meafure, to
have the mott rigid and fevere Interpreiation put
upon all my Actions, to be look’d upon with {o
jeatous {I mighe fay with a worfer) Eye, that have
in my meafure ventured my All in the fame Quar-
rel that you were engaged in, and lifted up my
Flands i the fame Covenant, that have took

fweet Counfel together, and walk®d in Fellow-
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thip one with another : that from thefe I thould
have fuch hard meafure, this, this troubles me
¢reatly. Had I been fo dealt withal at the Jun&o
at Owxoi, I {hould not have been fo troubled at it s
but to be dealt fo with at Wetminfier, this is that
at which I ftand amazed : yer, blefled be Gad, 1
am not afraid ; my Confcience doth not t¢!l me
of any perfonal Act of mine proved againft me,
that brings me under any of your laws as to
Treafon,

And thus having exprefled my {elf concerning
my Charge, and the Witneffes, and my felt ;3 1
fhall now in the clofe of all fay (whatever tor-
tured Collections or Inferences are drawn from my
Practices, and however Lawyers may aggravate
thofe things that in part have been proved a-
oainft me) yet I do declare in the Prefence
of God, that wharever I have done, in the Sim-
plictty and Integrity of my Heart I have done it 3
and did deem 1t to be confonant and agreeable
both to my Conicience, and to the Proteftations
and Covenant I have taken: and I have done
nothing out of Animofity, or from a Spirit of Re-
venge.” And thus I have done concerning my
{elf.

I have only 2 few humble Propofals to make
to your Lorinip and the Court, and then I fhall
Icave ail to God’s Determination and yours, To
you that are my judges, I humbly crave this of
you, and I do It upon your Lordfhip’s Words
the firlt Day of my Appearance here, "When
you were pleafed to deny me Counfel, you faid
you would be Counfel for me: and I befeech you
be fo, for you are Judges both of Matter of Law
and Matter of Fact. I may make ufe of that
Paflage, Prov, 31. 8. Solomon fays there, That
Rulers muf} open their Mbouths for the Dumb, in
the Caufe of all fuch as are appointed for Dejlru-
fligin,  Truly, my Lord, I am as a dumb Man
before you ; dumb in Matters of Law, I cannot

plead one Word for my felt : I befeech you, be

as Solomo’s Rulers were, and open your Mourhs
for him that is appointed to Deftruétion ;3 you
who are my Judges, be my Advocates, my Life
lies in your hands. And then 1 befeech you let
me make this humble Motion to you, That you
would not count any thing that T have dowe to
be out of Ammofity or Stoutrefs cf Spirit:
Truly, nothing but Confcicnce could carry me
through all my Sufferings; I could not leave
{uch dear Relations that God hath given me,
and fuch a loving People, and comfortable
Livelihood, as any Minifter hath within the
Walls of Lowdon: nothing but Conviction of
Confcience can carry me another way; and
till Confcience be fully fatishied, I cannot ftir one
Step.

The next thing T beg, is, to befeech your
Lordfhip and the Court to put a candid and fair
Interpretation upon all that [ have done; or that
by Witnefs you have heard 3 that it was no ma-
lignant Defign, tho’ I do not own the Manage-
ment of any Decfign: 1 never writ Letter nor
fent Letter to any of the Scwtih Natton; yet
thus far I own the thing, that it was agreeable to
my Judgment and Conicience, For I thought
the Intereft of God and Religion, and the Good
of the Nation, would be more advanced if the
King went into Scotland uwpon Covenant-Terms,
than if he fhould fall into the hands of the frifh
Rebels, or offer this Natton to the Turk or Spa-
siard, or any other to come in and make a Prey
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of it. Idid judge it would be a Foundation laid
of great Troubles and Blood, if he were not re-
ceived by that Nation. And tho’ I did not, and
do not in the leaft own either the Commiffion or
Inftructions, or the Way of Management of that
Bufinefs 3 yet I confefs the Agreement between the
King and Seots I defired, and deemed it my duty
upon this ground, one Claufe of the Covenant be-
ing, to feek the Unton and Good of both Nati-
ons ; and thofe who endeavour the contrary, are
declared by the Covenant to be Incendiaries, Ma-
lignants, and evil Inftruments, who not only di-
vide the Kingdoms one from another, but divide
the King from the People. Now they declai-
ing him to be their King, according to my ap-
prehenfion I thought it agreeable to my Cove-
nant, to pray and defire, as a private Man, and
no more, for an Agreement between the King
and them, upon thofe Terms confiftent with the
Safety of Religion, and the Terms of the Cove-
nant.

And thus I have opened my Heart to you:
The favourable Interpretation I humbly beg of
you, is this 3 That things might not be taken in
the worlt Senfe : Non ¢ff reus, wift mens fit vea ;
he is not guilty, unlefs the Miind be guilty; I
heard your Lordfhip fay foat Guild-Hall jas 1 re-
member,

The Lord knows in the Uprightnels of my
Fleart 1 have done what 1 have done, It is a
Maxim 0 the Law, (I have read it in Divinity-
Books) Ampliand: funt faveres, & in panis benig-
nior interpretalio facicida @ Favours are to be am-
plified and enlarged by Magiftrates 5 but in Pu-
nifhments the molt benign and favourable Inter-
pretations muft be made. Now of my Actions
the harfheft Interpretations are made : I have a
Charge laid againit me, which I deem (and as my
Counlel tells me) to be rather a Flourith in Law,
than Reality of Matter,

[ ftood amazed when I heard the Charge againft
me, I thought 1t had rather been againft fome o-
ther Man than againit me. Asif I fhould fend to
the Queen, Pricy and Fermmn! herein I did ra-
ther venture my Life upon a Trial, than to lieunder
all that Obloquy which that Charge did lay upon
me, Therctore I again befeech you, put a fair
and candid Interpretation upon what is proved a-
canft mc.

I remember a Phrafe, Swmmum Fus off fumma
liyriia 5 Tobe over-juft, is to be injurious,  Be
ok over-righteons, may refer to Courts of Judicato-
ry. Herein [ acknowledge, that my not revealing
what my Acculfers have done, this layeth me un-
der the Faule of a Concealment, for which I lay
my iclf at your Feet.

The nest humble Requeft I have to make, is
this, To intreat your Lordfhip and the Courr, that
you would not Learken to any politick Suggeftions
that may be laid belore you : I know under what
difadvantage I lie, that am the firft Minifter in
Lugland try’d for Trealon, in 2 bufinefs of this
nature, and what a prejudice this is to me, to
make an Example upon.

The firlt Suggeftion that I humbly intreat you
would not hearken to, is, That it will not be for
the Honour and Intereft of the State, if I be not
condemned, T'ruly, it is for the Honour of the
State for you to do Juftice: if you have found,
that T ever writ Letter, or fent or recejved Letter,
or lﬁnt_MDney s 1 in thele regards you have found
me within your Adls, fpare me not :
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I have been only prefent at the reading of Ier.
ters, and have been filent at what others have
done ; therein Ilay my felf at your mercy, tq
fhew me favour. It was a Suggeftion to Pilute,
If thot [pareft that Man, thor art no Friend ¢;
Cefar 5 and fo if you do not condemn nic, you
are no Friends to thofe who commiffionate you -
but be Friends to your felves and Families, ang
take heed that you bring not guiltlefs Blood up-
on youL.

And here (and fo I fhall hiave done) in the Clofe
of all, I do acknowledge, that in many Particy-
lars, as touching not revealing (I fay not as to
perfonal Actings, nor doany prove it againft me)
I do fall within your Alts, as to the Cenfure of 13
Concealment 5 and herein I humbly bez your
Mercy. And however I may be judeed to be g
Man of a turbulent and unquier Spirit, yetthofe
that know me in my Relations, wiil not fay fo of
me; and my People, over whom God hath call-
ed me (I think) will fay, I am a Man who de-
fireth to live quetly 1nthe Land, But however
my Spirit and Frinciples are queftioned, yet [ re-
folve by the Grace of Ged to lead for the futuyre 2
qufi:t and peaceabie Life, in all Godlinefs and Ho-
nefty.

th:we but one word more to clofe all I have
to fay for my {elf; (for I have made no Plea in
lLaw ;5 m thole matters Iam as a dumb Man,
and cannot open my mouth) and tis this: The
Charge and Depofitions lie before you, and [ will
but lay this before you alfo, That if fo be my
Falt fhould deferve Death, which I believe iz
doth not, and 1 hope you cannot find nie under
your own Acls as to Treafon; yet if you do cen-
fure me rather upon a political Intereft, than
from the Merit of the I, the Seripture ac-
counts not that Juftice, but Murder.  ¥ebr put to
death #hab’s Sons, and that by the Command of
God 5 but he did it upon a political Intereft, ro
eltablifh himfelf in his new-gotten Government -
and when God reckons for this, he fays, 7 il

avenge the Blood of Jezreel upon the Houfe of Jehu.
To do any thing upon a political Intereft, the®
the Fact may deferve Death, the Scripture counts
this Murder, not Juftice,

And I befeech you, let me fuggeft one thing to
you, thoughl am a 2orm, and w0 Man, and de-
ferve not to be regarded amongft the Children of
Men 5 yet what I have done and fuffered, let it
be a little thought on by you : And let me urge:
that of 4biathar the Prieft, he did an A& that was
not jultifiable, and faith Selomon, Thon art wworthy
of Death 5 but Iwill not at this time put thee o
death, becanfe thon bareft the vk of the Lord God
before David my Father, and becawfz thor haff beer:
afflicted in all wherein my Father twas affiicted, 1
leaveit to your own Confciencesto make Applica-
tion. Many things elfe might be fugaefted a-
ganft me, and all to exafperate and exulcerare
your Minds againft me, tomake you with lefs re-
gret of Confcience to pafs a doleful Sentence up-
on me; which [ hope you cannot, and for the
fear of the Lord you dare not: but if you thould,
(and fo I have done) I will fay to you as Fere-
mab did to the Rulers of Ifrael s As for me, be-
bold I am in your hands, do with me as Jeemeth
good and meet wnto you : hut ki ye for certati,
that if ye put me 1o death, ye fhall furely bring in-
nocenrt Blood upon your felves. But I will fay as the
Apoftle did, I hope better

And

things of you, the' I thus
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And thus I commit my felf, and my All,unto 1650, and 1651, in all thefe Years, my Lord,

God, and to your Judgments and Coniciences.

Mr, Attorney-General's Reply to
Mr, Love’s Defence.

Atorit, Gen, Y Lord, you have heard him

fay much, and it had been
- much better for himif he had faid lefs. My Lord,
when Men go out of the way of their own Call-
ing, they very often err; and truly I may attri-
bute much of Mr. Lsve’s Confidence to his Ig-
norance ;3 my Lord, to his Ignorance of the
Law : and when Men meddle beyond their own
Bounds, they do tranfgrefs, Mr. Lsve hath made
you a continved Speech 5 my Lord, 1 do find
the old Proverb commonly true, i meltitnde of
ords there waiteth not Evil,  And fhould 1 {ay
nothing againft Mr. Love, my Lord, he hath faid
enough againft himfelf, in that that he hath now
repeated, even to his own Condemnation, in that
which he acknowledgeth, my Lord, (I cannot
{ay ingenuoufly, tho’ himfelf hath faid {o) to be
rather a Mifprifion of Treafon and a Conceal-
ment. My Lord, Aéls of Concealment are not
{o long continued, they have not fo long conti-
nuance: And, my Lord, you very well know
(for the Satisfaction of the Gentleman at prefent,
and fome elfe that hear me) that he that hears a
Treafon, (for 1 do now go out a little in his
own way) he that hears a Treafon, muft not lock
back before he go to the Magiftrate and reveal 1t
and if he be at the Plough, he muft leave his
Plough 5 1f this Gentleman were in his Pulpit, he
muft leave his preaching ¢ he that knows a Trea-
fon, mult go prefently and reveal it there mutt
be no Repetiton of Treafon, my Lord: Mr. Love,
my Lord, will be miftaken inthat, But truly,
my Lord, 1 was very {orry, confidering the Con-
ditton Mr. Leve now {tands in, to hear thole Ex-
preflions from him thac he hath made to you
in relation o the paft and prefent Authority :
my Lord, 1 zm not willing to repeat them,
Mr. Love mult hear of it another time.  Truly,
my lord, here 1s lictle of Ingenuity (all Men
will believe) m this Gentleman, that hath now
Jaid 1t for a Principle to himfelf, and all that
fhall hear him, (and I think it not to be fo chri-
ftian, {0 ingenuous) not to confefs any thing any
time 3 Dur that is Ingenuity, that what is proved,
that he will confels ; and that is a high Piece of
Ingenuity, that thofe things that are proved, he
will ingenuoufly acknowledge : I, my Lord, do
not take that to be Ingenuity, neither in my
Law, nor [ believe in his Divinity will it be.
My Lord, there hath been a great deal of Care
and Pams raken by Mr, Lsve to rake in pieces
the Kvidence; I fhail not undertake now to join
them together, but in convenient time [ fhall, I
doubt not, for the Satisfaction of the Court and
their  Judgments, who, 1 muflt fay, have been
threamed by the Gentleman < and, my Lord, I
hope {for the Convi@tion of himfelf, My Lord,
he knows there are fhrewd Pieces againft him
that he hath acknowledged, bur he would take
them off’ one by one 5 but when they are put to-
gether, they will not be fingle Fvidence, nor

fingle Teftimony, nor fingle Fatts, bue a conti- -

nued Reiteration and Repetition of Treafon, a

continued and Series of 'Fime. My Lord, you

are pleafed to obferve, that he himfelf doth ap-

pear from 16,48 to 1651, {o thatin 1648, 1649,
Vour, II, )

there hath been this conftant Repetition and tranf-
acting of T'reafon,

My Lord, 1 learn from him, and *tis very true—
It 1s not good dallying with holy Things, nar is
it with States and Commonwealths, it is very bad
dallying with them ; thofe that futeer thers, will
burn their Wings at laft ; and it is not Quirks
of Wit, nor Strains of Senfe or Nonfenfe, will,
my Lord, clear thefe Things 3 it will not do i,
my Lord, My Lord, he hath defired you will
not hearken to private Examinations; my Lord,
I have faid fo too, and there hath none been of-
fered to you, but that which hath been publick,
and wiva vece; all have been fo. But furely,
my Lord, I could wifh this Gentleman, and
all others of his Profeffion, would meddle in their
own Sphere, and not to walk out of that, to
come and teach Courts what they fhould do, to
teach the Magiftrate what is his Daty. My
Lord, I do hardly think it belongs to them
ever in the Pulpit to do thofe things: but to rell
us we muft not examine before-hand, and ask
Queftions in private ; my Lord, we cannot
then be prepared for Felons and Treafons, And,
my Lord, I fay this Confidence is much from
s Ignorance ; for thefe things are very fami-
Iar, and mufl be continued to be done : o thar
thele things are not well broached by him, and
I co think he will fay at 1aft, he underftands
not himfelf 5 and thofe, I hope, that hear, my
Lord, will fay, I donot ufeir: For, my Lord,
I muft fay, it mult be otherwife in all well-
governed Commonwealths, My Lord, he hath
not denied, but acknowledged Meetings at his
Houfe more than once, twice or thrice: and tru-
ly, 1 did expect from this Gentleman that he
would not have continued thofe fearful Impreca-
tions of calling God to witnefs, that he did never
write Letter, nor fend Letter, nor lend Money.
I had thought he would not have gone upon

thefe Equivocations : Did he never move other

Men to write? Did he never move others to
lend Money ? It is not ©o fay, this and this
I have not done ; but 1 had thought he would
have cleared himfelf totally of any Guilt that
way, either in relation to receiving, or hearing
Letters read 5 or lending or receiving Money, or
moving for Money. My Lord, to put it upon
a particular Cafe, this will not blind the Eyes
of Juftice, but you will be able to fee . e
ts pleafed to fay, my Lord, he will not lay it w
the Badnefs of the Witnefles Coniciences, but to
the Badrefs of their Memories, My Lord, I
hope in the Conclulion their Memories will ap-
pear to be right, and fomebody’s Conicience elfe
to bz bad. And, my Lord, for to hear this faid
by this Gentleman thatis a Minifter of the Gofpel,
that it 15 a Crime tfor thefe Men to acknowledge
their Otfences, this is firange: [ had thought
the firlt Step to Repentance had been Confel-
fion ; and that 1t had been no Offence for any
Man hving that hath committed a Fault, or
that thought he had committed a Fault, to ac-
knowleage 1. In my Law and Divinity I
thought it fo, and I have not learned otherwife ;
and fhall this Gentleman take Exceptions, be-
caufe thefe Gentlemen who have thoughe they
have done amifs, have acknowledged their Er-
rors, and have craved Mercy ? My Lord, I muft
fay thus, if any deferve Meicy, 1t is thofe that

do acknowledge their Offences, and crave
T 2 Mercy,




140

Mercy, and are forry for them ; and not thofe
that are obftinate, and bid defiance to Juftice :
Prove what you can, I will confefs_ nothing ;
that is not fo confcientious or chriftian a way.
And for the Witnelles, 1 do wonder that Mr,
Love, of any Man, fhould find fault wn}_l them ;
I cannot fay they have taken fweet Counlel toge-
ther, but I fhrewdly {ufpect they have taken very
bad Counfel together : thefe Gentlemen are of his
own Choice, and of his own Companions, and
thofe that were converfant with him ; and if you
pleafe to obferve, at every Word, #ull. Drake ;
methinks that 1s a Word of Famuliarity,  But,
my Lord, for thefe, they were his Companions,
and whether I might fay more, his Eloufhold-
Friends or Guefts, but fure they were in his
Houfe very often, and were private with him,
and in his Chamber and Study ; and to cover all
thefe Actions, and thefe treafonable Practices,
and Letters and Defigns, here they muft come
to hear News, and this muft cover it all : They
come for nothing but News, and our Contributi~
ons mult be for charitable Ufes; but you muft
not ask why or wherefore we lend Money, but it
1s for charitable Ulfes: Neither God nor Man will
be blinded in thefe things; and if thefe Fig-
leaves be fewn together, 1t will neither cover
Nakednefs nor Treafon, My Lord, Mr., Lece
hath faid, (and m that given Judgment againft
himf{elf} that either to treat or advife with the
King of Scets in Scorland, he detefts them both,
My Lord, if he be guilty of both, then, I hope,
he doth deteft and rencunce himfelf, and then I
think he hath laid your Judement fomewhae, his
own having paft firft, yours will eafily follow.
My Lord, he contefles, That for this A& of the
2d of Augnft, 1650, he was ignorant of it, and
of the Danger of it. My Lord, he very well
knows that Ignorance i1s no Excufe 5 the A& is
a publick Aé, and hath been long printed, now
ten Months {ince, himfelf faith 3 And yer me-
thinks I cannot reconcile that, (that he that 00CS
to make others dificr) that he knew not of this
Al and yet Sterks, the Seorch Agent, was ba-
nifh’d upon this A¢t, and there was a Contribu-
tion for him for his going away : The fame A&
that doth the one, doth the other. My Lord, he
hath been pleafed to cite a Saying of Cardinal
Faricfus, That if be kizeww any part of bim infobied
with Lutheranttm, be wordd cut it off, and threco
i/ nito toe Fire: And fo can he peak truly of
umfelf, he would do, if' he knew any thing of
Malignancy by himfelf. My Lord, the Que-
{tion between him and us, 15, What Is Malig.
nancy £ I doubt we differ in that 5 I doubt his
Senfe of Malignancy 5 T am fure by fome Words I
threwdly guefs at, that I count that Malignity,
and 1 hepe all this Court, and all that hear me,
count that Malignity, that I doubt his Judgment
teads him nottoit, fo I doubt we differ upon that,
My Lord, he hath faid, he was never an Incen-
diary, or evil Inflrument 5 1 with there were not
Caule for you to think otherwife : but furely the
Gentleman hath made large Imprecations, and
bath fpoken much for himfelf 5 but I believe he
knows there is fo much Juftice here, that he ex-
pefts not to be believed in what e fays, If 1t
were enough to accufe, who thould be innocent
And if it were cnough to deny, who fhould be
sutlty?  He doth not expect to be believed for
his Word cestainly; for now he knows he ftands

i another Capacity ; and as things are alledged
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and proved on both fides, fo he is to be be-
lieved, and no otherwife, My Lord, he hath
been pleafed to reflect upon my felf in many
Particulars 5 yea, and the Court knows in what
a Capacity I {tand here, as a Servant to the
State to do my Duty faithfully, and I muft do
it 3 and yet I muft fay, it doth not become me
to prompt Witnefles ; that Word, my Lord, was
not well {poken. He is pleafed to fay in the
Commendation of himielf, that he hath a Place
in Londoi where he hath a very good Congrega-
tion, and a very good Competcncy of Mainte-
nance 3 and I hearaly with he had thought fo
really, and had kept himfelf {ingly to that, I
do not think he will fay, that in the Duty of his
Place, as a Minifter of the Word, to preach,

to inftruct, to exhort, rebuke, reprove his Peo-

ple, or any under his Charge, that ever the State
did 1nterpofe or meddle with him, neither the Par-
llament nor the Commonwealth ¢+ Then {or
God’s Love, my Lord, why fhould this Man in-
terpofe or meddle with the State 7 Had you
not enough to do in your own Calling? Had you
not Charge enough lying upon you, but muft you
be going abroad, and put your Sickle into ano-
ther Man’s Harveft ? I will fay the State did
never trouble the Gentleman in his Duty; he
did go on with as much Peace and Quictnefs as
himfelf could defire, we interrupted not him ;
let him reflect upon himielf, and whether others
have dealt fo kindly with him ; when had he that
Liberty -that now he hath had ?  You may be
plealed to obferve, himfelf fays, twelve Years a-
g0 he could not in threc Years in Londsw pet an
Admiffion to be a Lecturer; and when he fpoke
mm the Congregation-houfe at Oxferd, he was ex-
pulled there ; he hath had no fuch meafure here.
Doth Kindnefs provoke him to thefe things ?
Thofe that fin againt Kindnefs, are the higheft
Tranfgreflors. 'What Provocation hath this Gen-
tleman had in his Miniftry, that he could not
follow that, and have let the Parliament and
State alone #  Doth he not receive Breath here to
live, and his Livelihood to fufiain himf!f and
his Relations 2 Why fhould you interpofe to
difquiet yourfelf and the Commonwealth, when
they did not provoke you? And let all judee
whether this fhould not convince you s and let
me fay thus much, That you have dealt foolith-
ly, and have gone beyond your Bounds, and
have not kept within your Limits, in what you
have done in thefe things that you have acknow-
ledged.

My Lord, I fpeak this, that thofe may hear
now that may not hear the other ; for that whick
Mr. Lsve hath faid, we muft have fome time to
recollet, and to fpeak in the Vindication of the
Proceedings of the State againft this Gentleman,
which, though I think it needs not much, in re-
fpect of the Courr that hath heard him fay {o
much, and confefs fo much as he hath done ;
yet for the Lenity of the State, that hath moved
them to take care of their own Prefervation :
And T would not do it, but that he hath food
upon all Terms of Defiance with Juftice and
Majefty 3 and you have heard from a Fellow-
Minifter what he did che laft day, and the Prin-
ciples he urgeth this day, which, let me repeat
agan, there will be no living in Society, if
thefe things be let alone, My Lord, it is much
infinuated by him, that his Blood will be upon
you and the Court; I would he had thought

upon
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d before thefe things had been {o tran{-
Egtig Ejlfgﬁimfelf : ] am afra%d (between God and
his own Confcience be it? and thofe that have had
Correfpondency with hgmz that much of this
Blood that hath been fpilt in Scotland, hath been
made by their means: You hear him fay, That
what was defired by them (and in order 10 what
it was) was, That the King of §cofs might join
with the Scotifp Nation, and not go to [relaad,
that was his Confcience. 1 do not know his
Confcience led him to meddle with thofe things,
to meddle with State-Affatrs ¢ But, my Lord, 1if
it be fo, and this hath been brought on by them,
that one hath encouraged the King to join with
the Szots, and the other hath encouraged the Scofs
to join with the King by hopes of Parties here,
which he himfelf acknowledgeth now, was un-
dertook in the Name of a Presbyterian Party 3
though I think, and do believe 1t, for very ma-
ny honelt Presbyterians, that they would fpit
in his Face, if he fhould fay it of them: But
I fay thefe Doings have occafioned the fhedding
of much Blood, and a great deal of Variance be-
tween the two Nations, and the Lord knows
when it will end. Buty, my Lord, as he con-
cluded for himfelf, you will be pleafed, my
Lord, to give me leave (though not in that
way of Conjuration as he hath done) to fay for
the State, I fhall not prevent your Judgments;
but 1 1s batter that one Man, than a State, thould
perifh. And if this Man be guilty of the
‘T'reafons proved aganft him, I believe him.
felf will judge, he had better perifh, and fuf-
fer Death, than the State {hould perith. All
tiefz Actings of his have been Underminings of
the State clean through, carried on very clofely
and covertly in Difuuifes, and not difcovered
but he that dances in a Net, will be catched
tripping at laft, My Lord, before you give
vour Judgment, you will confider that Juftice to
the Commonwealth s———

So, my Lord, I have added what my bad Me-
mory (I hope not bad Confcience) hath repeated
to me, as might give fome Anf{wer to what he
hath faid : But fiuce he hath been pleafed to take
fuch pains to run through all and every one of
the Evidence fo exally, and hath had three
Days given him for it my Lord, T fhall ask but
one for my felf, and for thofe that are the Counfil
for the Commonwealth. My Lord, this is al] I
thall fay at prefent to you, and fhall fay no more
tll next meeting,

[ Judge Kcble, the Lord Prefident, {peaks after
the Attorncy-General ; the very beginning
of his Speech was not heard, he beginning

very foftly, ]

Ld Piefident. But again in this Point, for the
Presbyterian Government, if it be rectified,
doubtlefs it tends to the Peace of this Nation, and
all Places, but not witha Seoteh Limitation, | de-
hy that ner limited by a Scoich Covenant.

The next thing is this; becaufe you often fall
upon Diftinctions of the Law, and that you are
ignorant of the Law, the more to blame you that
profefs the Learning of the Law of God 5 for
there is no Law in Eugland, but is as really and
traly the Law of God as any Scripture-Phrafe
that i1s by confequence from the very Texts of
Scriptuse : {or there are very many Confequences
reafoned out of the Texts of Scripture ; o is the
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Law of Eugland the very Confeguence of the ve-
ry Decalogue it {elf : and whatfoever is not con-
fonant to Seripture in the Law of Zugland, is
not the Law of Eugland, the very Books and
Learning of the Law: whatfoever is not confos
nant to the Law of God in Scripture, or to right
Reafon, which 1s maintained by Scripture; whats
foever is in England, be it A&s of Parliament,
Cuttoms, orany judicial Aé&s of the Court, it is
not the Law of Eugland, but the Error of the
Party, which did pronounce it ; and you or any
Man elfeat Bar may {o plead it. And therefore to
profels you are knowing in the Laws of God, anc*
yet to be ignorant ol the Laws of Eugland, when
yet the Laws of Eugland be fo purely the Laws of
God, as no Law in the World more practical at
this day, for you to be ignorant of them, is not
to your Commendation, nor to any of your Pro-
feflion.

Then, Sir, for your going on in thefe ways :
Tt:e Court with Patience hach heard you, [ chink,
two Hours, or thereabouts, and you have done
nothing but anticipated the Court : What! Jo
you think they have not Underftandings, and
Judgments and Confciences?  They would have
done it, they would have examined thefe Witnef-
fes precifely, and would have compared them, but
you have taken up all this time by way of Anti-
cipation 3 and in a Rhetorical Way to do it ! Let
me tell you, that Orators among the Heathens
have been the greateft Incendiaries 5 and thole
Orators in Chriftendom that do not fet their Judg-
ments upon right ends, they are the moft un-
worthy Men in Chriftendom : for there are no
Herelies, Murders, tratcorous or treafonable rac-
tices and Attemprings, and all the higheft Wicked-
neffes that ever were committed in Chriftendom
whatfoever, or in this Nation in pardcular, bur
they have had fome of that Profeflion thar have
called themfelves Minifters of Jefus Chrift, as the
Jeluits of Jefus, and the Priefts of tholt; and
all thefe Things and high Afings have flill had
fome Tincture of your Coat in them. Therelore
it is not your Office can excufe you; your Of-
fice 1s facred, as other Chriftian Offices are, and
you are no more Divines by your Odicey bue
you are to remember, and you mult know, that
Chriftian Juftice that you teach in the Pulpit, to
act 1t in the Court, 1s of a higher mature than
Preaching 151 And therefore in this, that vou
fhould advance your Profeffion beyond the Judi-
catories of this Land, know, that fudgment and
Juftice is the higheft Religion in the World,
both in Chriltendom and our of it. And this,
Sir, we would have you know, That Lawyers
Doctrine tends to this, and I hope hereafter
you will be more obedient, and better verfed
to know thefe Grounds of the Laws of Euslaud,
by which now you are called here. [ fhall fay
no more, but take Advice of the Court aboug

you,

[The Court adjourns, and Mr. Love is com-
manded away. ]

The Fourth Day's Proceeding, June 27, 1651,

Mr. Hall, the firft Counfel {or the Common-
wealth.

Mr. Hall, Y Lord, the Prifoner at the Bar,

Mr, Love, ftands impeach’d be-
fore



]
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ore your Lordthip of High-Treafon, which Im-
;eacgment hath bgen read before your Lordfhip
and the Court. My Lord, by that he ftands
charged with High-Treafon, with feveral Of-
fences of High-Treafon 3 That he in the Years
1648, 1049, 1650, and 1651, with Wulian
Drake, Henry Ferimin, Henry Picrey, Fobun Gib-
bons, Edward Maffey, Sylas Titus, and others his
Accomplices, did traitoroufly, wickedly and ma-
licioufly confederate, plot, and endeavour to fhir
up a new and bloody War in this Nation, and to
{ubvert the Government now eftablithed, without
a King and Houfe of Lords.

My Lord, That in the fame Years, fince the
Death of the late King, he did, with other his
Accomplices, endeavour to promote Charles
Sinart to be King of Ewglaird, contrary to an
A& of Parliament before that time made 1n this

Nation. . |
My Lord, That mn the fame Years he and his

Accomplices did traitoroufly and malicioufly aid
and afht the Nation of Scotland, to the end that
they mighe invade this Commonwealth ; and hath
adhered to the Forces raifed by the Enemies of
this Commonwealth. |

My Lord, That in the fame time, between the
Month of Maich and the firft of Fuise, this prefent
Month, he hath traitoroufly and malicioufly held
and maintained Correfpondency and Intelligence
by Letters, Meflages, Inftructions, and otherwife,
with the Enemies of this Commonwealth, and
to the Prejudice of this Nation 3 and 1n particu-
lar with Charfes Strart and the late Queen his
Mother, and with Fermin and Piercy, and o-
ther Perfons oi Counfel abiding with Charles
Sthart.

My Lord, That he hath likewife held Corre-
fpondency and Intellizence with the Seotifh Nati-
on, prejudicial to this Commonwealth, and to the
end they might invade and biing a bloody War
upon this Natron. |

My Lord, Thefe Treafons and traitorous and
wicked Practices of the Prifoner at the Bar, were
and are to the apparent Hazard of the publick
Peace of this Commonwealth, and Free-State, and
the Partiament and People of England 3 and in
Contempr and Violation of the Laws of the Land,
and conurary to {everal Adls of Parliament in {uch
Cales made and provided.

My Lovd, There have been feveral Witneffes
and Proofs of thefe particular Charges againtt the
Prifoner: And, my Lord, I do conceive thar there
hath been fuch Proof made, that in your Lord-
thip’s Judgment he will appear to be guilty of all
thele particular Altings.  But, my Lord, 1 will
not cnter upon the Proof, only make a fummary
Relavion of the Beginning and Continuance of this
Plot and Defien,

My Lord, This Plot did begin very fuddenly
aiter 1t pleafed God to take away the chief Enemy
of thisNation.  The King died in Famrary 1648,
and this Plot began in Lebruary, the VEry next
Month following : and in the fame Month, my
Lord, the Seoretr Natton did proclaim Charles Stuart
King of Scetlziid 5 and they did not ftop there,
but proclumed him hkewile King of Exgland ;
and then, my Lord, this Plot began here.  For
in the Monch of February, the next Month after
the King died, the Meeting was at the Swan at
Doweate, where were feveral of the Correfpon-
dents at that tme; as Drale, Huntington, Tijys,
and others: and the end of that Meeting was
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to contrive a Way that they might agree the King
and the Scofifh Nation ; that was the end of theip
Meeting at that time.

My Lord, within a few Days after that, they
met again, all thefe feveral Perfons, at the 775it.-
Hait in Breadfireet, and to the fame purpofe ;
and at length it was refolved to make their Ad-
drefles to the Queen, and to Piercy and Yermin,
(hrft 1t was to the King himfelf) fora Compliance
between the King and the Scots @ Letters were fent
accordingly, and feveral Meetings, and feveral
Returns of Meflages were had of them. My
Lord, at length it was refolved, That they thould
fend Meflengers to the King at Ferfer, and agreed
upon one T#ns 3 and they raifed Money and gave
it to Titus to undertake the Journey. My Lord,
Titus accordinzgly went in the Month of May,
1049, and returned in Augnff following,  After
he had done his Negotiation there, he returned
to Calazs : but being afraid this wicked Plot was
difcovered, by reafon of Letters that were in-
tercepted, he durft nor come into Eiolandy but
fent Letters to defire fome Correfpondents mighe
be fent to Calais. My Lord, all this time i
do not find that the Proof difcovers the Prifo-
ner at the Bar to be any Acor, or prefent at
any Meeting hitherto: But when thefe Letters
came from Titus, then the Letters were brought
to Mr. Leve’s Houfe 5 which is the Arf:
time I find him by Proof to be prefent, The
Letters were read in his Houfe, and in his Study,
as fome of the Witnefles fay that were there
prefent ;5 and it was then agreed, my Lord, That
Alford fhould go to Calais to Titns, My Lord,
accordingly he went, and there 7i/xs did commu-
nicate unto him the Affairs that paffed at Feifes.
Within four or five Days after, 4lford returns
again, and where fhould the Meeting be but ar
Mr. Love's Houle again, where Mr. Loze ard
divers of the Accomplices were in his Houfe : a
Letter from the King was read, the Diayy, the
Narrative from Titus likewife was read there ;
and there was the Confultation what fhould be
done, and what further Courfe they fhould take
to jomn the King and the Sests together, My
Lord, afterward they did agree that there fhould
be fome fent to treac with the King at Breda
the Inftrutions were drawn in Mr. Jorés Houle,
(Ithink one Witnefs fays fo) and Mr. Loce pre-
fent; Money was raifed, and Mr. Love himfel®
did -{peak to one of the Witnefles to raife M oney,
which was Far : Far accordingly did bring 1n
Iive Pounds, and laid it down upon Mr. Zsze's
Table, Mr. Love being prefent then in the
Room,

My Lord, T fhall not trouble you with the
Relation of more Particulars 3 but, my Lord, }
conceive that Mr. Lave doth upon thefe Proofs
ftand guilty of endeavouring to promote the
King to be King of Enuglaid: For, my Lord,
whar fhould be the end of uniting the King and
the Scofs together, after that the Seofs had pro-
claimed Charles Stwart King of Eugland, but that
they might come in a warlike manner to invade
this Nation, and fer up his Authority as King a-
mong us ?

My Lord, I conceive (1 fhall fubmit to your
Lordfhip’s Judgment) that he is cullty of Intelli
gence from 2 profeffed Enemy. The Intelligence
1s, my Lord, That divers Létters were {ent, and
thefe Letters were read in his Prefence, as him-
felf doth confefs he was at the reading of divers

Letters,
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Letters, and did not confent ta ghexp » and there-
upon makes it as 1t were but lepr!ﬁ?n of Trea-
fon. My Lord, I conceive that tiis 15 apparent-
ly Trealon: For if Letters were {ent to one Pﬁl;-
fon, and did occafionally come into another Man’s
hand, and he conceal them, being not fent to him,
there peradventure it 15 but Mifprifion of Treafon.
But when there are fent to thefe part:cul:}r Perfons
I etters from the King and Scotsy and divers Per-
fons in Hoftility again{t the Commonwealth of
Englaid, and received by the Contederates in Ma-
fier Love's Houfe,and there were read and debated,
though they did not agree to fome Particulars, yet

they are Actors : They are ~1n the very In-
rellisence it felf 5 and did likewife return feveral

1 etters. _ | |
My Lord, this Intelligence was with the Seo-

tifb Nation 3 which truly, my Lord, 1 do con-
cetve hardly an Englifbman, that had the Blood of
an Englifwaan running in his Veins, would joinin
Confederacy with that Nation, of all the Nations
of the World, againft this Commonwealth ; a
Nation that hath been known (and I am fure the
Prifoner at the Bar is well read in the Hiftoriesand
Srories of this Nation) to have been a conftant
Fnemy to this Nation in all Ages through the
Memory of all Hiftories ; and, my Lord, of late,
not three Years fince, came and invaded this Na-
rion with a putffant Army, which it pleafed God
to deliver us from : And this the Prifoner
could not be ignorant of, that we had lately a
Fight with them at Dunbar 5 that Hoflility could
not be unknown unto the Prifoner at the Bar
neither. And yet for all thar, to confederate
with a Nation that werc fuch conftant Enemies
to us 3 my Lord, I could not conceive it had
been in the Hearc of an Euglifbmain, much lefs
in 2 Minifter and Preacher of the Gofpel among

L5

My Lord, there are fome particular Charges
upon him, more than upon any of thereft: after
Drake fled away, being doubtful that his fecret
traitorous Plot would be difcovered, Mr. Love fup-
plied his Room 3 all the Meetings, and Confede-
racies, and Letters,and Agitations in this Bufinefs,
were conftantly at Mr. Leve’s Houfe, himfelf be-
ing prefent, And, my Lord, Money, as I faid
betore, by Mr. Love himielf defired to be raifed
for the furthering ot this Defign; and feveral
Sums of Money were ratfed. T thall trouble your
Lordihip with no further Relation, but leave it to
the Proof that was made before your Lordthip and
the Court.

Str ‘Thomos Witherington, the fecoitd Couinfel
for the Commonzealth.

Su The. Witherington. My Lord, Mr. Leve's
Defence which he made for himielf, as he did it
for his Life, fo he took a great deal of pains in
it, and was very accurate in the Defence he made,
clpecially in the Witnefies, My Lord, I fhall
not take upon me (for it is not my Charge at this
ime) to reply unto the whole Defence that Mr.
Love made,

My Lord, that I thall fay fhall be in two

lﬂ’;}rtic_ulars, for Mr. Love divided that which he

kud 1ato four Parts; the firft concerning the

Charge ; the fecond concerning the Witneffes

and Teflimony ; the third concerning himfelf ;

Eéld the fourth concerning fomie Propofals to the
ourt.
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My Lotd, I thall only meddle with that which
is concerning the Witneffes ; and fecondly, to
fome part ot that he faid concerning himfeif : I
fhall only reply as to thefe two; and the reft I
fhall leave to Mr, Attorney-General, that better
knows what is for the Advantage of the Common-
wealth.

My Lord, 1 fhall begin concetning the Witnef-
fes, to clear them, {for now we are in our Reply
for the Commonwealth.) Mr. Love, who did
profefs a very great deal of Ignorance in the Laws
of the Land, yct he did infinuatc fomething that
implied fome Knowledge of them, in that, my
Lord, he took fome Exceptions to the Witneffes.
My Lord, I take it, that thefe Lxceptions
wereg:

1. That the Witnefles were not probi Toffes &
legales.  And,

2. That they were Participes citminis: And
that indeed is included in the other.

My Lord, Firft, I fhall fpeak to this, That
the Witneffes produced againft him, are legales
Teffes : They are competent Witnefles, and fuf-
fictent Witneffes, without Exception agiinft
them. T fhall frft {peak to that they are Zgfles
legales : For Mr. Love did object, That they
themfelves confeffed themfelves to be guiley of the
fame Crimes ; and fo their Confeflion 1s upon the
Matter a Conviction ; and {o they are convic-
ted of the Crimes in which they are Witneffes
againft him ; and o are not competent Witnefs
{es.

My Lord, I fhall clear this: Under favour, I
take it they are very clear and good Witnefies,
notwith{tanding the Exceptions. And; my Lord,
this I take to be a very plain Cafe 5 the Cafe
which 15 in our Common Law: The Cafe is—
which proves it fully ; for if a Man be accufed
of High-Treafon, indi¢ted of High-Treafon, and
will confefs the Indiftment, and become dn Ap-
prover, yet he may be a Witnefs againft all thofe
Parties guiley of the fame Treafons with himfelf ;
he is Particeps eriminis with them, and they with
him: And yet this Man thus becoming an Ap-
prover, will at Common Law be a Witnels, and
a legal and good Witnefs againit chem.

My Lord, I fhall a little open that, becaufe it
clears the Cafe. My Lord, an Approver can
only approve, it Is trie 3 that 15, when a Man is
indicted of High-Treafon, and other his Accom-
plices with him, and he upon the Indi¢tmeént
fays 1t is tru¢; and then defires he may have
fomething affigned to him, and then he accufes
fuch and fuch Perfons of the fame Crimes: Inthis
Cafe this Man, after he hath confefied the In-
di¢tment, and takes his corporal Oath to revesl
all Treafons he knows in the Indi€tment, (for h&
can accufe no further) after this done, he fhall-
be a Witnels 5 he is 2 Witnefs againft thofe with
whom he 18 Particeps criminis : Nay, my Lord,
it is of Merit and Juftice that he fhall have thiy
Reward, he fhall be pardoned his Life, Now,
that I prove to you, becaufe that fhews the Rea-
fon, that even the Man, after Indi€tment and
Confeffion; yet being an Approver, fhall bé
an Accufer of his Brethrén, thofe that were
Particeps criniinis with him, and a good Witnefs,
And the Reafon of that goes to this Cafe in hand
For although thele Men had a hand 1n the
fame Plot and Defign with him, and have con-
fefled, and did confefs it upon Evidence, thas
they were there prefent, and did miany TFhings;

yer
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vet I take it they are clear, competent, and good
Witneffes, and that 1s no Objection againt them,
that they are Participes crimims. My Lord, it the
Law were otherwile, it were impoflible to prove
many Offences; for many Offences cannot l?e
proved, but by fome Men thar had a hand in
them. In an ordinary Cafe, an Action of Trel-
pafs and falfe Imprilonment, if three Men are
guilty of it, it is an ufual thing in Courts of Ju-
{tice to admit one of them a Witnels, True,
they are not Parties in the Action, and fo may be
Witneffes: For thefe Things may be fo lecretly
done otherwife, that their Treafons could never be
revealed to recover againft the Prifoner.

There 15 a Cafe, I think, in all our Know-
Jedge @ It is the Cafe of the Earl of Cwfflebaven.
He was accufed of a very grievous Fact: The
Wotefies which caune agaiaft him, were one or
two Foormen, that were Parficipes criminis 1n the
very fame Faét s and thefe Men, by the Opi-
nion of the Judges, were comperent Witnelles,
My Lord, he was arraigned, indicted, and con-
victed, and fufiered Death @ Nay, 1tis very true,
that one of tlefe Porfons was afterwards hanged
for the fame Odence.  So thar, [ think, uude:
favour, as to thar, [ take 1t that they are clear
and goud Wieiles, notwithitanding that Cojec-
tion,

The next Objeftion is, That they were not
piobi Teftes.  Truly for thar, my Lord, T matt
appeal to your Judgment in n, . hetaer tace
Men be not prehi Yefles, & boweffi ton: For in
cafe of an Approver, as | menuored before, that
Man that accules his Brethren upon the fame
Trealon, 1t is faid, that of Merie and Juflice the
King ought to grant himy his Pardon 5 ior they
that difcover the Traiors agamnft the Common-
wealth, thefe certuinly are poehi Tefles, and good
Commonwealths-men.  And o 1 ke 1ty that
this is no Objection again{t them in thar, buc as
before they were legales Teffes, fo they are prvis
Tefles. My T.ord, I mention thefe Things, to
{hew that the Witneffes for the Commonwealth are
aood and competent 1n this Cale.

The next Objection touching thefe Witnefles,
15, That though they be admitied for good Wit-
nefles, yet there is not to any one Faét two Wit-
nefles.  "Vhere is not any one of the moft ri-
minal Parts of the Charge proved by two Wit-
neffes.  And fo as before they were incompetent
in regard of the Quality and Participancy of their
Crimes, fo now ke would make them incompe-
tent for want of Number,

Ny Lord, I fhall firft agree to the Ground of
this Objection: For truly, my Lord, I take ir,
that 1t 15 by the common and anoent Law of
Eppland, that in Cafes of Treafon chere muft be
two Witnefitss and 1 1s by a Law mcre antient
than thar, that 15, by the Law of God. But,
my Lord, it 15 true, the Law of this Land is
explained by feveral Statutes, the Statute of the
#  Yor of Edward the Sixth, and the ffth
Year, and the {econd Year of Philip and Mary.
My Lord, I take it, upon all thefe Statutes; the
one Statute fays, To accufe another, there muft
be two Wirnefles : I take i, the Accufer and
Witnels are all one; that is, the fame that in
one Statute 1s called a Wienefs, i another is
called an Accufer. But there muft be two:
That is the Objeftion.  But then give me leave
to confider this Cafe, and to confider how thole

two Witnefles thall be. My Lord, I fay, under
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favour, that in a Cafe that confifts of a compli-
cated Fact, that is, the Reiteration of many
Aéions, my Lord, I conceive none of thefe
Laws are to be intended, that for every of the
particelar Facts chere fhould be two Witnefles -
That cannot be the Intention of any of thefe -
Laws, that in every particular Fadt, that is to
fay, whether Mr, Love was prefent at the read-
ing of the Latters 5 1f you have one Witnefs to
that, another for the writing of them, another
to the fending of thems though thefe three Wit
nefles fpeak to feveral Parts of the Bufinefs, yet
they are a concurrent Teltimony, for all agree
to the Ifact. I well remember, my Lord, a
Cafe in the Star-Chamber, againft 8. of Licceffer-
Joire : 1 think there was an Informarion agzinfk
him for Bribery, and extorting ot Fees. The
Matter came 1n the Conclulion, that one Man
proved a Bribe, and another Man proved a Bribe ;
One proved a Bribeof forty Pounds, and another a
Bnibe of forty Pounds; but there were feveral
Witneffes to feveral Bribes,  The Queftion now
was, Whether he took Bribes, or no? And thefe
tending to the fame gencral Charge, it was the
Opinton of all rae Julges thar he did exrort
and take Bribes.  The one Witnefs fpake to one
Biipe, ard another to another 3 and in thar Cafe,
as two Witnefles made good a Charge againlt an
Ofiender: Yet in that Cale it was raken, thag
where Witnefles, though they fpeak not in every
Particular, yer all tending ro the fame general
Charge of Bribery, thefe were taken for plural
Witnefles, and that was a good Conviction., T hat
wus the Opiaton of the Judges then. I mention
this Cale only for an Inftance to exprels my felf
in this: For Mr. Lete cannot expect, that to
every pardeular Thing laid to his Charge two
Witsehies fhould be produced. But, my Lord,
when one Winels proves this Thing he hath
done, tis Letter hath he written, and "another
that waother Thing he hath done, which al
tend to the Trealon; now thefe are more Wit-
nelies, and two or three Witnefles of the fame
T hing, tho’ not to the fame ndividual Thing, it
1Is——So that upon the Mateer they are concur-
rent Witnefles 1 this complicated Fad, though
not concurrent 1n this or that Circumitance ; tor
that 1s impoflible almoft in any Action to be
done.

But then Mr. Love did further enlarge this Ob-

jection, which was out of a Saying he had, That

in cafe ot Trealon, Probationes oportent effe luce
clarisres, The Proof muft be as clear as the Sun.
Truly, my Lord, it is very bard that Works of
Darknefs fhould need fo much Light for Difco-

very, and that fo clear a Proof thould be necef-
fary when the Things are done in Darknefs and Se-

crecy. My Lord, 1 think, under favour, though
in this Particular we bave our Witnefs, as 1 take
it, to fprak very plainly and clearly; for it is
their own Faules if they do not, for they were
prefent at the Meetings, at the Confultations and
Debates @ But yetr I do obferve, that in this Cafe
Things were carried on in a very fecret manner.
For 1 do obferve, firft, at thefe Vicetings, all of
them were done under a Difguife, every thing
acted in this Bufinefs. I obferve it upon Evi-
derce, firft, That the very Meetings themfelves,
they go under the Title of Prayer and Fafting 4
tor lo [uitington told you, He was fpoke to a0
to Prayer at Mr. Love's Houfe, ‘The Contribu-
tions mace for railing of Money, for fending of

Meflages
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Meffages and Difpatches, was under the Difguie
of Charitable Ufes. So that here was Darknefs
all aiong. And then for the Letters, there were
no Names fubferibed to them: All were done
without Names, only the Letter L. was upon one.

And the Place, uly I mult fay, that was ob-
fcure ton: For what Man would have thought
that the Plice of Meeting thould have been at
Mr. Love's Houfe? A Man that hath been fo
much for, and fhewed fo great an Affection to the
Purliament, as he faid himfelf 1n Subflance. A
Man would fooner. have thought to have found
this Treafon in any Cellar in Lsudon, than in Mr.
Zove's Houfe.  bor the Inftruétions, for the Di-
rections and Difpaiches, fome were fent in Table-
Books, written 1n Sack In 2 Table-Book : But,
my Lord, I am afraid, in the Conclufion, the Let-
ters will be written in Blood. But, my Lord,
this I do obferve, that through thele Difficulties,
though we pafs’d through our Evidence, yet your
Lordlhip heard how plain the Proof was in moft

Particulars.

My Lord, I fhall fay no more as to thefe Wit-
nefles, becaufe the other Part of anfwering the
Wimefles belongs to the Attorney-General 5 for
Mafter Love went over all the particular Wit-
nelles,

My Lord, I thall only fay one Thing, and that
is this, concerning Mr. Love himfelf; and 1t is
only concerning this Point. My Lord, Mr. Love
himfelf did fay, He would be ngenuous fo far as
e took himfelf to be guilty.  But, my Lord,
I know your Lordfhip and the Court obferves
that that Ingenuity did follow the Proof that
was for the Commonwealth. My Lord, he con-
fefls he was prefent at thems; he was filent after
all thele Meetings and Debates: I mean the
Meetings afier they began at his own Houfe 5 for
I fpaak not of them that were at Dowgate, for
there is no Proof that he was there. My Lord,
this he confeffes ; and this he fays 1s Mifprilion of
Treafon, Truly, my Lord, I muft be bold to
differ from him 1w that Particalar: I take it
that that he confefles 1s High-Treafon. . 1 fhall
foecak a litele to Mifprifion of Treafon, and fo
conclude.

My Lord, Mifprifion of Treafon is when a
Man hath notice of a Thing chat is Treafon, and
he conceals 1t. Now, my Lord, under favour,
the Concealment muft not be long; it muft not
fleep long with him, My Lord, I remember an
Axiom an Author hath in our Law, and that is
Bracton : He hath a Difcourfe of Mifprifion of
Treafon ;3 he hath 1t in Latin Says he, He
toat kisws a Treafon, be maft not fay in oie Place
a Day and a Nizht, but bz muft go ons be muft go
toward the Magiftrate.  Nay (fays he) though be
bave moft urgeit Bufinefs, yet be muft fet it afide,
and go on, and muft ot fay in any Place til] be bath
.revealed it.  Nay (he fays further) be ought not to
look back till he bath given Information to the Ma-
siffrate.  The Man that doth not after this man-
ner forthwith reveal it, this only is Mifprifion of
Treafon. But confidering this Cafe of Mr. Love's
now confefling the Faét, he rakes it to be Mif-
prifion of Treafon; but I take it to be Treafon
iefelf. My Lord, 1 thall obferve what Mr. Love
did: He was at thefe Meetings 5 thefe Mectings
were continued for divers Days and Months.
My Lord, was there any Difcovery made by
Mr. Love? Was there any Revelation of his to
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any Magiftrate? Did he tell it to any Man?
Nay, duwl he confefs it upon his Examination,
when examined ¢ Nay, did he not deny it when
he came to the Bar before your Lordthip? Can
this be faid to be Mifprifion of Treafon, that a
Man {hould hold fo long in Treafon, and not re-
veal it? My Lord, as every Treafon includes a
Mifprifion of Treafon init; fo I conclude thar
Mifprifion of Treafon may grow up to Treafon
itfelf. Now when a2 Man fhall fo long {leep up-
on it, and be violent in it, and not reveal it, I
take this Mifprifien of Treafon grows up into
Treafon itfelf. -

My Lord, I fhall fay no more of that, but I
fhall conclude ; becaufe the other part lies upon
Mr. ditorney-General, who Is better able to do it.
Only one thing I fhall ke notice of to your
Lordfhip, and I am croubled at it; and that is,
That as he faith, that he that hath been fo much
for the Parliament, with whom he hath gone a-
long, and took {weet Counfel together, and hath
been active for, and paffive with, thro’ all the
Paflages of the late Wars ; that he fhould fuffer
from them, this, he fays, ftuck very much upon

* lhim. But, my Lord, for him that hath been fo

much for the Parjtament, fo familiar with their
Proceedings, that hath been fo active for them,

and hath fuffered fo much for them ; my Lord,

for him to kick the Fleel againft the Parliament ;
for him, after all this, now evenin the Infancy of
this Gommonwealth, that this Child fhould be
deftroyed, and by one with whom we have took
{weet Counfel together : And by one, I may fay
this, that tho’ he had no hand 1 making this
Commonwealth, yet I darefay he had in the Pre-
parations to it ; for himfelf all along hath gone
with the Parliament: So that, my Lord, 1 take
this to be an Obje&ion agamft him, But, my
Lord, I fhall fay nomore in it, but refer the other
Part to My, Aitorney-General,

Mr. Attorney-General, the third Conafel for ihe
Commonzuealth.

Attorn. Gen, My Lord, I am forry Mr. Love
hath given me the occalion of this ivleeting, and
of my fpeaking at prefent; I could much rather
have wifhed to have been filenc: But now I am
drawn hither, I am forced to 1t. Mr. Love, my
Lord, in the beginning of his Trial, did defire
God fo to affift him, that he might go through
it with Gravity, Meeknels, and Wifdom, as be-
came a Minifter of the Gofpel. I with that God
had heard his Prayers, that he had fo gone
through it. What he hath done, the Court hath
obferved,

My Lord, in that Part I have to do, I do
heartily defire I might do it with Faithfulnefs to
you, and the Duty of the Place I ought to dif-
charge, and to the Court,

My Lord, the Work that this Day lies upon
me, 15 to reply fomewhat to what was faid by
Mr, Lsve tn his own Defence, and to make a
faithful Repetition to the Court, and to do the
Witnefles and the Prifoner Right; to repeat that,
and that only, that hath been {aid 5 and in that,
that I may do no Wrong to mif-lead the Coure,
and offer nothing to the Prejudice of the Wit
nefles, nor to the Prifoner. And truly, my Lord,
I thall not (in his own Words) have any tortured
Collections, nor any Inferences, nor Strains of

U “Wit ;
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Wit: He hath fhewed his Oratory in his De-
fence; my Lord, 1 fhall thew the Simplicity of
Law in the Reply.

My Lord, the Charge hath been repeated to
you; and for that infifted upon by Mr. Leve for
the Witnefies and Teftimony, you have had An-
fwer: I fhall not trouble you ; there hath been
Pains taken init. My Lord, 1 think all Men
were fatisfied that it was clear enough ; yet to
make it more clear, Mr. Love, my Lord, infift-
ed upon ene Thing more, and that 15 upon Point
of Time, and the Point of the Jurisdiction of the
Court, which (by your favour) I fhall firft be-
ain with, .

He ftands charged, he fays, for Crimes done
in 1648, 1659, 1650, and 1651, And thofe
Crimes, he fays, were before this Court was, or
had a Being ; and {o had not Power to take Cog-
nizance of them.

That, myLord, I thall endeavour to clearto you,
and I think in much Clearnefs; clearer than the
Light, as he will have his Evidence. He ftands
charged (I fay) pofitively, my Lord, with no
Crime before a Law was emitted, that did give an
Inhibition, and was publifhed and known, He
ftands charged with no Crime before the Law was
publifhed, that did declare what the Crime was,
and gave notice to beware.

My Lord, that that was firlt, was the Law
that was made the Thirtieth of Fanrary, 1648,
that doth declare, (and upon that Law I fhall
fetch the Foundation and Rife of this Trealon)
That whoever fhall proclaim, declare, publifh,
oi any way promote Chbarlss Stuart, or any other
Perfon, to be King or chief Magiftrate of Eug-
laisd or Ireland, without Confent in Parliament,
fhall be adjudged a Traitor, and fhall fuffer Pains
of Death as a Traitor. Here was this Law pub-
lifhed, and notice given what every Man fhould
truft to, and, I may fay, my Lord, Obedience
expeted. Aganft this Law bath Mr. Love
tranfgrefled, and, under favour, in a very high
meafure; fo that, my Lord, I charge him upon
this Law, and fince this Law was made; and to
this Law there is no Limitation of Time for
Men to be queftioned for it: And for this Law,
it 1s in exprefs terms given in Commiffion to this
Court to take Cognizance of it: So that, I think,
this is a lictle clear to him.

My Lord, the next isa Law publithed in Fuly,
1049, that is entitled, A A7 declaring what Of-
fences fhall be Treafon: That, 1 chink, he is not
ignorant of, though he pretended to be ignorant
of another. My Lord, that Law likewife,
though 1t was before this Court was erefted,
yet this Court hath, by exprefs Words of the
Commiffion, Power to take Cognizance of it.
And this Court, i thefe Things, is not like o-
ther Judicatories, that when Offences are com-
mitted, the State takes care to appoint Courts
and Judges to judge thofe Offences. Ler it be
no Oftence to Mr. Love, if this Court were e-
reted efpecially to try him, But the Law was
not made efpecially to punifh him ; for the Law
was made before, and the Offence committed be-
fore: and fo, Ithink, 1n all Lingland the Offences
are committed before the Judges go their Circuits,

and have their Commiffions,
My Lord, the next is the Law that confti-

tutes this Courr, and fays in what Particulars this
Court hath Power to take notice of Offences,
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befides thofe mentioned before, and the laft con.
cerning the Seots: - That was bue lately, which
Mr. Love fays he was ignorant of 5 but he was
not ignorant to do fomewhat againft i, My
Lord, thefe are the Laws that Mr. Leve is im-
peach’d upon.

‘L'hie next thing that 1 have to do, is (and in
that I humbly beg your Favour, that as 1 am
now to do Tuftice, if I may fo fay, to the Caurt,
and to be faithful to my Truft, and the Duty im-
pofed upon me) to repeat the Evidence right un-
to you; and in that, as the Gentleman, the Pri-
foner at the Bar, hath had that Favour from you
to have a Norary by him, to take all that was
faid of all Parties 3 fo, my Lord, by your Fa-
vour we have had fome here to help our Memo-
vies: With whom 1 have conferred ; and by the
Help of their Notes and our Memories, my
Lord, we think we have faithfully tranfcribed
that which was faid by the Witneffes. And, my
Lord, I humbly crave Favour, asnot now being
a private Examination to be read, but a publick
Teftimony 1n the Prefence of Mr. Love himfelf
and the Court: 1 hope it is not private now, bug

'l may ufe Notes to do him right, and may read

thofe Things that they teftified upon their Qath
here.

In the firft Place, my Lord, I fhall, according
to my .belt Judgment do him no wrong. For
the firft, I thall acknowledge it was but a Hear-
fay, and that from Drake, of Letters fent from
Scotlaid to the Presbyterian Party in England, to
let them know what had been done of pro-
claiming the King there, and that care fhould
be taken for their Intereft, This Ido acknow-
ledge was but a Hear-fay ; but that which fol-
lowed not long after that time, my Lord, was
politive ; and there fmy Lord) I thali besin the
Rife of this. And thus, as hath been obferved
by my Fellows, that are Counfel here, though
there was not alling, nor Prefence nor know-
ing, yet (my Lord) under a fecond, it will ap-
pear he was confenting and approving, and fo
sullty of the firft Faét. My Lord, there wasa
Meeting at Dowgate : 1 fuppofe you remember
it full well; it hath been feveral times repeated
to you by feveral Perfons; and Titxs the Pare
ty now beyond the Seas, and Drake, and other
Traitors fled, were prime Sticklers for this,
and moved others to come in, and to be there
prefent, and hear what was the Defign. As I
did crave your Lordfhip’s Favour, fo I fhall,
that I may not (as he fays). truft to a fickle nor
roving Memory, that I may be faithful, to read
to you that | have taken, and what was faid by
them. I fuppofe Mr. Love hath by him one that
can controul me, 1f I do not right,

I begin with this Meeting at Dowgate, and
continued at the #hite-Hart in Bread-fireet : Al-

ford gave you this Evidence, That one BMorning bz

was wifbed by Drake to go to the Swan at Dow-
gate:  Hlhen he came there, theve was one Titus
who gave rclation of the good Difpefition of ihe
Priuce, and bow inclinable he was o lake the Co-
veianty and to caft off 1he Cavalizring Party, end
thofe about him, if there were opportunity found,
bow 10 make bin know there wwas a confiderable Par-
y m England that would flick clofe to the Ends of
ihe Covenant 5 and upon that, we that were there
did think we were bound in Duty, m relation to the
Govenant, 1o prefs the Prince to take ity and 10 pro-

fecute
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Jecute the Ends of 1. Aud for that Titus faid, if 10648, ( In ?a:zrmr)_: was the_ Law publithed) Zlford
we would appoint anothzr Meeting, be would draw told him that Titus was in Town, and that he
up fomething in way of Application of the Preshyte- was nf:w._vly come from beyond the Seas from
rian Party to that purpofe, | their Friends, Mdﬁy, Bunce, Grawves, and others 3

Ve a Ier*zvﬂrd.t met al the Bear 1w Br ead-ﬁreet, and that Titus Was to I:I‘IEEt the nexe hay at Doty
and there be drew forth fomething be bad framed to - gate, where he fell into high * Praifes of the
that purpofe, and read it, and it was agreed to be fent Prince, and told them that though he was taking
sver Lo the Prince s the Subflance of it was o prefs u{lhandfpme Courfes, yet they had great hopes
the Prince lo apply bimfelf to take the Covenant, his Inchinations were otherwife. Titys faid fur-

and to profecute the Eads of it, and to caft off all ther, he feared his inclining to the Jrifh, unlefs
ihe Cavaliers and that Parly about bim, which bad fome_tlung Ih_nuld be gotten from his Friends here
brought fo mnch Mifehicf to bis Father, and woulddo 1o divert bim ; that you remember was M.
likewife to bim ; And this (I believe) was fenf over, Love’s Charity too, as you will hear anon, 7i-
for Titus undertook to fend it over. We asked him, tus propofed to get Letters from Perfons of Ho-
b the Priuce conld be suade to believe that this com-  nour, to perfuade him to a good Opinion of the
ing from fo inconfiderable a Party as we were, fhould  Scots, to take the Covenant, and 1o join with
come under the Notion of the Preshyterian Party of  them.
England ?  He faid be would undertake 1t bymeans  Afterward they met av the #7hite-Hart in Bread-
of my Lord Piercy. And, my Lord, I think flreet, where Titus declared that he fhould gain
you do remember there was one Mafon, Ser- thefe Letters, and hoped to fet fomething a foor to
vant of Picrcy, that was fent over hither, fo te- the fame effe€t; and there faid, they were confi-
ftificd by fome, to reconcile the Royal and Pref-  dent they could fee no way under Heaven for him
byterian Party. This Aafen, my Lord, was elfe, but by taking the Covenant, and engaging
Pierey’s Servant, fo teftified hereby divers. My the Scots againft England : To which purpofe he
Lord, here is now the Foundation: Diake is he drew forth a Paper, purporting that they were
that moves Alford ; and Titus, I may fuppofe, bound in Honeity, Conicience, and Loyalty, 1o
the Mover of Drake 5 and both of them fled as maintin and help him to his juft Righs, if he
Traitors. would go along and join with the Covenanting
My Lord, if they were Traitors, and this is Party in England and Scotland,
Treafon 5 then whoever had a hand In carrying My Lord, this is that now that hath paft in
on thir Defign, himfelf isa Traitor, and this Ac-  Proof by Evidence concerning this firft Meeting
tion is Treafon. My Lord, this is the Teftimony at the Swan at Dowygate, which I do humbly con-
of lford. , | cetve was the Rife and Foundation of what fol-
My Lord, there isanother Witiefs, and that is lows afterward,  Ard this, my Lord, if true, |
Lieut. Col. Bains, who I think was prefentonly at  fuppofe no Man will fay, but that was Treafon
this Meeting, and had enough of it, and did leave that was tranfalted there, 1 do not fay, my Lord,
it3 and yet was prefent atthis, and gave in Evi- that Mr. Love was prefent af it, nor, as yet, can
dence of what was there propofed. I think he 1 fay, knowing of 1t 3 but what follows after, my
was prefent at no other Meeting, he was fatisfied Lord, will bring him in danger.
this was too much ; his Teftimony, as [ take it, My Lord, here, you have heard, was this
was this,for I thall read it, that Imay do nowrong Mecting, and what was propounded to be done
to no Party: Bawns fad, It was alfo propofed by here, and how ative Titus was, and that he was
Tuws, that fomething fhould be done, in order 1o to go (you have heard by the Teitimony) to
refforing the Preshyterian Intereft, by spplication  Piercy 3 and it is not doubted by any but ne did
to the Prince, and to affure bim, that be had a go thither ; it is not doubted by any but he was
coifiderable Parly in England, wbich looked upon fent, and did go thither. T'o that purpofe I
it as a Duty, and Iying upon all of them by the fhall now read you two Witnefles more, which I
Covenart.  dAnd loat it <was neceflary fomezobat  have caufed to be tranferibed too, in the Words
foould be done by fome Parliament-Men, Miniflers, as {poken by them, as I do conceive, that is, -
and Citizens, thal qvere leading altive Mzny that Adams and Far : That there was Money agreed
he might have an Affurance that fomewhat <would upon, to fend Titus to Piercy 3 that there was
be done for bim 5 and fomewbat to the Queen, Money colleCted, and that they themfelves did
Jermin ana Piercy, whom be faid were their contribute, Adams he exprefieth it thus: That
Friends. ‘This, my Lord, was that which upon a Meeting, the Place and Time I remember not,
Titus faid at this Meeting 3 and twehtified by awbere [ think were prefent Drake, Titus, Alford,
Baius. and my [elf, and I cannot tell howo many more 5 it
My Lord, there is another, Colonel Barton, was agreed that Titus fhonld go to Piercy s the End
who was produced as an Evidence. My Lord, of his going was to promote an Ajreement between
I think that he fpoke not much more than to the King and the Scots, according to the Covenant ;
this, and gave off here. My Lord, his Teftimo- (and, my Lord, you fhall hear in due time what
ny wasthis; for I do conceive, under favour, that Coverant is, that Mr. Leve hath faid in his
we have taken the very precife Words fpoken by lawe Defence.)  [n order to bis going, we did agree
them 3 and, my Lord, o as fpoken and taken, fo 10 furnifh bim with Money for the prefent, and made
written, and fo, my Lord, read to you, Bar- fome kind of Promife to keep bim <wbile be was out :
ton, my Lord, faid, That Drake would havehim “about an bundred Pounds <was furnifbed 5 for my
tobea Meffenger 3 and to that purpofe there were part, I paid twenty Pounds of it, This is A-

feveral Mectings at the Swan and WWhite-Hart, dams.
This was what Barton teftified, The next is Far: He fays, He did underfand

My Lord, then there was Major Huutington, by Drake, that Titus, who was bere requefied as
which was at this Vieeting, and one more at Mr. 0wz 2o be prefent ar the Treaty of Jerley, which Ti-
Love’s Houfe, which lie Full well remembers. My  tus did unacriake 1o go rhither : he undertook to go
Lord, Huntington fays this, That about Muarch himfelf. That afier be was gone, Drake defired’

Yo, lL U 2 Far



